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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and the
assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for the last five financial

UTFRAEERBERLAVMBEEZFEE
BhBEE-BEREDRE-

years.
RESULTS £
As at As at As at As at As at
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
RIZZME RIZZ=FE RIBIZE RIBEZ-£ RIZIER
AB=+H NB=+H ABAZ+H NB=+H NE=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (&) (BB (&7 (B&R7)
Results E7 |
- Revenue - 221,212 166,077 136,241 71,486 42,734
- Profit/[Loss) %7/ (58 (10,766) 13,686 10,681 (22,767) (274,163)
- Loss per share -5REE
Basic (in HK cents) B (Bl (3.43) (2.69) (3.40) (15.20) (110.89)
Diluted (in HK cents) B (B (3.43) (2.68) (3.40) (15.20) (110.89)
(restated)
(&5
Financial Position BHKR
— Non-current assets ~-ERHEE 281,309 259,854 214,968 188,914 184,615
- Current assets -MEYEE 57,184 39,484 24,889 56,329 41,053
- Current liabilities -RBaR 161,251 132,208 75,911 99,598 118,415
— Non-current liabilities -ERBas 93,623 75,320 81,609 73,013 73,506
- Equity o 83,619 91,790 82,337 72,632 33,747
Financial Ratios MHE
- Current assets/Current liabilities -RBEE/THEE 04 0.3 0.3 06 0.3
- Assets/Equity -BE/fh 40 33 29 34 6.7
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Message from the Board

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year ended
30 September 2024 for your review.

OVERVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$221 million during the
year, of which the natural gas business recorded a segment revenue
of approximately HK$213 million, accounting for approximately 96%
of the Group’s revenue. The Group recorded a loss of approximately
HK$10.8 million for the year (2023: profit HK$13.7 million). The
reversal from profit to loss was mainly attributed to (i) the increase
in selling and distribution costs of approximately HK$4.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 40.9%, which was
primarily attributable to increase in depreciation charge caused by
increase in carrying amount of non-current assets due to reversal of
impairment recognised in 2023; and (ii) the absence of reversal of
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$20.3 million and the absence of reversal of impairment loss on
intangible assets of approximately HK$17.1 million.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Even though the external economic environment continues to be
weak, since the target customers for the Group’s key business
of natural gas supply are mainly domestic business, we remain
optimistic about the prospects of the natural gas business. In the
natural gas business, the Group holds the thirty-year exclusive
right to supply natural gas in Yichang, Hubei which will be expired
up to 2041 to 2044. With this advantage, the number of potential
customers has increased correspondingly with the continuous
expansion of the industrial parks. This resulted in the volume of sales
on natural gas increased by approximately 40% during the year.

Looking forward, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.
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Message from the Board

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Natural gas operations

Beginning in 2023, the expansion project of Baiyang Industrial Park
in Yichang Gaoxin District has gradually started, and several large
chemical companies have settled in or about to move into the park.

Yichang Biaodian benefits from the exclusive gas supply operation
rights within the park and it is expected to welcome a wave of new
customers in the coming years.

In response to the ongoing development opportunities mentioned
above, Yichang Biaodian applied to the government at the beginning
of 2024 and received approval to construct two sections of high-
pressure gas pipelines (with a total length of approximately 23.33
kilometers) and a pressure regulating station within the expansion
area of the park, in order to meet the industrial gas demand. The
total investment involved is approximately RMB130,000,000.

Sales and leasing business

It is believed that the country’s steady economy will drive an increase
in infrastructure construction and renovation projects, which will lead
to increase in leasing business income.

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new
potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion
in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
express my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support for the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders of the
Company. We will adhere to a proven management strategy, grasp
market trends and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value
to our shareholders and make new contributions to the community.

Wu Guoming
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 December 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$221,212,000 for
the year ended 30 September 2024 (“YE2024”) as compared with
approximately HK$166,077,000 for the year ended 30 September
2023 (“YE2023”), gross profit of approximately HK$43,158,000 for
YE2024 against approximately HK$27,261,000 for YE2023 and net
loss of approximately HK$10,766,000 for YE2024 as compared to
net profit of approximately HK$13,686,000 for YE2023. The reversal
from profit to loss was mainly attributed to (i) the increase in selling
and distribution costs of approximately HK$4.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 40.9%, which was primarily attributable
to increase in depreciation charge caused by increase in carrying
amount of non-current assets due to reversal of impairment
recognised in YE2023; and (i) the absence of reversal of impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$20.3
million and the absence of reversal of impairment loss on intangible
assets of approximately HK$17.1 million.

An analysis of the performance of the Group including the revenue
and results of natural gas operations and sales and leasing business
before allocation of the corporate overheads is set out in note 10
“Segment Information” to the consolidated financial statements.

For YE2024 the Group generated revenue from sales of natural
gas, pipeline installation services, sales of materials and leasing
of materials arising from natural gas operations business of
approximately HK$205,113,000, HK$7,279,000, HK$260,000
and nil respectively, compared to approximately HK$149,692,000,
HK$4,332,000, HK$929,000 and HK$99,000 for YE2023. The
revenue generated from sales and leasing business was in aggregate
of approximately HK$8,560,000 for YE2024 as compared to
YE2023, it recorded HK$11,025,000, in aggregate.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution costs,
general and administrative expenses, for YE2024 was approximately
HK$45,234,000 as compared to approximately HK$42,923,000 for
the YE20283, representing an increase of 5.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continuead)

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$6,602,000
for YE2024 (YE2023: approximately HK$4,921,000), which mainly
consisted of interest on bank and other borrowings, non-convertible
bonds and lease liabilities. The increase was mainly came from an
increase in interest on bank and other borrowings and interest on
leased liabilities.

On 27 December 2023, the Company entered a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “First MOU”) with Hualing
Energy Co., Ltd.* (f2478ER B [RAF)) (the “Potential Partner 17), in
relation to the potential cooperation for the development of electric
vehicle charging station business. As at the date of this report, no
formal agreement has been entered into with the Potential Partner
1. For details of the First MOU, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 27 December 2023.

On 9 January 2024, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “Second MOU”) with Shanghai
Paradise Garden Healthy Food Co., Ltd. (E/BXZEEHEBEE R
BPRAF) (the “Potential Partner 2”), in relation to the potential
cooperation in selling meat products to Japan, Korea, or other
countries/regions. As at the date of this report, no formal agreement
has been entered into with the Potential Partner 2. For details of the
Second MOU, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
10 January 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired Yichang Biaodian, which is engaged in natural
gas supply operation, in 2016. The performance of Yichang Biaodian
significantly improved from the following reasons:

(i)

(i

With the planning under the guiding ideology of the “14th
Five-Year Plan” in 2021, the central government vigorously
promotes the utilization of clean resources, and pipeline natural
gas has become the best choice for new enterprises to use
as heating energy; since 2017, Yaojiagang Chemical Industry
Park has been successively rated as key supporting parks
of circular transformation by the National Development and
Reform Commission and the Ministry of Finance; has been
rated as pilot parks for third-party governance of environmental
pollution by the National Development and Reform Commission
and the Ministry of Ecology and Environment; the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology’s green industrial parks
and China’s smart chemical park pilot demonstration units.
Yaojiagang Chemical Industry Park has been promoting the
advantages of green industrial parks for many years, and
the effect of attracting investment is remarkable, driving the
demand for industrial pipeline natural gas in the region; and

Beginning in 2023, the expansion project of Baiyang Industrial
Park in Yichang Gaoxin District has gradually started, and
several large chemical companies have settled in or about to
move into the park.

Yichang Biaodian benefits from the exclusive gas supply
operation rights within the park and it is expected to welcome a
wave of new customers in the coming years.

In response to the ongoing development opportunities
mentioned above, Yichang Biaodian applied to the government
at the beginning of 2024 and received approval to construct
two sections of high-pressure gas pipelines (with a total length
of approximately 23.33 kilometers) and a pressure regulating
station within the expansion area of the park, in order to meet
the industrial gas demand. The total investment involved is
approximately RMB130,000,000.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, there is no indication of
impairment appeared in YE2024. Thus, no impairment assessment
conducted.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operations are being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank and other borrowings and external financing. The
Group follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital.
The management will continue to closely monitor the financial
position of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Bank and other borrowings

The bank and other borrowings assigned RMB52,677,000
(equivalent to HK$58,566,000) carry an interest at a fixed rate,
with an effective interest rate of 3.95% to 10.5% per annum
while the remaining borrowings of RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,907,000) carries a floating rate of 4.25% per annum and is
subject to adjust on annual basis. The bank borrowings are pledged
with natural gas supply exclusive rights of Yichang Biaodian and a
property owned by Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his spouse.
The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by Mr. Xiong and
the non-controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

Other borrowings are secured by the pledge of property, plant
and equipment of Yichang Biaodian and Senchou Environmental
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* GREWIERE (L&) BRAR)
(“Shanghai Senchou”) and guaranteed by the certain non-controlling
shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 September 2024,

(@)

the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$20,068,000 (as at 30 September 2023:
approximately HK$9,385,000).

the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) bank and other
borrowings; (ii) due to directors; (iii) non-convertible bonds; (iv)
lease liabilities; (v) due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and its related parties; and (vi) due to related parties
totaling approximately HK$147,499,000 (as at 30 September
2023: HK$106,870,000).

the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 152% (as at
30 September 2023: 106%). The gearing ratio was calculated
as the Group’s borrowings net of cash available divided by total
equity of the Group.

the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.4 (as at
30 September 2023: 0.3). The management will continue to
closely monitor the financial position of the Group to maintain
its financial capacity.

Capital and reserves

The total comprehensive income for the year ended 2024

attributable to the owners of the Company was a deficit of
approximately HK$14,597,000 (YE2023: a deficit of approximately
HK$13,254,000), resulting in deficiency attributable to the owners of
the Company amounting to approximately HK$12,075,000 as at 30
September 2024 (as at 30 September 2023: equity attributable to
owners of the Company: approximately HK$2,522,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS/MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries during the year ended 30 September 2024.

LITIGATION

On 25 March 2024, Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited* (3% Bk
W1z R 5 (R BRAT) (“Shenzhen Global”) has been in dispute
with a former director of the Company regarding (i) unsettled reward
for his service rendered to the Group in 2015 which to be settled
in term of building located in the PRC and accrued interest; and
(i) related legal cost for disputes regarding the ownership of the
building located in the PRC. Legal proceedings were initiated by
the former director (the “Shenzhen Plaintiff’). On 28 August 2024,
the Court in Shenzhen concluded that the evidence to support
the claims requested by the Shenzhen Plaintiff was invalid. On 5
September 2024, the Shenzhen Plaintiff lodged an appeal against
the decision made by the Court. The management of the Group is
assessing any possible outcome that bringing to Shenzhen Global
from the appeal.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged (i) natural gas supply exclusive rights amounted
to approximately HK$88,241,000 and property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$37,746,000 for bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB68,677,000 (equivalent to HK$76,355,000)
(as at 30 September 2023: natural gas supply exclusive rights
amounted to approximately HK$90,771,000 and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$40,303,000 for bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$62,160,000); and (i) a property
amounted to approximately HK$1,591,000 (as at 30 September
2023: HK$1,707,000) to an independent third party for obtaining an
advance of RMB100,000 as at 30 September 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2024 (2023: Nil).

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.

Natural gas operations

Benefiting from the expansion project of Baiyang Industrial Park
in Yichang Gaoxin District and the exclusive gas supply operation
rights held by Yichang Biaodian, it is believed that the revenue of this
segment will continue to grow in the coming year.

Sales and leasing business

It is believed that the country’s steady economy will drive an increase
in infrastructure construction and renovation projects, which will lead
to increase in leasing business income.

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new
potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion
in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

MATERIAL EVENT

On 26 December 2023, the Company announced that it has come
to the attention of the board of directors of the Company that the
Group’s 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian, amounting to
RMB14.70 million (the “Frozen Equity”), is currently frozen by P&
KAaMmI4AEE F % (Shanxi Province Changzhi Municipal Supervision
Commission, (the “Commission”)) (the “Freeze Action”). The Group
has engaged a PRC legal counsel (the “PRC Legal Counsel”) to
provide relevant legal advice to the Group in relation to the Freeze
Action and the Frozen Equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL EVENT (Continued)

The Board has instructed the PRC Legal Counsel to advise on the
potential legal consequences for the Group in relation to the Freeze
Action.

As advised by the PRC Legal Counsel, the ordinary course of
business of Yichang Biaodian will not be restricted or adversely
affected by the Freeze Action. During the period of the Freeze
Action, however, the Group is unable to undertake any filing related
to changes in ownership of the Frozen Equity or the registration of
any pledge of the Frozen Equity. The Group is advised by the PRC
Legal Counsel that the risk of impacting the Group’s entitlement to
dividends of Yichang Biaodian is relatively low, given that Yichang
Biaodian has not received any notice or notification or other legal
documents explicitly freezing the dividends, bonuses and other
proceeds to which the Group is entitled.

As of the date of this report, no further action has been taken by the
Commission regarding the Frozen Equity. After considering the PRC
legal counsel’'s opinion, the directors are of the opinion that despite
the Freeze Action, the Group’s ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian remains unaffected, and therefore, the Group
retains control over Yichang Biaodian.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Share consolidation and rights issue

On 15 November 2024, the Company proposed to implement share
consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”) on the basis that every ten
(10) issued and unissued existing shares with par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company will be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share with par value of HK$0.10 each. Subject
to the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the Company
proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$51.1 million
before expenses by way of rights issue of up to 182,344,000 rights
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.28 per rights share on the
basis of four (4) rights shares for every one (1) consolidated share
held at the close of business on the record date.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 November 2024 and 27 December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Placing of new shares

On 19 December 2023,
Investment Limited (“Leeds”) entered into a placing agreement

the Company and Leeds Securities

(the “2023 December Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company appointed Leeds to procure not fewer than six placees,
each being an independent third party, to subscribe for up to
91,172,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.69 per placing
share. Subsequently, on 9 January 2024, the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “2024 January Supplemental
Agreement”) with Leeds to adjust the placing price to HK$0.88 per
placing share.

On 29 January 2024, the Company entered into a termination
agreement with Leeds to terminate the 2023 December Placing
Agreement and the 2024 January Supplemental Agreement. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19
December 2023, 9 January 2024 and 29 January 2024.

On 5 March 2024, the Company and Leeds entered into a placing
agreement (the “2024 March Placing Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company appointed Leeds to procure not fewer than six
placees, each being an independent third party, to subscribe for up
to 91,172,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.068 per placing
share. Subsequently, on 26 March and 15 April 2024, the Company
entered into supplemental agreements with Leeds to adjust the
placing price and extend the long stop date of the 2024 March
Placing Agreement.

On 22 April 2024,
agreement with Leeds to terminate the 2024 March Placing

the Company entered into a termination

Agreement and the relevant supplemental agreements. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 March,
26 March, 15 April and 22 April 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2024, the Group employed 59 staff members
(at 30 September 2023: 61 staff).
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications

Remuneration is determined

and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The
Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’

duties, responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

* For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the event
of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 59, has been an executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* (/&Y
KEBZEEHHTIZAT). Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd (EBEARER TEBRAST). Furthermore, Mr. Wu is
the director of China Civil Engineering Society (Bl K T2 2
@)and a construction technology committee member of Chinese
Institution of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China
Civil Engineering Society (TEI+ ATRE2EF+ HERE LT
). Mr. Wu has vast experience in business management and
construction business development.

Mr. Wu Chunyao

Mr. Wu Chunyao (“Mr. Wu”), aged 30, has been an executive Director
since 30 October 2023. He has over 10 years of experience in
business management, operation and provision of consultation
services. He was a unit manager of Beijing Bozheng Xinda
Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* QtRB EEEZREBEREARAT)
from 2012 to 2014. He also works as a vice president of Shanghai
Chunfeng Financial Information Services Co., Ltd.* (E/8&IEERF
EEIRFABRAT). From 2015 to 2016, Mr. Wu was a general
manager of Hunan Zhihao Information Consulting Service Co., Ltd.*

(P EEEEARBAERAR).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur

Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, has been an
executive Director since 13 May 2024. He has over 17 years of
experience in business and technology development. He is a director
of Fu Hoi Insurance Management Limited which is engaged in
investment, business development and compliance. Since August
2022, Mr. Chan served as an independent non-executive director of
Grown Up Group Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 1842)
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is also a co-founder and director of each of
Micron Digital Corporation (HK) Limited, a company that leverages
technology on motion sensors and The Trend (HK) Holding Limited
T/A EHUBS, a company focusing on medication delivery solutions in
China. Mr. Chan obtained a Master’s degree of Engineering Science
from The University of New South Wales in 2004, and had completed
a bachelor’'s degree of Computing Science at Queen’s University in
2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 44, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”),
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had

a consultancy group principally engaged in asset
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8

years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky (“Dr. Chung”), aged 50, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 16 June 2021. Dr. Chung
obtained a doctor degree in Queen’s University of Brighton on 2012.
Dr. Chung possess over 19 years of experience in trading, corporate
finance, technology application and human resources management.
Dr. Chung was an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of remuneration committee and member to each of the
audit committee and nomination committee of Dragon King Group
Holdings Limited from 14 November 2022 to 28 February 2023, the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8493). Dr. Chung has worked in various organisation including
Technology, Media and Telecommunications companies. Dr. Chung
was a director of TVNET.HK since 2004 and a chairman of China
Dragon Foundation Creature Fuel Technology (International) Limited
from 2007 to 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho (“Dr. Cheng”), aged 54, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 30 October 2023. He
holds a doctoral degree of Philosophy in Economics from the
University of Brighton, a Master degree in Urban Design from
the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science in Engineering
(Mechanical Engineering) and a Master of Business Administration
in Finance. He has over 29 years of experiences in various kinds of
valuation included but not limited to real estate valuation, business
valuation, plant and machinery valuation and forensic valuation.
He has been involved in over 100 IPOs and M&A cases over the
last ten years. He is an independent non-executive director of
Polyard Petroleum International Group Limited (stock code: 8011),
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1 April 2021 and he was
an independent non-executive director of North Mining Shares
Company Limited (stock code: 0433), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 12
April 2001 to 1 April 2022. He is a Fellow of Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, Certified Management Accountants
Australia, Association of International Accountants, Institute of Public
Accountants, Institute of Financial Accountants, The Royal Society
of Medicine, The Royal Statistical Society, Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, The Hong Kong
Institute of Environmentalists, The Society of Operations Engineers,
and Institution of Plant Engineers. He is also Member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Surveyors, The Certified Public Accountants
Association, The Society of Chartered Environmentalists, Hong Kong
Institute of Engineers, the China Real Estate Appraisers and Agents,
American Society of Civil Engineers, The Institute of Engineering and
Technology, The American Society For Microbiology, The Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Institute of Industrial and
Systems Engineers, American Society of Mechanical Engineers,
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators and the Society of Petroleum
Engineers.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael (“Mr. Ngai”), aged 36, is the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2021. Mr. Ngai has over ten years of
experience in legal industry and had obtained his Bachelor of Laws
and postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong
Kong in 2011 and 2012, respectively. He is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong, and currently a partner of Khoo & Co., and the principal
of Michael Ngai & Co. He also serves as a company secretary of
various companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ngai had
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
YE2024.
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E5EHRS
Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 153 to 154.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
reporting period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

EFRIHLEBE_TMEAS=HAL
FEZFRREBREEYBRE
FEXRH

AATA—BMREERAT - EHBABZ
IEEBBNE AU HRRE220
XL

FEBZEBOBEHRNEFREEER
Rofr—Ee

ES
FAEERE_S-NEAA=HHLFES

FEBEHNE13E14EZ RGBT REM
EEHBRmERA -

ME BB K&

FERNFERZNE -BERR
REFEMB|RRMEI9

REBEEBFEH

Az s

REHRNERT ZRAEHFBH NGRS
FEIRFRMIFE36 0

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R



E5EHRS
Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for payment
or distributions of dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. No
distribution reserves of the Company was recorded as at 30
September 2024 (as at 30 September 2023: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Guoming
Mr. Wu Chunyao
(appointed on 30 October 2023)
Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur
(appointed on 13 May 2024)
Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Chief Executive Officer
(retired on 29 April 2024)
Mr. Duan Fanfan
(resigned on 30 October 2023)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chen Long
(retired on 29 April 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho
(appointed on 30 October 2023)
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continuea)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur and Dr.
Chung Ling Cheong Dicky will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. No director has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). The non-
executive Director has a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years commencing on the date of respective
appointment. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
as a service contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing on the date of their respective appointment but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

As at 30 September 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (Continued)

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

7

EENRZ HHHENZED

7
REAT 2%

TR AR DEFRRSTHRABFRFE
ABRMN - BEARNDRESZHFEMHBER

Corporate Percentage of
Directors Interests Long (L) or short (S) position interests
BEE BREITHAER RE)EE FRL)TKE(S) =Pl
Mr. Wu Guoming 16,237,500 L 3.56%
SEBPLE

L: Long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2024, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2024, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of SFO, and so far as is known
to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no person
(other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had, or
was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 20 August 2020 and refresh the scheme mandate limited of the
Share Option Scheme pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company on
16 June 2022. The Share Option Scheme is a long-term incentive
scheme of the Company to reward its employees, Directors and
other eligible participants for their contributions to the Group and
to assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high-calibre
employees and other eligible participants who are instrumental to the
growth and development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include: (a) any
employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime or part-time and
including any executive Director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (b) any non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (c) any
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity; and (f) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any invested entity, and any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes.

Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options (excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed)
which have been or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 45,586,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme and 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
end of Reporting Period and the date of approval of this report. The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

As at the date of this report, no share option had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 54.9% of the revenue of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 29% of the total
revenue.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 89.4% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 34.4% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the requirement under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules during the year ended 30 September 2024.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 September 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2024, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in pages 28 to 30 to this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Share consolidation and rights issue

On 15 November 2024, the Company proposed to implement share
consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”) on the basis that every ten
(10) issued and unissued existing shares with par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company will be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share with par value of HK$0.10 each. Subject
to the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the Company
proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$51.1 million
before expenses by way of rights issue of up to 182,344,000 rights
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.28 per rights share on the
basis of four (4) rights shares for every one (1) consolidated share
held at the close of business on the record date.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 November 2024 and 27 December 2024.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.
Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors of
the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019. There
has been no change in auditors since the date of appointment. RSM
Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to
reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorize the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Guoming
DIRECTOR

30 December 2024
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix C1 to
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 30 September 2024.

The Company has not appointed a chairman since 19 April 2018,
nor has it appointed a chief executive since the departure of Mr.
Wang Wenzhou, former Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer, on 29 April 2024.

The Board will continue to review the current structure periodically
and will appoint candidates with suitable knowledge, skills, and
experience as chairman and chief executive of the Company, if and
when identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 30 September 2024.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the year ended 30 September 2024, the Board’s composition
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings
during the year ended 30 September 2024 are set out in the table
below:

EEXG

FABREFE ((BEFg) BB RFEAE
EREREEAAT -BEFEERETAEE
AEBCZEH HEHEEEERBRMI
EFEREAEREBZRBRAM  LE
BEFSREAEENEEEER £X%F
Rk RREE

BE_Z_NFNB=THLFE EFE
BREREUEERBE_Z_MFAA=T
BLtFEYRESZEER EFEECTH
RERREHERESHNTE:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year

ERURRY ARENETEERE

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ANEER
EXgeH HMZEEE REZES BEn%8g e
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wu Guoming REBWELE 3/5 N/A N/A N/A oA
TEA NEm TEA
Mr. Wu Chunyao RERAE MZBZ=F 445 N/A N/A N/A 17
(appointed on 30 October 2023) +B=+HEZA) TER @R TER
Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur BREELE RZBZME 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 13 May 2024) LB+=HEZA) TEH EH TEm NEA
Mr. Wang Wenzhou, IXBEE THEH 1/3 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chief Executive Officer (RZB-mE TEA NEm TEA
(retired on 29 April 2024) mEZ+ABEA)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Chen Long BEeRE (RZZZNEF 03 N/A N/A N/A 0/
(retired on 29 April 2024) MAZ+hBER TER TER TER
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BiIEHTES
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RERE 1/5 11 11 2/2 11
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky EJERL 5/5 11 11 2/2 11
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho PRREL (RZB_=F 445 0/1 0/1 2/2 17

(appointed on 30 October 2023)

TR=+HEZH)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2024, the Board held five
Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 23 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 September 2024 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr. Wu Chunyao, Mr.
Chan Ting Leuk Arthur, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Dr. Chung Ling
Cheong Dicky and Dr. Cheng Chak Ho engaged in business activities
in their respective fields as continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant. Mr.
Leung Oh Man, Martin has participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Directors also participated in other
trainings and professional developments such as attending seminars,
studying reading materials relating to the Group or its industries and
businesses; rules and regulations; business management; or the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) held one meeting during the year ended
30 September 2024. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed
and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including that for
the executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to
executive directors and senior management of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines set
out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. The
remuneration paid and payable to the Directors for the year ended
30 September 2024 is set out in note 15(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the year ended 30 September 2024
is set out below:

FriMsEE

Remuneration of band

TR B

THRHAEEREERT HRESIE
ERMBETHESTEZEE TAEEEE
i UREZRBAMESFRIREZEME
HHARBERN ZBREFT NAERELR
EEBETRENEERERERNERF-

ANERKRHFNEES

BE_T_NFENAA=+tHLEEFEE  ANE
BRFHNEES (HNEEE) BT —RE
ZoFMEEECERKIERER (B
HITES) 2#FMER REEBERTES
RERERRE ZHNKT A BRETFA
ez eS|l EfmNEZE G - B E B
BEZ-—SRNEFTRRBAHNATEEKS
REEENFMEFRE - BE_T _MFAA
“tHIEFE BEARBAEEZHMEN
AR B|RARMEE15()

BE_T_NFNAA=+HLEEE Btk
BASREERE CEEES) HINIRER
BloesanT

Number of
Individuals

A

HK$0 — HK$500,000 077t - 500,000# 7T
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarised as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the

performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

Between the resignation of Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester, a former
independent non-executive Director, on 2 August 2023 and the date
of this report, the Company had an all-male board. The Company
expects to appoint a female director on or before 31 December 2024
to enhance diversity among the Board’s members.

As at 30 September 2024, there were a total of 59 full-time
employees, with the male-to-female ratio of 58% to 42%. For
further details regarding our hiring practices, please refer to the
section of this

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”

annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for identifying potential new directors and making
recommendations to the Board for decision. A director appointed by
the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
30 September 2024 and work performed included reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of new
Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2024, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and work per formed included reviewing the
Group’s half-yearly and annual results, its risk management and
internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$1,000,000 and approximately HK$265,000,
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services during the year.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$599,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services during the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
financial reporting. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable.

They are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparation of the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 149 to 152.

The auditors did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred a net loss of HK$10,766,000 for the
year ended 30 September 2024, and as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$104,067,000.
The Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$14,515,000
at that date as disclosed in note 42. In addition, the Group was
also in default in respect of the principal amount of non-convertible
bonds totalling HK$550,000 as of 30 September 2024. These events
and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon measures
taken by the directors to improve the Group’s financial position, cash
flows and profitability and the financial supports from one Director
of the Company, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained below.

The Directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements by
preparing a Group cashflow forecast for the eighteen-month period
ending 31 March 2026. Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a shareholder
and a director of the Company, as at 30 September 2024, has
agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group
will be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Mr. Wu agreed to pledge their properties as
collaterals, if necessary, to borrow funds to provide financial support
to the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

However, the auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy themselves that Mr. Wu had the financial
resources to provide the required level of financial support to the
Group. Mr. Wu agreed to pledge their properties to provide financial
support to the Group. Based on the market valuations of the
properties, the auditors considered that it was uncertain whether Mr.
Wu would be able to borrow funds using their properties as collateral
at the level necessary to support the Group’s liquidity requirements.
In addition, they were unable to ascertain whether Mr. Wu had any
personal liabilities which would affect their credit standing and ability
to borrow against the pledged properties. Accordingly, the auditors
were unable to determine the appropriateness of preparing the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of finance
to continue as going concern. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet it financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of the Group
and after taking into consideration the following:

(1) implementing stronger measures aiming at improving the
liquidity and financial position of the Group, including but not
limited to closely monitoring the operating costs;

(2) reviewing and shortening the reporting intervals and improving
follow up measures on receivables collection. As at 30
November 2024, approximately HK$1,423,000, or 7.80% of
our trade receivables as at 30 September 2024 was settled;

(3) negotiating with non-convertible bondholders to extend the
maturity date of the bonds once mature;

(4) negotiating with the Group’s suppliers and related companies
to extend the payment terms;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

(5)  Mr. Wu, Executive Director of the Company, will continue to
provide financial support to the Group including the availability
to pledge various properties in Tianjin and Shanghai, the
PRC. According to a preliminary valuation summary prepare
by an independent valuer, these properties worth over
RMB33,904,000. He has undertaken not to require the
Company to repay the loans until such time when repayment
will not affect the ability of the Group to repay other creditors in
the normal course of business;

(6) looking for new bank facilities and other borrowings from other
banks and financial institutions; and

(7) exploring various equity financing options, including the

proposed rights issue as disclosed above.

The management considered that the proposed measures
mentioned above, if successful, could improve the Group’s liquidity
and therefore could help to address the audit matter. However, as
the management’s assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern for the purposes of preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 September
2024 has to take into consideration of the future conditions and
circumstances and could only be made at the end of the relevant
reporting period, the management is unable to ascertain at this
moment whether the audit matter can be removed in the next
financial year purely based on the Company’s measures above.

The audit committee has discussed with the Company, reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2024, and agreed with the going concern basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and to finalise and implement the
action plans for addressing the disclaimer of opinion.

The audit committee has also discussed with the Auditors and
reviewed the disclaimer of opinion and the basis of disclaimer of
opinion.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance
and internal audit functions.

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Besides, management continues to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function to an independent external assurance provider, who
has conducted a review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 30 September 2024. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing
their implementation by management, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible for
reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility strategies,
principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and overseeing
practices and procedures; and monitoring progress on the
Company’s corporate social responsibility and related activities.

The following highlights the key risk management measures under
the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements
made by the Group for the period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

1st line of defence - Risk management

Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have been
established and complied with.

Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance promptly
when needed.

The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate goals.

The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated with
new business activities and environments, including emerging
risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was adopted
to address risks across various subsidiaries of the Group, to
assess those risks on an integrated group-wide basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal audit, is
subject to review annually, covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s operations, businesses and service units. The results of
these audit activities are communicated to the Audit Committee and
key members of senior management of the Group. Audit issues are
tracked, followed up for proper implementation, and their progress
are reported to the Audit Committee and senior management of the
Group (as the case may be) periodically. The external assurance
provider for internal audit provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the senior management of the
Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an effective
and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage
the risks associated with its business and operations. This policy
is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of the Group
through a holistic and integrated framework so that all material risks
faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification, measurement, reporting
and mitigation;

(i) set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(ily develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business strategy;
and

(iv)  enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across the
Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael, the company secretary of the Company,
has complied with the relevant professional training under Rules 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 September 2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations, the
level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains a non-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at www.
globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may put to the Board any enquiries about the Group through
its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or in writing sent
to the principal office of the Company at Unit 52, 2/F., Fu Lee
Loy Mansion, 9-27 King Wah Road, North Point,
The Directors, company secretary or other appropriate members

Hong Kong.

of senior management respond to enquiries from shareholders
promptly. The Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees
(or their respective delegates) and external auditors attend the
annual general meeting and are available to answer questions raised
by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the Company’s
corporate website for the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution was passed at the annual general meeting held
on 14 April 2023 to adopt the amended articles of association of
the Company for the purposes of, among others, (i) bringing the
existing Articles of Association in line with the amendments made
to Appendix 3 of the GEM Listing Rules and applicable laws of the
Cayman lIslands; (i) providing flexibility to the Company in relation
to the conduct of general meetings by allowing the Company
to hold hybrid or electronic general meetings of shareholders;
and (i) making other consequential and housekeeping changes.
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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IRIE - HEREBRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

PREAMBLE

Being an investment holding company, Global Strategic Group
Limited (the “Company”) with its subsidiaries (collectively, “the
Group”) operates a wide range of businesses, including the
natural gas supply and pipeline installation, and provision of
leasing business of the steel support axial force servo system in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In recent years, in recognition of anthropogenic impacts to the
environment and the associated impacts on the exploitation
of resources, there has been a global urge to protect the
environment and to promote environment-friendly practices,
such as resource conservation. As emerging crises, including
climate change, environmental degradation, resource scarcity,
and associated economic stability, are imminent, the Group has
been exploring possible solutions and the transition to a clean
energy system is one of them.

In addition to the PRC’s policies and measures on accelerating
energy transition, including the “Energy in China’s New Era”
(GG EAETREEE)) and “Energy Production and
Consumption Transition Strategy” ((FEREEFHE EMmE
B%)), the Group is committed to aligning with the international
and national targets and regulations to provide safe and stable
supply of natural gas, while minimising the environmental
impacts.

Meanwhile, with one of its aims to accelerate the development
of the nation’s new infrastructure to reduce emissions from
2025 onwards, the PRC's 14th Five Year Plan (T F 3§
2l) has introduced business opportunities for the Group’s
steel support axial force servo system business. The Group is
committed to support the nation’s construction projects and
provide the leasing services of safe and robust steel support
axial force servo system, aiding to the contribution of the
nation’s prosperous economy.
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PREAMBLE (continued)

Since establishment, the Group has emphasised its mission
of creating a positive impact to society, promoting sustainable
practices, and delivering shared values to its stakeholders.
To further enhance its sustainability performance and fulfil
its environmental and social responsibility, the Group has
embedded the principle of sustainability into its strategy and
business operations and implemented related measures to
increase the awareness of environmental protection among its
staff members.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

In compliance with the requirement under Appendix C2 -
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(“ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the Group is pleased to present
its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
for the financial year from 1 October 2023 to 30 September
2024 (“FY2024” or “the year under review”),

the Group’s performance and approach in terms of ESG

demonstrating

management and corporate sustainable development for
FY2024 under “Comply or Explain” provision.

Boundary Setting

Adopting the operational control approach, the Group defines
the scope of this ESG Report in accordance with the discrete
analysis of its business operations in FY2024. The reporting
boundary of the Group includes the headquarter office in
Hong Kong, its Sales and leasing business in Shanghai
and its Natural gas operations in Yichang the PRC, which
represented the majority of the Group’s annual revenue.
The Group considers these operating segments as relatively
significant with an in-depth analysis of its business impacts
from economic, environmental, and social perspectives. Based
on the application of the Materiality principle, the operations of
Independent financial advisory are not included.
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continuea)

Boundary Setting (Continued)

For corporate governance-related information, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report of the Group’s 2024 Annual
Report.

Reporting Principles

This ESG Report has been prepared with reference to the
Reporting Principles illustrated in the ESG Guide of the Stock
Exchange. Based on the reporting principles that underpin the
preparation of the ESG Report, the main ESG performance of
the Group in FY2024 has been evaluated and presented by
following the principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance,
and Consistency.

Materiality:

The Group focused on the principle of Materiality to identify
the ESG issues with the most significant impacts and the
most relevance to the operations of the Group. In FY2024,
the Group conducted its annual materiality assessment
via online questionnaires and the communication with its
selected stakeholder representatives for the collection of
their expectations and feedback regarding ESG issues. The
assessment results were then reviewed by the board of
directors (the “Board”) and the outcomes were approved
and verified by the leaders of the Group. As a result, the final
outcomes establish the content base of this ESG Report and
inform the sustainability strategy and actions of the Group in
the future. For further information, please refer to the section
Materiality Assessment.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continuea)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Quantitative:

Following the principle of Quantitative, the Group organises
and discloses its environmental and social performance in
terms of various Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”), including
emissions, consumption of natural resources, and employment
information, allowing a clear understanding of the Group’s ESG
performance for its stakeholders. The relevant sources of the
assumptions and conversion factors used are listed clearly in
the footnote of the corresponding performance tables.

Balance:

To depict an unbiased and comprehensive ESG performance to
general readers and its stakeholders, the Group abides by the
principle of Balance to transparently disclose its sustainability
performance with both outstanding achievements and areas for
improvement in FY2024.

Consistency:

To allow peer benchmarking and meaningful comparison
across years, the Group’s disclosure framework and the
methodology of data calculation remain consistent over these
years. Meanwhile, to facilitate the understanding of general
readers and the Group’s stakeholders, clear explanations will
be provided in the corresponding sections if there are any
significant changes in the reporting framework or other key
reporting elements.
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continuea)
Information Disclosure

The information presented in the ESG Report was gathered
from various channels, including official documents, statistics,
and internal policies within subsidiaries of the Group. It also
includes verifiable evidence of the implementation of ESG
practices in the Group, feedback from staff via online surveys
that consist of both quantitative and qualitative questions
based on the reporting framework, and verified data of the
Group’s annual performance in business operations and
sustainable development. A complete index table is available
at the end of the ESG Report for the reader’s convenience to
check its integrity.

The Group will publish the ESG Report in respect of the
financial year ended 30 September 2024 on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk) at the same
time as its Annual Report is published. The ESG Report will
be accessible under the “Investor Relations” section of the
Company’s website.

This Report is prepared in both English and Chinese. In case of
any conflict or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Over the years, the Company has aligned with the highest
standards and aimed to maintain a strong corporate
governance and management system. The Group periodically
strengthens its practices and measures under the oversight
and monitoring of the Board, ensuring there is long-term
sustainable value delivered to all stakeholders. Business
operations and activities of the Group are conducted
by aligning with its core values, including care, integrity,
respect, collaboration, transparency, and commitment. The
sustainability-focused approach with regular stakeholder
engagement guides the risk management and opportunities
identification of the Group, facilitating continuous
improvements of the Group.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continuea)

The Board, which is the highest authority taking ultimate
responsibilities for overseeing all ESG-related issues, policies
and reporting, holds the overall accountability for the oversight
of the Group’s execution of its sustainability strategies in a
top-to-bottom manner. With years of experience and insight,
the Board understands the importance of identifying and
addressing ESG-related risks and opportunities, particularly
those associated with climate-related issues. As part of its
responsibilities, the Board regularly reviews the internal policies
of the Group, including the Code of Conduct and Operation
Manual, to ensure that they are in the right direction with
evolving ESG objectives and standards.

In addition, the Board strictly monitors the overall governance
processes and delegates specific areas of responsibility to the
standing committees to assist with the efficient discharge of its
responsibilities. The Management, composed of leaders across
the Company, is responsible for managing and integrating
sustainable initiatives into daily operations and reporting the
updates of the Group’s material ESG issues to the Board.
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lll. APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued) . AIFHEERAME @

ESG Management Structure
ESGEA#EIE

The Board EE5&

Assumes leadership and advisory role for

overseeing the performance and operations of the

Group

e Qversees all ESG-related issues and performance
based on the core value of the Group

e Approves the sustainability strategies and targets
of the Group

* Responds to solving stakeholder expectations

* Reviews management updates and enterprise risk
assessment

BREESERGERMNEENRERALHAE

o MREEENZLEE EEEFTAMEESCHERZEEK
B

o HESENTRHEREHRKER

o EHTETEEMF HABREERE

o EREEEMENhEZERRERTE

Standing Committees THAEZEE

Assist the Board carry out its duties and

responsibilities

e Enhance the understanding and knowledge of the
Board on the ESG landscape

e Develop forward-looking plans through monitoring
and assessing strategic risk exposure and
opportunities identified

e Recommend opportunities to strengthen the goals
and targets with reference to the operational
experience learning and feedback

BHEFEERITHE

s REEFRGHRE -HEKREBRBN T BINH

o EMBEAIMET (LA E R R R O R iE o
TE R ST B

s REEELHAMBMANERR BHREMBERKE
RS

Management 2 [E

Oversees the implementation of sustainability initiatives within the Group

e Delivers the strategic direction and targets to be approved by the Board

e Monitors the progress of implementation of the sustainability aspiration plans regularly
e Promotes the corporate culture within the company

EEEEANAREAZREZENER
s XNERERITAKERTESTHE

s EHREANTRFESERIFINERES

s HEABRBAEHEEXIE

Business Units ¥ #5ZBF9

Execute the policies according to the top-down instructions
e Share the cumulative experiences in sustainability building throughout the Group
e Report material ESG-related risks and opportunities in daily operations

RiFB LM TS < HMITHRE

s NEREEEEENFBERSTAENRELR
s REHREETHIRR HERELEBNERERREE
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continuea)

The Group recognises the significance of robust corporate
governance and responsible practices on contributing to a
more sustainable future. With the top-down management
approach, the accountability of the Board and the management
can be strengthened so as to deliver long-term value for the
Group’s stakeholders and ensure the effective fulfilment of
strategic objectives.

For years, the Group has put efforts to minimise its negative
environmental and social impacts during its operations. The
Finance Department has been assigned to carry out regular
reviews, and external consultants are engaged to convey
the latest industrial best practices to the Board, ensuring
sustainable strategies and practices of the Group adhere to the
latest ESG-related policies and the leadership is fully aware of
the progressing sustainable development to address potential
ESG risks promptly.

Acknowledging the importance of setting goals in action-
motivation, the Group has developed a series of ESG-
related targets for measuring the progress and monitoring
the performance of the key ESG-related issues of the Group.
Due to its business nature focusing on the operations of
natural gas intermediate services, the Group has set a series
of environmental targets specifying in the later section of this
ESG Report. To ensure these targets are consistent with the
overall mission of the Group and necessary adjustment of the
business strategies are carried out, the Board is responsible
for keeping track of the progress and completion of targets
with reference to well-defined KPlIs. Under the leadership
of the Board, the management conducts regular reviews
of the governance framework of the Group, allowing the
implementation of sustainable practices to fulfil the legal
requirements and the expectations of stakeholders. More
information of the Group’s management approaches in both the
environmental and social aspects are elaborated under different
sections of this ESG Report.
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continuea)

Board Statement
Dear valued stakeholders,

At Global Strategic, we have spared no efforts in exploring and
adopting sustainable business models and integrating our ESG
leadership across the business approach and operations. On
behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report
of the Group for the financial year ended 30 September 2024,
illustrating our performance and the progress against our ESG
goals and our commitment to sustainable practices.

Our Approach and Strategy

The Group, being the largest domestic gas supplier in Yichang,
is dedicated to contributing to positive impacts to society
while providing a safe and stable gas supply. As we consider
responsible business practices as the critical element for
facilitating the well-being of our communities, as well as our
long-term success, we have incorporated sustainable practices
into our initiatives across our value chain, ranging from supply
chain management to operational efficiency. By implementing
robust governance measures, we ensure accountability,
compliance, and ethical conduct in all aspects of our business.

. AIFEERA R @

EHHmAERE

FRKBEERFRAS  RMOFER
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continuea)

Board Statement (Continued)
Our Approach and Strategy (Continued)

Proactive engagement with stakeholders is the key to our ESG
approach. We value the feedback from our stakeholders, and
we believe that the engagement with our stakeholders can
facilitate transparent communication and collaboration. Under
the oversight of the Board, the Group’s ESG-related risks that
may have a significant impact on business operations are
identified and prioritised with processes of annual stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. Specifically, we focus
on climate-related risks, which may gradually bring influential
impacts to both the Group and the local communities. With
reference to the insights from stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessments, the Board ensures that the identified
ESG risks meet the concerns and expectations of our diverse
stakeholder groups while strengthening our commitment to
sustainable and responsible business practices. For detailed
understanding of our ESG landscape and the processes of
our risk identification and prioritisation, please refer to the
Stakeholders Engagement and Materiality Assessment section.

Meanwhile, our overall strategy adopts components of
innovation, resilience, and responsible resources management.
As part of our commitment to moving towards a more
sustainable future, we have allocated considerable resources
in exploring the opportunities of investing in clean energy
transition and advancing technology-driven initiatives, while
always placing operational safety as the first priority. We also
collaborate with local communities, governments, and industry
partners to deliver holistic and impactful ESG outcomes.

Moreover, the Group has divided the responsibilities for
dealing with material ESG issues in a clear and well-defined
manner in order to effectively achieve sustainability in aspects
of environmental, social, and governance with the joint
collaboration of all employees. For the Standing Committee,
they will perform audits on the implementation of ESG
measures when necessary, and the outcomes will be reviewed
by the Board for making well-informed decisions.
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (continued)
Board Statement (Continued)
Our Aspirations

Apart from economic growth of the Group, we are dedicated to
extend our success to the positive change brought to the local
communities and the environment. While delivering safe and
reliable natural gas to customers, we strive to make positive
contributions. During the year under review, our ESG targets
were reviewed to ensure the alignment with the international
and national sustainability goals, while meeting the overall
mission of the Group. In addition to the group-level targets,
each subsidiary has its own responsible person appointed to
be in charge of formulating specific annual targets, which are
then validated by the Board.

In FY2024, the Board and its standing committee emphasise
to monitor the progress of meeting the ESG targets and the
implementation of the applicable practices. Furthermore, the
Board monitors the progress of achieving our aspirations by the
oversight of corresponding performance disclosure in the ESG
Report annually.

Our Climate Resilience

With the emerging global climate-related crises, there is an
urge to combat climate change and achieve carbon neutrality.
We, being a company with its business primarily focuses on the
provision of natural gas, acknowledge the occurrence of the
potential impacts brought by climate change to our business
operations. Therefore, our environmental targets are designed
based on science, as well as the “30.60” national pledge.
The targets are reviewed periodically, ensuring our alignment
with the national goal of leading the world in addressing the
emerging climate-related issues. Additionally, the Board is
committed to adopting a proactive and adaptive approach for
securing the long-term sustainability within the Group.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continuea)

Board Statement (Continued)
Our Climate Resilience (Continueq)

We strive to combat and mitigate climate change and adopt
climate resilience for continuous improvement. One of the
approaches we adopted is to invest in renewable energy
and increase energy efficiency, aiming to minimise the
environmental impacts during our operations. While mitigative
initiatives are carried out, we proactively implement adaptive
measures against the changing climate through stringent
risk assessments and strategies designed for enhancing
our resilience. We are committed to collaborate with our
stakeholders, including governments, NGOs, and local
communities, to formulate more comprehensive strategies
to address climate challenges and combat climate change
together.

Looking forward, the Group will be facing new but unknown
challenges in its future operations. However, with rich
experience from years of operations, we are dedicated to
maximising our capability to overcome the upcoming obstacles
and continue to implement ESG strategies for a more
sustainable future. Through collaboration, we remain confident
that the joint efforts will help strive the Group to its ongoing
improvement, leading the global energy transition and bringing
positive impacts to both the communities and the environment.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude towards our dedicated staff,
loyal business partners, understanding shareholders, valuable
customers and other stakeholders for their continuous support
throughout the journey of the transition towards a more
sustainable corporate.

Wu Guoming
Executive Director

30 December 2024
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

The Group emphasises stakeholder engagement on its journey
towards responsible and sustainable corporate governance.
Through active engagement with key stakeholders, the Group
obtains the opportunities to demonstrate transparency,
facilitate open and informed dialogues and share its
sustainability commitments and achievements. The Group
understands that every stakeholder has its own concerns
and expectations and it plays a specific role in sustainable
development, thus, the Group values the opportunities to
receive feedback from its stakeholders and address the related
issues concerned.

To update the Group’s new ESG objectives and performance,
there are regular engagement with its key stakeholders.
Feedback and expectations of the key stakeholders are
collected during the engagement, enhancing the development
of the Group’s sustainability approaches. Results presented in
the section below reveal the meaningful feedback of the key
stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, government, and the general public. The Group
proactively maintains close contacts with its stakeholders via
their preferred communication channels, which are summarised
in the following table.

Stakeholder group Engagement channels

IV.

Mm A& S H

rEBTERESEMAIFERFER
ERER L AN GEEENS R
ERETENTEEERGZEE &%
BARERTNEHE REQARMAE
W WD ZHARE S RBAE R
MoAERRABAESUN nRBELSES
XENRAERNAE TEIFEERE
T RERENAG -EHIL ZEEP
REWADBRERBESR - #BRIER
FZBENKE -

7 BHMESGH EBY B RMEN > &EE
EHERE T 2N mARERE - T128
Bt AERSWEFTEN mERE
WREEREME  tMmEBCAERA
SEERTHNER UTHOERRT
BERR BT -BF HER  BFM
AREANEITEN G BAENEAER
WREER AEEZBHENDHARE
BENBEBRE W TFm) - EmkEth
PIRFEHE -

Topics of interest/concern

FmERAE BEEE RCEB R EE
Shareholders o Annual report o Business strategies and financial
BB o IR performance

e Annual general meetings ¢  EFERBEKRBERIR

e RERBEKRE e Corporate governance

e  Corporate website o 1EEAR

e  AEIHELL . Business sustainability

e Direct communication o  EWUREM

o EHEER e Human Resource Allocation

e Questionnaires or online e APERKE

engagement

e MEHBEWAERSH
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholder group

Engagement channels

IV. F]EtHEAERZ2E @

Topics of interest/concern

M= HRAE BIBRE R R ER R
Employees ° Interviews ° Rights and benefits
(== e o HEFKREH
o Training sessions o Employee compensation
o HFHIERAE e  EEM=E
o Internal memos ° Training and development
e AHETEE o  HEIlIRERE
° Questionnaires or online o Working hours
engagement o TIEREH
e MERHBLEHRDHE e Qccupational health and safety
e WERRHELR
° Communication effectiveness
o EBBEMNM
° Environmental protection
o IRIGRE
Customers ° Direct communication and e Products and service quality
BE emails e ERKREE=S
o EHERBEBKEI e Service safety and stability
e Complaint hotlines e REZEMKRETMH
o IHRAVG e Protection of privacy
e Opinion boxes o FARRMRME
e ER7E
° Customer surveys
s ERFAB
Suppliers o Business meetings ° Fulfilment of promises
HEER e  EHEH e BTG
° Tenders o Payment schedule
e BF o  IREER
o Telephone discussions o Regular updates on business and
o EiEET i product requirements

° Written comments or
responses

e ZHERHWME

e TEHEMEBKREREZNK

o Transparency on ESG issues
e ESGEEMBEHE

° Quality ESG management

s RYFHIESGEE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

IV. FlmfEfERNS8R @

Stakeholder group Engagement channels Topics of interest/concern

F=HRAE BIBEERE R R ERERE

Government o Statutory filings and Compliance with law and regulations
BT notification BEPARER

o ERXHEERE

° Regulatory or voluntary
disclosures

e EENBREEKE

° Tax return

o MNIRFRIRES

General public ° Community activities
DR e  HEEH

o Corporate donations
S S ]

Materiality Assessment

As different stakeholders have their own specific backgrounds
and concerns, the identification of the ESG risks and
opportunities for the Group depends on their feedback.
Therefore, materiality assessment is an essential step for the
Group to receive, evaluate, and integrate its stakeholders’
opinions into its strategies. Regular materiality assessments
are conducted by the Group to ensure expectations of its
stakeholders are collected through continuous engagement.

Fulfilment of tax obligation
BITMBEE
Environmental protection
BHR

Fair employment opportunities
NERERS

Environmental awareness

IR R & B

EE

FENGZEBEAAREN T RN
B ANE EHESGRE A B0 #
ARAIBCAR AN REER - HIb &
EMFERAERREMD A=A
HERBER URELERERMAHSR
BRARMBESH AEBTEHETEES
b RGREBFERR  WEHF
HAAMENHRE-
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

In FY2024, well-selected stakeholder representatives were
invited to participate in a materiality assessment survey
conducted by an external consultancy agency. Responses
of the questionnaire, which is designed with reference to the
overarching mission and business development of the Group,
were then used for developing the materiality matrix in later
part of this section. The matrix represents the concerned ESG
issues of the Group’s key stakeholders, enabling the Group
to formulate more effective strategies and plans for ESG
management.

The Group adopted a stepwise process for topic identification,
prioritisation, and validation to ensure that relevant
sustainability topics are being managed and reported in
accordance with their materiality.

(1) Identification

With reference to the internationally-recognised reporting
frameworks, a list of 28 fundamental sustainability topics
was identified under the latest sustainability landscape,
which were recognised to have potential environmental
and social impacts throughout the operations of the
Group, as shown below.
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continued)

(1) Identification (Continued)

10

11

12

13

14

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Greenhouse Gas “GHG” Emissions
AEREE (TGHG) HEIK

Energy Management

BEREIE

Water and Wastewater Management
KERMEKERE

Solid Waste Stewardship
EfEEEYER

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
RIZECEETERE

Renewable and Clean Energy
AREMNSRER

Labour Practices

BT

Employee Remuneration and Benefits
1 B Fr R - A2 A BUR
Occupational Health and Safety
BxRERREze

Employee Development and Training
BB & EkE

Green Procurement

KBRS

Engagement with Suppliers
BHEENREBR

Environmental and Social Risk Management
of Supply Chain
HERNIREHEARERE

Supply Chain Resilience

fH & 5 7O T PR

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

IV. FIZEAENSE @
BEMIE (B
(1) #5 @)

Product/Service Quality and Safety

Em/ REEERAZSE

Customer Privacy and Data Security
MR RENBELZ S

Marketing and Promotion

EIHIEE

Intellectual Property Rights

TREER B A

Labelling Relating to Products/Services

B M/ RBERANRERE

Business Ethics and Anti-corruption
MEERNRES

Internal Grievance Mechanism

P &5 BB 3 1

Participation in Philanthropy
RABSEHNDHE

Cultivation of Local Employment
& & i 2

Support of Local Economic Development

S FF A AR 3 R

Business Model Adaptation and Resilience to
Environmental, Social, Political and Economic
Risks and Opportunities

R R HIRG 1 E  BUATEE REA
BB RN IE D

Management of the Legal and Regulatory
Environment (regulation-compliance
management)
FEREBEREECNESNEE CZEERE
1)

Critical Incident Risk Responsiveness
REEMRZRIEEE R

Systemic Risk Management (e.g., Financial
Crisis)

ARERRERE BN /e

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R




I8

HERERRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

2

Prioritisation

To determine the materiality of the selected ESG topics,
well-selected stakeholder representatives, including
general staff, senior management, directors, business
partners, and professional organisations, were invited to
evaluate and provide their ratings against the list of ESG
issues by filling in an online survey. Material issues were
then prioritised, identified and mapped on the materiality
matrix, as shown below, to demonstrate the level of their
importance after analysing the weighted ratings.

IV. FlmfEfERNSHR @

EEMMG (&

2

H#F

R TEFTEESGEENEZ
BE—REI -SREEAE B
E EFOEBHANEEEAME
REVF D EEEWBFIERR L
AE - HWESGE: B RETHE
Re¥D e REBBEREMENFD
ETONREBASEFMN#EE
FE MR U TEEZMEDTER
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Stakeholder Engagement Materiality Matrix
FZEIERAE 2 BRI D IRER

4 O-15
019

o1 0-24

0-22

Importance to External Stakeholders
HIMPFIEERENEEY
0
(o}
B
0

O-23

Importance to the Group

BEKENERYE

O Environmental Impacts RiE &2
O Operating Practices &£ 184

O Leadership & Governance %838 &4

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

O Community Investment ft&@#& &

O Employment and Labour Practices {B{# K% T &R
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

2

3

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Prioritisation (Continued)

Based on the outcome of the materiality matrix, five ESG
issues were identified to have great significance to both
the Group and its stakeholders, namely “Business Ethics
and Anti-corruption”, “Internal Grievance Mechanism”,
“Management of the Legal and Regulatory Environment
(regulation-compliance management)”, “Critical Incident

Risk Responsiveness”, and “Systemic Risk Management”.

Validation

The Board then reviewed and validated the results of the
materiality assessment, allowing the Group to objectively
identify and prioritise the most relevant and important
sustainability issues, as well as implement proper and
effective management policies and internal control
systems in addressing ESG-related issues.

IV. Flm5tHEAERZ2HE @
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

SDGs are launched by the United Nations in 2015, and
the 17 SDGs are a set of goals, targets, and indicators to
provide countries and organisations with guidance to create
a sustainable world by 2030. Besides the top material issues,
the Group believes that its sustainability work should also
contribute to and make progress towards this global initiative.
In FY2024, the Group identified the following seven SDGs that
are materially related to its business and its ESG strategies.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

MmERAE N2 8 @)
EHEAFESRARE

BREERERAKSEN201651
t H17EAREERERR—RYE
B BRNER SESSEMABIE
HiEE J—/(T_ZOSOEZHUF'J 2 — &
FEERNTR SRR ENERE
B AEEBHEAUFELER TF
BREEKRERFHERIEERGER-
TR NMF AEREE T CEA
HEBRESGER Z ) HRIBY Al 5 /&
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (continued) IVv. FIZHEABENSHE =

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) IRHAFEZRREE (&

(Continueqd)

With reference to the results of the stakeholder engagement RIEMNGZEREE2HEETHNER B
exercise, “Target 2: Zero Hunger”, “Target 3: Good Health and 122 ZEEH) - TEES | RIFREFEHETE
Well-being”, “Target 4: Quality Education”, “Target 8: Decent W~ TER4 . BEHES) - TERER8 . 5B
Work and Economic Growth”, “Target 9: Industry, Innovation, EIENKEER - TBE9 B
and Infrastructure”, “Target 10: Reduced Inequalities” and BIFT M BRI - TBZ10 1 B FRFE
“Target 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities” were ZIMRTERN A FERmATE]
identified as the most concerned goals for the sustainability WHEEATNERURFEZERRAME
development of the Group. Concerning the outcome of its HNER -HRMEMEEENRE &&
stakeholders’ opinions, the Group is committed to paying more BN EREELET wAELEE
attention to these areas and allocating more resources on BOEELER-

these goals.

Goal 2: Zero Hunger
BRZ Tl

The Group targets to ensure sustainable food production systems by

ZERO
HUNGER

maintaining ecosystems and strengthening the capacity for climate
change adaptation.

FEESEEBEELERRARMMBBERRBRECNENRBFRIFENR

(CC REERGo

Protectively implement policies to minimise GHG emissions

Conduct risk assessments on extreme weather events and design
corresponding risk management to recognise and reduce its environmental
impacts

Minimise and conserve the use of natural resources

Increase the efficiency of the use of resources
BIREBRRUFEREREREBIK

HiRim R REETRBET G R AN RREIE AR E
HIRENTE

HERIOMNEBRABERNEA

REEREANM G
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IV. FI=MEEAENZ2HE @

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) TRHAUFEZREE (&

(Continueqd)

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

4

RiF
RS E

4

QUALITY
EDUCATION

Goal 3: Good Health and Well-being

BIR= RFEREEN

The Group targets to be the safest natural gas-related company with
zero accident rate.
FEESEARRZE - SRETNXARMERAEER-

e Adopt robust occupational health and safety protocols

e Provide all staff with occupational health and safety training
e Promote the safe use of gas among the public

e [ncrease the frequency of pipeline safety inspection

e Collaborate with local healthcare organizations

s MABRMABNNBERRRZEHE

e REREBTRMUEBMERRKRZR2EI

s MAREFARZEMEA

e BMBEBZEMERE

o HEMBEMBSIF

Goal 4: Quality Education

BiEM: BEHE

The Group targets to ensure equal access for all men and women, and

persons with disabilities to quality education.

TEESTERFRFIEESM IERBREATHETSHESEERS -

e Provide vocation training and occupation health and safety training to
employees regardless of their gender, disabilities and other non-job related
conditions

e Support and promote the equal right of men and women, and persons with
disabilities to access quality education

e TemBIMMA BEKEMETEREANER —ERE TiRHEBEE
Al s G 2 e B B 2 2 1 |

o XFMEEBM LAUERBEALESEEHENTEET
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IV. FIMEEAENZ2HE @

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) IRHAFEZRREE (&

(Continueqd)

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

{SETLER
FiFiEEK

o

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Ak, QIR
Eilig b

Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth

BEN BEILENSEER

The Group targets to promote inclusive economic growth and provide

decent work for all.

FEFEERECANKEER AFBEAREREILE-

e Ensure the work of equal value offers equal pay

e Provide decent job opportunities for all women and men, young people and
disabled people

e Periodically review and adjust compensation structures

e Increase the number of employees from communities of concern in the
workforce

o HEfRE L[ABN

o BAABEBR FRARBEATREBENIEKS

o FHIEE W AR

e WINTERZRIHBNETIAH

Goal 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure

BEA  EXE - BIRMERRHE

The Group targets to support the local development with a focus on

affordable and equitable access in view of increasing energy demand.

ENHSERNERER AEESEXIRFEMZR  EUMITARERA

T HYBEIRERL o

e Develop reliable, sustainable and resilient infrastructure

e Allocate resources to exploration on innovative technologies

e |nvest in upgrading current infrastructures

e Collaborate with suppliers to carry out circular economy practices
throughout the process of raw materials sourcing

o BHEFSE IFHFEKRAMENERR

o NEERRRAIMEM

o WEFMRIRA AWK

o BMHEFMESIE EEMERBENEEAETIERBRLE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IVv. FZHEEAENZE @

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) TRHAUFEZREE (&

(Continueqd)

10 v
A
(=)

v

10 #**

A
(=)

v

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities

BE+ RO FRFEE

The Group targets to reduce inequalities and creates a workplace that

values diversity and inclusion.

FEFEEERVAFEE SEERSKRECEIENI RS

e Formulate and implement comprehensive diversity and inclusion programs

e Ensure transparency in processes of hiring and promotion

e Provide training programs on issue of addressing unconscious bias and
other diversity-related topics

e Periodically review and update compensation structures to ensure equal
pay for equal work

e FHIELEME2EAMNZTIEREEEE

o MERERKEARENERE

o IRMMAEEHRRE RHEMEZ AN EEEI

o THAIBEB KFEMiEME1E iR LA

Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities

BENM  AFERTMTE

The Group targets to create positive legacy and sustainable futures for

the communities where it operates.

FEEEEAHKEMENMERNEREN ERREMAIFHERNRK -

® Provide local job opportunities and pay taxes on time

e Develop safe, resilient and sustainable human settlements

e Promote the use of high-efficient energy and improve service quality for
increasing urban population

e Support initiatives for the preservation of cultural heritage and historical
landmarks within urban areas

o IR (A B 2E Y E W IR BT AR

s BERLZD -FIMKAIFENANEEEM

o RESMIBRNER B BMENNETALNRSKRBES

o ZRAMREW T M & X CIE E K E Lt iR a0 B8
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholders’ feedback

As the Group is dedicated to pursuing excellence, feedback
from stakeholders is highly appreciated, particularly on topics
listed as the most important in the materiality assessment and
its ESG approach and performance. Readers can share their
views with the Group at info@globalstgr.com.hk.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

With growing concerns about climate change and other
environmental crises, the Group has embedded environmental
responsibility into its sustainable strategies and business
operations to show its commitment to reduce its carbon
footprint, mitigate environmental impact, and contribute to a
more sustainable world. Recognising the significance of long-
term sustainability, the Group has developed internal policies,
procedures, and guidelines to standardise the environmental
actions and strictly regulate the emissions and energy
consumption of the Group.

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices
and performance on emissions, use of resources, the
environment and natural resources, as well as climate change
in FY2024. For detailed quantitative information regarding
different categories of emissions and the use of resources,
please refer to Table E1 and Table E2 in the APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.

IV.

MmfEfERN SR @
FIEAMEREER

FEERHBREH FLSEERF
mEAENRERR  LEEHHES
BN ERRIRIERTEENEE
Uk A EBHESGEH $T 8RR o3& E 7]
75 38 7 5 B B9 FE I th hirinfo@globalstgr.
com.hkD ZMFIRIER B o

RIEE

BEAMAYREEECMAMRZEGCR
WHmET AEEERRESERMA
Hom@drBBMEREE U
REDBRES  REREZE UIAE
AFENERFELEM - AEEBERQ
IRARFESEENEEZN  AME
EANBHEBFRIES] MRBIRRF
178 BRARIERI A S BB PER A SERH
#E o

AMEBFEAEER ST F
EHB ERFACRIEMXNERU
RRESEHENEE BUEME -
ERAEBRTRENEERMERE S
HFARE  F2REME AWK —K
E1f1RE2
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions
Law compliance

In FY2024, the Group was in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group regarding environmental protection, which
are the national or local influential laws relating to air
and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
including but not limited to:

° Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (A% A R £ BHIRIEREX) ;

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (7
EANREMBERRISENAZE;

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (FZE A R FHF0E K
SRR E)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes (F2E A\ R HE M B E #2105 RIRIR A
A7%); and

V.

IRIBEE @)
A1 HERY
EESH

RIZ-NHEF  xEFBETH
HRBREAEATEVHERE
BRRA BNEERCREREE
BRI K R 2B BES ~ B E K
BEERRYELNERBEIRIEE
AR BEERER

s FPEAREMBBERE
%
o REARJMBEARSRY

=Pz

o REARKMEASREE
%

o HFEARHANBEEREYS
RIRIBAZE Uk
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Law compliance (Continued)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Conserving Energy (2 A\ R EFM B &L SETRE) .

In FY2024, air pollutants emitted from the Group including
sulphur oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and
particulate matter (“PM”) were primarily generated from
its transportation and operations. Meanwhile, the GHG
emissions were mainly attributed to the combustion of
fossil fuels and electricity consumption during the Group’s
business operations. During the year under review, the
non-hazardous wastewater discharged by the Group
consisted of domestic and industrial wastewater, while
there were no significant amount of hazardous waste or
non-hazardous solid waste recorded. The total emissions
of the Group in FY2024 are summarised in Table E1 in the
section APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE.

Air and GHG Emissions

In FY2024, the total air emissions of the Group, which
were mainly generated from transportation vehicles and
operations, increased slightly when compared with that of
the financial year ended 30 September 2023 (“FY2023").
The rise in air emissions was primarily due to the increase
in gasoline consumption in vehicles and the natural gas
consumption in operations during the year under review.

V. BEEE®

A1 HERY (&
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)
Air and GHG Emissions (Continued)

During the year under review, the direct emissions
(Scope 1) arose from the consumption of gasoline for
transportation and the consumption of natural gas
for operations. For the indirect emissions, electricity
consumption was the primary source of Scope 2
emissions, while business air travel, freshwater and
wastewater treatment, and paper consumption in daily
operations mainly gave rise to Scope 3 emissions.

In FY2024, the GHG emissions pattern remained
unchanged, with Scope 2 emissions from electricity
consumption being the dominant contributor (68.24%).
The total GHG emissions in FY2024 increased compared
to FY2023, with the largest increase in Scope 3 emissions
due to the recovery of business air travel.

1.10%
I 27.50%

GHG Emission Pattern

in FY2023
T SHERERRE
HegiE=t
71.40%
Scope 1 #E— Scope 2 #E = ® Scope 3 HE=

RIEEE @)

A1 HERY (&
R i E RAEHER (&

REEFE ~EENEEER

(BE—) RBEHPAEANA
HHERBREENKRARHE
FEoERBEBER Ao E BHHRE
BHE B EERIR M
E=MREERRSEHEME
ER-HBEEPHNRRBEER
PIT {55 FB AN HBE R BY 338 7K 1 BE 7K BY BE
Ho

A TE MM F RERBHK
BRERTE UBEHERELE
HEE B EA E(68.24%) ¢
(5N 7 [E= = == A =y 1t
MENRERBHMRESHEFTIY
Hn > B AR B 0 R S A 2R = R B9 IR
EmMENHEE -NEERERER
Ko

11.27%

20.49%

GHG Emission Pattern
in FY2024
MR ERE
HepigE=t

68.24%

Scope 1 #E— Scope 2 BEZ Scope 3 #E=
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIZEEE®

(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Air and GHG Emissions (Continued)

A1 HERY (&

To reduce the direct emissions from vehicles transport,

the Group keeps putting its efforts to monitor and control

its vehicle use for transportation through measures and

approaches including:

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Replace energy-intensive fleet vehicles with more
environment-friendly models in a progressive
manner to improve energy efficiency;

Strictly enforce fleet maintenance schedules to
ensure vehicles are working in optimal condition and
minimise emissions from poorly maintained engines;

Promote fuel-efficient driving practices among
drivers, including the prohibition of idling engines,
maintenance of steady vehicle speeds and carry out
proper tire inflation;

Explore opportunities to use more efficient energy
source alternatives;

Adopt remote work and telecommuting to avoid
unnecessary transportation or travel;

Set up scientific and standardised tracking and
reporting systems to monitor and record emissions
data for better decision-making and benchmarking;
and

Cooperate with suppliers and logistics partners to
reduce transportation emissions throughout the
supply chain.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Air and GHG Emissions (Continued)

Regarding indirect emissions, detailed implementation
of the Group’s measures to minimise its GHG emissions
through electricity conservation are illustrated in A.2 Use

of Resources of this ESG Report.

Solid Waste and Wastewater

Non-hazardous waste

In FY2024, no significant amount of non-hazardous
solid waste was generated or recorded. The non-
hazardous wastewater generated by the Group were
primarily domestic and industrial wastewater from daily
operations. The amount of wastewater generated by the
Group during the year under review increased significantly

compared to FY2023.

Although no non-hazardous solid waste discharge was
recorded this year, the Group remains dedicated to
regulating its waste generation and aims to implement

better waste management.

Aligning with the concept of circular economy and
the national waste classification regulation, the Group
promotes the “3R principle — Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle” through the implementation of waste reduction
policies and practices to further minimise the generation

of solid waste at source, including:

° Encourage employees to adopt proper waste

management practices;

V.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste and Wastewater (Continueqd)

Non-hazardous waste (Continued)

° Promote the importance of waste reduction and
recycling among employees;

° Provide reusable cups and cutleries in the offices to
minimise the use of disposable items;

° Establish a comprehensive recycling scheme for
recyclable material including paper, cardboard,
plastics, glass and metals;

° Prepare separable bins for the collection of
recyclable and non-recyclable solid wastes; and

° Collaborate with professional third parties for the
collection, rinsing and processing, and recycling of
the sorted solid waste.

Across years, the Group has established several “waste
less” measures to advance its solid waste management
practices and promote environmentally responsible
disposal methods within the Group, saving the cost and
improving corporate sustainability performance.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste and Wastewater (Continueqd)

Non-hazardous waste (Continued)

In FY2024, the wastewater discharged from the Group
mainly comprised domestic wastewater originating from
offices and industrial wastewater from pipe installation
operations. The Group adhered to the local laws and
regulations relating to wastewater discharge and
developed a wastewater discharge management method
to minimise the impact on water bodies. Domestic
wastewater from offices is directly discharged into the
sewer, while industrial wastewater is treated through
scientific processes and the wastewater quality is
examined before discharge. This ensures its compliance
with statutory requirements, including the concentrations
of suspended solids, COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand),
BOD (Biological Oxygen Demand) and other parameters.

In the meantime, since wastewater discharge largely
reflects the amount of freshwater consumed by the
Group, effective measures to minimise water consumption
in daily operations of the Group, which are further
illustrated in section A.2 Use of Resources, has been
implemented.

Hazardous wastes

The hazardous wastes generated by the Group were
principally comprised of iron oxide and waste mineral
oil from gas pipe installation. The Group adopts clear
protocols and conducts regular inspections to closely
monitor the handling procedures of hazardous waste
at each stage, ensuring that hazardous waste is well-
managed. After the step of waste collection, all hazardous
wastes will be handled, processed and disposed of by
authorised professional agencies.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste and Wastewater (Continueqd)

Hazardous wastes (Continued)

In FY2024, the Group did not generate or record any

significant amount of hazardous waste.

Noise

The noise produced by the Group primarily attributed
to the operation of construction equipment, such as

bulldozers, during pipe installation activities.

In compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environmental Noise (FZEARENHIRIZIRE 53
B53785%)) and other applicable regulations, the Group
has taken noise control initiatives to reduce noise
generated during the operations. Moreover, the Group
assigned specialised personnel to take the responsibility
for conducting regular inspections of the equipment for
detecting and rectifying any malfunctions promptly, so
as to avoid excessive noise. Furthermore, the Group has
designed noise-proof equipment rooms to mitigate and

prevent noise pollution.

In FY2024, the Group did not receive any substantial
complaints or fines related to noise emissions from its

neighbourhood nor the authorities.

V. BEEE®
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources

In FY2024, majority of resources consumed by the Group
were electricity, gasoline, natural gas, diesel, water, paper,
and metal. Due to the business nature of the Group, the
use of packaging materials is not material to the Group’s
operations, and hence no related information is disclosed.
Table E2 in the chapter APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE
TABLE demonstrates the amount of different resources
used by the Group in FY2024.

Electricity

In FY2024, the total electricity consumption of the Group
was 252.97 kWh’000 with an intensity of 4.29 kWh’000/
employee. The primary sources of electricity consumed
by the Group were daily operations in the offices and
working sites. During the year under review, there was an
increase of total electricity usage recorded.

Striving for more effective management of electricity
consumption, the Group enacted several measures and
approaches to ensure all subsidiaries and departments
within the Group complied with its electricity-saving
principles, including:

° Switch off all idling electrical appliances, including
air-conditioners and multimedia systems, before
leaving;

° Adopt temperature control for air-conditioners
and maintain a constant indoor air temperature of
25-26°C;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continueq)

Electricity (Continued)

° Replace high electricity consumption equipment
with energy-saving ones, such as LED lights;

° Adjust the lighting and ventilation system according

to the working area during night work;

° Conduct routine inspection and maintenance of
electrical appliances to ensure their operations are

at optimal conditions; and

o Place “Saving electricity” posters in prominent
places of the workplace to encourage resource

conservation.

Other energy resources

In 2024, the consumption of other energy resources
mainly came from gasoline for transportation purposes
during the Group’s operation. In FY2024, 16,978.00 litres
of gasoline were consumed by the Group, with a slight

increase when compared with FY2023.

As the Group acknowledges that the consumption of
fossil fuels leads to detrimental environmental impacts, it
has committed to regulating and reducing the use of fossil
fuels by exploring cleaner and more environment-friendly
alternatives. During the year under review, the Group
placed a greater emphasis on sustainable solutions. It
has increased the energy efficiency of its vehicle fleet and
has actively searched for opportunities to accelerate the

transition towards cleaner alternatives.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continueq)

Water

In the natural gas business, freshwater was mainly used
for filter cleansing and facility inspection during the
operations. As the water consumed by the Group were
originated from municipal supplies, the Group did not
face any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purposes
in FY2024. During the year under review, the Group
consumed around 443.00 m® of water, which was a rise in
water consumption when compared with FY2023.

To further strengthen water conservation efforts, the
Group is dedicated to fulfilling its responsibility for
improving the utilisation efficiency of water resources
in offices and working stations through water-saving
measures, including but not limited to:

° Increase the awareness of employees on water
conservation by providing regular training on water-
saving practices;

° Implement technical applications to improve the
utilisation efficiency of water resources, including
flow controllers, low-flow flushing and rainwater
harvesting systems;

° Establish water consumption benchmarks and
set reduction targets for progress-tracking and
motivation-boosting for continued improvements;

° Conduct routine leakage inspection on water taps,
joint rings and other defect in the water suppler
system to monitor and identify areas of high-water
consumption and opportunities for reduction;
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IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continueq)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Water (Continued)

° Fix dripping taps immediately;

° Adjust water supply with reference to seasonal
temperature change; and

° Establish systems to recycle and reuse wastewater
generated within the Group for purposes such as
irrigation of surrounding farms.

Paper

Paper consumption of the Group was mostly used for
its administrative work. In FY2024, the Group consumed
around 89.32 kg of paper, with a decrease of 36% of
paper consumption compared to FY2023. The controlled
paper consumption was attributed to the collaborative
efforts of all staff to regulate paper use and reduce the
consumption of paper-made products.

To further minimise the Group’s consumption of paper
and other paper-made products, the Group has actively
implemented internal practices to promote the concept
of “Paperless Office” and “Office Automation” among its
employees, including but not limited to:

° Encourage all to use digital means for file storage,

communication and sharing of information;

° Publish information through email or electronic
bulletin boards;
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IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continueq)

Paper (Continued)

° Promote a culture of sustainability in the office and
educate employees about paper-saving practices;

° Set duplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers to minimise paper consumed;

° Place posters and stickers nearby printers as a
reminder to avoid unnecessary printing;

° Prioritise the use of recycled material-made paper;

° Place trays beside copy machines to collect used
single-sided paper for recycling; and

° Designate responsible personnel for the collection
and recycling of wastepaper.

Metal

During the year under review, the Group consumed
396,478.00 kg of metal. The metal consumption was
primarily used for gas pipe installation. The Group
understands that the consumption of more resources
leads to more adverse environmental impacts, thereby
striving to monitor the use of metal and enhance the
efficiency of the metal consumed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group, being one of the leading corporates in
natural gas industry, operates business with a strong
commitment to environmental responsibility and
compliance with applicable environmental regulations
and requirements. During the year under review, although
the operations of the Group did not cause significant
environmental impacts, the Group identified GHG
emissions, primarily from the consumption of fossil fuels
and electricity, as a relatively more material impacts
caused by its operations. The Group has launched
proactive initiatives targeted to consistently lower its
consumption of natural resources and the environmental
impacts, promoting sustainability and responsible

environmental stewardship.

Biodiversity

The Group considers biodiversity conservation as an
essential responsibility for its long-term business success,
and biodiversity considerations have been embedded into
its decision-making and daily operations. It adhered to
relevant laws and regulations and put efforts in avoiding
any operations in ecologically sensitive areas, so as
to protect wild animals and plants. By adopting the
mitigation hierarchy, avoidance is always the predominant
option of the Group, while minimisation, restoration
and offset will be considered when avoidance is not
applicable. In FY2024 the Group implemented a series of
guidelines and actions to overcome business challenges
by natural-based solutions. In the future, the Group will
benchmark the leading practices in the industry, including
the application of vegetation management during
pipeline installation. By adopting these practices, the
Group demonstrates its commitment to operating in an
environment-responsible manner and hence its impact on

local ecosystems and biodiversity is minimised.
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IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Employee engagement

The Group continues its commitment to sustainable
practices and environmental stewardship, thus fostering
employee engagement becomes an important aspect
of ensuring the success of these initiatives. To create
a working environment with an eco-conscious culture,
reminders on enhancing the awareness of resource
conservation are regularly sent to all staff. Additionally, the
Group promotes the use of public transport and car-pool
practices for commuting among employees, so as to instil
eco-friendly lifestyle and habits.

The Group has been continuously promoting a “green
lifestyle” and “green workplace” across all subsidiaries
and departments. In FY2024, the Group periodically
shared its performance and achievement on sustainability
for conveying its environmental mission effectively
and creating a sense of pride and belonging among
employees. To further encourage employees to place a
leading role in green initiatives, the Hong Kong office of
the Group has been piloting the collection and recycling
of wastepaper. The pilot programme includes the
collection, storage, and delivering of used envelopes to
the Wan Chai Recycling Station for recycling at the end
of the working week. During the year under review, the
Group also proactively recycled and brought packaging
paper boxes and other plastics to the Wan Chai Recycling
Station.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Targets and actions

In FY2023, the Group set a series of short-term

V. BEEE®

A3 IRIERXAETR (&
BERITE

RS _=ZBE  AXEBHET

environmental targets to further proceed to a more —RINEHRIREER LUE—F
environment-friendly operating model. According to the BOFRENEEER - BEH
sustainability progress of the Group on the aspect of ERIEFENAFEERER
environment, the Group believes that setting an indefinite KEBEBE BRIEILRETER
short-term target for efficiency enhancement on a yearly NHHEEUEBFRERENEEAS

basis is more appropriate at this moment. In FY2024,
the Group has carefully reviewed its past and current

B-R__E_WNHEFE - AEBRE
FEEREBEFREMBNIERE

environmental performance and updated specific targets KB -WEMARLSTENAEREE

for various areas, encouraging to take further actions.

R U B RE—F T8 -

Areas Targets Progress & Actions

=] Bz ERET

Air Emissions The amount of air pollutants In FY2024, the intensities of the Group’s air
EE BN emitted per employee in FY2025 emissions (SOx, NOx, and PM) increased by

should be lower than the

corresponding intensity in FY2024.
“TECLMFE BEINTERSE
MEEMEREN SN E 28

9%, 30% and 49% respectively, as compared to
the previous year, due to the increased gasoline
and natural gas consumption.

N 2B F AR RATHEEN
@0 A5 B A9 BE RHF R (SOx ~ NOXFIPM) & £
BEFFEMAE DR EF9% ~ 30%H149% °

To achieve the targets, the Group will
emphasise to minimise unnecessary business
travel and prioritise more energy efficient
vehicles with alternative energy source such as
electric vehicles.

RERBLEER AEERKAFARDTHLER
T WBAE BREMAESNERAEAER
e (FlaNEEEB) °

92 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R




IRIE s HERERKRS
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RES
(Continueqd)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

PONSIBILITY

Targets and actions (Continued)

Areas Targets

B BiR

V. BESE®

A3 IRIERXRABR (&
ERERITE (&

Progress & Actions

ERET

GHG Emissions The amount of GHG emitted per
BERBHER employee in FY2025 should be

lower th
intensity

an the corresponding
in FY2024.

“ECIME - BEINERERE
HHERENR _S MM F 2 HE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

In FY2024, a 72.84% increase was found in the
intensity of the Group’s total GHG emissions as
compared to the previous year.
RIZ2ZME AEENRERBIREAR
EETFAELEIEMN72.84%

To meet the target of lowering its GHG
emissions, the Group will strictly monitor

the business practices and adopt cleaner
technologies to contribute to carbon reduction
by the minimal use of fossil fuel, production
efficiency enhancement and the promotion of
resource conservation during its operations.
REIRBEERERBIHRNER AEEF
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIESF®
(Continued)
A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued) A3 IRIBERXAEBR (&
Targets and actions (Continued) BERTE (&
Areas Targets Progress & Actions
[EmE Bz ERAT
Water and The amount of water consumed, In FY2024, the intensity of water consumed,
wastewater and wastewater discharged per and wastewater discharged by the Group
IK R BE 7K employee in FY2025 should be increased by 150% as compared to the
lower than the corresponding previous yeatr.
intensities in FY2024. R E > ZREENAKEENEEKEE

“ETHFF BEINAKEN REEHETFMELE EF150%-¢

BEKBIRERBENR S MM F2

EERE - To achieve the target of lowering its water
consumption and discharge, the Group further
promotes the 3R principles — reduce, reuse and
recycle, and continue its water conservation
management by strengthening the education
work on water conservation and conducting
routine leakage test.
RBERALVAKENER XEESE—DH
[E3RIR B — R/ ~ B2 A B Uy > 3t 38 38 h 5 B 7K
N B TEMETIITERAR  FEHEER
IKE
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Targets and actions (Continued)

V. BESE®

A3 IRIERXRABR (&

ERERITE (&

Areas Targets Progress & Actions

=] Bz ERET

Paper The amount of paper used per In FY2024, the intensity of paper usage

R employee in FY2025 should be decreased by 34% as compared to the previous

10% lower than the corresponding
intensity in FY2024.

“EhUF BETRVARBEFE
=1/

[%10% o

My EZEEEET

year, which achieved last year’s target.
RIZZMMF AEBENAREEZEHET
FHEETET4% BRTEFNEZ-

To keep aligning with these targets, the Group
continues to encourage the idea of “Paperless
Office” and “Office Automation” among its staff,
improving paper recycling rates and prioritising
the procurement of eco-friendly paper. For
instance, electronic invoices are encouraged
while ensuring that materials to be printed are
correct.

AEEREELERER AEREBSRETIER
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIEEE®

(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued) A3 IRIBERXAEBR (&
Targets and actions (Continued) BERTE (&
Areas Targets Progress & Actions
[EmE Bz ERAT
Electricity The amount of electricity used per  In FY2024, the intensity of electricity
B employee in FY2025 should be consumption increased by around 67% as

10% lower than the corresponding  compared to the previous year.

intensity in FY2024. RIBE_MGF  AEENREZERTFHE

“ETHMF BETINEANRE  HIEMNA67T%

HERL S _NBMFHERE

BT FE10% © To further reduce electricity consumption,
the Group will continue its efforts to promote
electricity conservation among staff, prioritise
energy efficient equipment during procurement
and implement the guideline to standardise
electricity conservation practices. For instance,
the temperature of the air-conditioners is
adjusted and maintained to 25°C while ensuring
that all electrical appliances are switched off
before lunchtime and after work.
RE—TRLVAEE AERRFERET#
EEHNRE TREREREENERE LR
BRBHAABERNIES AW BRBERE
BEINRIFE25°C B FFERETFRATAN T
BB B -
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continueqd)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Targets and actions (Continued)

V. BESE®

A3 IRIERXRABR (&

ERERITE (&

Areas Targets Progress & Actions

=] Bz ERET

Gasoline The amount of gasoline used In FY2024, the intensity of gasoline usage
b per employee in FY2025 should slightly increased by 10% as compared to the

be lower than the corresponding
intensity in FY2024.

“EChWF BEIRSHASE
RER_Z_MNMEZEREE-

previous year.
RIZ2ZME AERNSRERAZEERT
AL EF10% o

To align with the target of lowering its gasoline
consumption, the Group will actively manage
vehicle fuel consumption by the promotion of
responsible driving practices, routine vehicle
maintenance, the promotion of using public
transportation among staff, as well as the
adoption of digital tools to avoid unnecessary
travelling.
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HERERRS

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Given the growing global concern over climate-related
crises, the Group acknowledges that addressing climate
change is a moral and ethical imperative, as well as a
strategic need for sustainability development and long-
term success of the Group. To accelerate the transition
to the adoption of cleaner energy source and minimise
GHG emissions, the Group is committed to further
proceeding to effective management of its climate risks
while identifying potential business opportunities.

Management Approach

The Group recognises the significance of formulating the
transparent and comprehensive approach for managing
climate-related issues across its operations. As described
in the chapter APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY, the
Board is responsible for overseeing ESG-related issues
and overall risks of the Group. Meanwhile, both the Board
and the Standing Committees take the responsibility
for monitoring the implementation, performance, and
progress of climate mitigation measures through regular
reporting from the management.

Moreover, the Group established an advisory panel
consisted of experienced professionals on the Board to
enhance the resilience of the Group to climate change
by continuous optimisation of its management strategies
and initiatives. Additionally, this designated advisory
panel primarily focuses on monitoring changes and
updates of the international and government policies,
particularly the “1+N Policy System” (MT1+NEEfEZ )
of China, which provides guidance for the low-carbon
economy transition. With the Group’s efforts to increase
its attention on climate policy trends and information, the
Group is committed to learning from peer companies and
implementing its own-resource finance responses.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)

Climate Risks and Opportunities

As more and more stakeholders raised concerns

on climate-related risks, it has become increasingly

important to develop and disclose the Group’s

strategies and initiatives regarding climate-related risks

and opportunities. As a result, with reference to the

Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures (TCFD), the Group’s physical and

transition climate-related risks and opportunities on its

business operations are analysed and summarised in the

table below.

Risk
]

V.

IRIBEEE @

1R ) B

MR ERESHNNDEBESER
RAERREREERE  FIEMK
BAEEERAREERRRME
BIRBNERAMBIEME
ZoRAIt 2EREBBMBRE
TFENRZE 2B DML A
HEHEFEETREHEBENE
B2 A0 5 B | B B2 A% 48 o A A A
TEke

Potential Impact

BERE

Physical Risk
ERRR

Increase in severity and -

frequency of extreme weather
events such as storms,
typhoons, and floods

B2 BREANMEKERIERR
EHNEBREREMNEIEMN

Rising mean temperature due
to global warming

ERECERFHRE LT

Varying precipitation pattern
and increase in water scarcity
PR M K ERRE
TRRY I B

When there are increasingly frequent and
severe extreme weather events, normal
business operations may be interrupted
and infrastructures may be damaged,
leading to supply chain disruptions.

For example, damaged transportation
infrastructures which caused by intense
storms can lead to unstable supplies at
later stage of the whole supply chain.
21 im K RE R SR AN R AUy > AR
EEEEBMNERSE T PE  ERE
R FIREE B EMEREEHERE -
BN e R BSRNERERERTIE
FIAEE B EMEEN T HHETE
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. IRIEEE @
(Continued)
A.4 Climate Change (Continued) A4 RIREME &)
Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued) RIZE R EEE (&
Risk Potential Impact
e BELE

- The rising temperature may lead to poorer
health conditions of staff during summer,
especially fieldworkers.

- REASEEZTIUREHITFAENR
EERAELEEETE LHEERMIEA
Eo

- Changing precipitation patterns can lead
to droughts and/or heavy rainfall could
lead to unstable water supply or even
water shortages. This affects the Group’s
business operations of the gas station,
which requires water for filter cleansing
and facility examination.

— RBAEANSCEEHRE - MERLELER
M/ R MEREKTBEEE
KERER - BEREXEREENMNR
LS E > AR RIS EHKRER
BRI METRMIRE
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)

Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued)

Risk
L

IRIBEEE @

ANEE R A (B

Potential Impact
BERCE

Transition Risk
AR S

New environmental -
regulations and more stringent
emission requirements,

such as emissions reduction
targets, may be implemented
gradually

MRIRBARMEBREABE —

MEXR GIMREER AE

Development of the emerging
technologies to comply

with laws and regulations
may increase the operating
cost due to unexpected
performance

BB ERERMARNE

EMpEERIEGARESR -

AEIB MR EMIE S E
D%

Introducing more stringent environmental
regulations may increase the Group’s
compliance costs, which may force the
Group to greatly invest in emission control
technologies, procedure modification and
additional monitoring and reporting.
SIANEBREIIRRER I B AEREY
BEBUIE BRI ~ M2 BUE M R BEIM I BR 15
MBEFEETAERE  ERAEEN
BRMAE -

Although the development of emerging
technologies explores the potential for
more environment-friendly operations, it
can increase the capital expenditure and
the expenses may not receive financial
return as expected.
BEMEEWHNERBDAERRRIRR
EEAFENED BEIEMNEERSTH KL
X 0 s LRI Ay = Y T A A 1S TR AR
BYRF #5 Ol 3R o
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)
Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued)

Risk
%

V. BEEE®

AE/E R A (B

Potential Impact
BECE

= Uncertain market signals
towards clean energy may
cause several negative
impacts to the Group,
especially the access to
capital

— THBHERFERSENRE
ESR e HAEBER
BENEETE LHEER
BEEHKE

With limited global natural gas supply,
there are chances that the market may
invest more in renewable energy instead
of relying on natural gas. The Group

may then face significant hurdles in the
market development related to its natural
gas business. Meanwhile, uncertainty in
the clean energy market can lower the
confidence of investors, which leads to
reduced access to capital as investors
seek more predictable and sustainable
opportunities.
HRE2RRAREEER > mHAE I EN
AHFTBEERNEE MR ERERA
RofER > AEETBETEAEXRARER
AN 5% R IBEEARER [
B EEER S K E O] 8 R A F &R
s> M ER PR A B EE LR
AEEHISEREENEL KMEREAEER
ERETHHERL -
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)

Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued)

Opportunity

Hia

V. BESE®

A4 RIREAME (7

ANEE R A (B

Potential Impact
BECE

To

advance to minimise the potential impacts of climate risks
on its operations, the Group is allocating considerable
resources and efforts to formulate comprehensive plans

Over the next few decades, energy systems
are expected to change drastically to meet
local, national, and global climate targets. The
promotion of sector decarbonisation such as
power generation implies a higher demand for
clean fuels, including natural gas.
ERRE+FE BERARATRELEERE
16> LUR B B~ Bl R R 2K RIE B AR 12
EEBEITERIRMBERZHERAREANN
BEMEEESEXR

Implementing sustainable and responsible
practices in operations, supply chain, and
corporate governance can improve the
reputation of the Group, and hence attracting
more customers and investors who are aware
of protecting the environment.

TEE -HEERCERESEBIAFEN
BEEANERITMUREAEENESE KMk
SIEZRTIRERENERARKEE -

and management measures.

In the future, to better determine risk exposures of the
Group and assess its climate resilience strategies, it is
planned to conduct a scenario analysis as suggested
by the Recommendations of the TCFD based on the
readiness of the Group and the Board’s consideration of

necessity.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

be prepared and develop mitigative solutions in

In additional to the increased stakeholder
environmental concerns, the shifts in

market preferences which are guided by

the government’s “coal-to-gas” project may
bring business growth of the Group, with the
installation of natural gas pipeline being its
major business.
ABMNTESRIEE I BT R AR E
IRIBRVRATIE NS S REFNEEPIEE
HEHEAERUXRAREELEARTEEREDN
EBER

Demonstrating a commitment to sustainable
development and responsible practices
enhances the reputation of the Group, and
hence strengthening its competitiveness
among its peers and attracting a broader
range of investors.
ERHOFEERNEETEENAHIL
REAEENESE  HXMERETERITHEN
FRE LRSIEBEZHNRESE -

7 BT A AR TE A AR
BRURREERBREERR
SHHEEENEERE ~5E
ERA—EMERKIES LR
B2mM T REREEER-

RERK HBHMH G AEE
B L B e O 3 5T i B RUR B FE R
B AERFERBEEERBR
REZEHXLEEZRE R
AR I EE TIFAER B R E

GUE LU
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY VI. 2 5E

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES BlIERKRS TER
B.1 Employment B.1 fEfE
With the dynamic market development of the natural BERARITENDBEE K

gas industry, the Group continues to value its human
resources as the greatest assets. One of the corporate
sustainable strategies of the Group is to consider the
contribution of all employees as the core of the Group’s
operations, and hence the Group prioritises to establish a
diverse, inclusive, and dynamic workforce. As the Group
acknowledges the importance of efficient recruitment,
professional training and management on ensuring the
professionalism of its employees, a set of hiring guidelines
and practices for standardising the hiring procedures
and employment systems has been developed and
implemented.

As of the end of FY2024, there were a total of 59 full-
time employees, with the male-to-female ratio of 58%:
42%. For detailed data about the Group’s employees by
categorisation, please refer to Table S3 in APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.

Law compliance

In FY2024, the Group complied with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC that were
material to the business of the Group, including but not
limited to:

o Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea) VI. t 85T @
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) EBEREIER (&
B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1EfF (%)
Law compliance (Continued) FEREH (B)
o Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (2 J (PEANREMEZENE) ;
ARHMESEE) ; and MR
. Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of . (PFEARENEZEESR
China (FZE AR HEME S EERE). EDe

Relevant internal employment policies are updated KEBWANE R ERE W
and revised on a regular basis by the Group’s Human & ST AE RE AU 79 26 1 {3 B ER - LA
Resources (“HR”) Department to ensure its employment REEBRERERSRMAEEZE
practices adhere to the latest laws and regulations. o
Recruitment and promotion 1BEREH
As human resources are valuable assets of the Group, HRANDEREAEENS S
talent attraction and retention are significant to maintain B RMMBEASEAMBER
industry competitiveness. Following the principle of TEBFHHESE -AEEERE
“Equal Competition” (“AF % F"), equitable remuneration TAEFRFINRL] BIBEEA
packages, with reference to the candidates’ performance, BIFRIB B AR E ~ TR 5 B
personal attributes, working experiences and career EEM BREAFNEHMNAER LL
aspirations, are provided. Furthermore, the Group offers b KEBT A B TRMEHEETT
its employees competitive compensation and benefits EMEIEAEBH I HNFHINKE
which are set against the peer industries. Fo
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

Recruitment and promotion (Continued)

Besides, the Group makes full use of online platforms to
release recruitment advertisements for vacant positions.
During the year under review, the Group primarily
posted recruitment information on JobsDB, one of the
largest recruitment platforms, to search for competent
candidates. In case of no suitable candidate, the Group
will consider the option of Employment as Professionals
in Hong Kong. Moreover, the Group is in collaborative
relationships with colleges and universities for organising
campus recruitment to attract high-calibre candidates. To
ensure the most qualified and competent candidates are
selected in a fair and open manner, the HR Department
of the Group oversees and reviews all recruitment and
promotion process.

Regarding promotion, the Department Heads and
Directors conduct performance and capacity appraisal
for all staff at least once a year. This ensures that
all employees can be recognised in respect of their
contributions to the Group. For those employees who has
demonstrated outstanding performance and potential,
the Group will consider them as eligible candidates and
proactively provide them with promotion opportunities for
career advancement.

VI. tE5E @

EBRKRFLIER (&

B.1 fEfE (%)
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. HE&5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BIEKRS TER (&

B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1EfF (%)
Remuneration, compensation and dismissal Fol ~ 718 R AR e
In alignment with the relevant laws and regulations of AEEEEEMB)EEERNIER
local jurisdictions, the Group formulated internal policies FRER CETEITFM AR
and procedures of remuneration and compensation Ff 161 & BY i B 52 435 18 48 B8 P9 BB L
on the Employee Handbook. Based on the internal REREF -BEBERIHE 8 TH
policy, monthly salaries are provided at the end of each TRAESEAEER  MEER
month, and the annual bonus is given with the directors’ FHITEEERKLEETGHEER
approval at the end of each year. For overtime work, R -EMMTERE 8EEM
the corresponding compensation is provided upon the HAFZENHERBHA THEER
approval of supervisors and Department Heads. E o
Additionally, compensation reviews and salary adjustment o KREBREREEEDIS
are periodically conducted with reference to the overall BRBRESANEENRFISE
market conditions, inflation rate, profitability of the Group RETRRF THETHFMHNSES
and employee’s performance. This review and adjustment MR E ZRT RBEEE
system enables the Group to recognise employees’ EAEETUHETINEARE
efforts and contribution. BAEH R A -
Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits any kind of BE FAEEEERLEEAER
unfair or illegal dismissal, thus it has spared no efforts HAATFHIEERERE B &
in standardising and monitoring the procedures for EETERIHMRBNERE
employee dismissal. The Group have formulated policies THRERRF AEBBEHIEEFH
and guidelines regarding the dismissal of employees and REE THHE RIS LA E
stipulated in the employment contracts to safeguard BERTHEERE UEEET
the interests of employees. For those who continuously HHm e R EERMIBEE TN
underperform despite instructions and guidance, verbal FERRTERNBETI A& H
warnings will be given, followed by written warning letters. BEFOBLES AEETHER
For those who repetitively make the same mistakes and EEHEE - MBNEXRILHEKER
remain untamed despite receiving warning letters, the BWRESENMARENET
corresponding employment contracts will be terminated REE R R E RSP E SR XA
based on reasonable and lawful grounds according to BEREFR TaEBEaEZNER
its internal policies and relevant laws and regulations. LERIEBEENERER RN
In FY2024, the employee turnover rate of the Group O AEENE T RARE
was 42.37%. For detailed breakdown of the turnover #342.37% - BRASFHMNE Tmk
data, please refer to Table S4 in the APPENDIX - RYBEHE F2REMERE—ER
PERFORMANCE TABLE. F—3RS40
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

Working hours and rest periods

According to the local employment laws and regulations,
including “Provisions of the State Council on Employees’
Working Hours” ((BIF5FTRAN B T TEREBRE D),
working hours and rest period of all employees are
stipulated and agreed upon in the employment contracts.
All employees are required to report their attendance
every day and record their working hours on the
timesheet whenever necessary, ensuring working hours
of all employees can be monitored and managed while
safeguarding the well-being of employees.

Apart from the basic paid annual leave and statutory
holidays, employees also enjoy additional leave benefits,
including examination/study leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, maternity/paternity leave and consolation leave.

Equal-opportunity, diversity, and anti-discrimination

The Group aims to create a fair, respectful, and inclusive
working environment and believes such workplace valuing
equality allow employees to achieve higher achievements
and better performance. The Group is committed to
providing equitable opportunities to all employees
in recruitment, promotion, training, dismissal, and
retirement, irrespective of age, gender, race, disability,
ethnicity, nationality, religion, or any other non-job-related
factors.

Moreover, the Group has zero tolerance towards all forms
of discrimination, harassment, bullying or any other form
of abusive behaviour, and hence it sets up stringent
internal policies and guidelines in the Code of Conduct to
ensure all employees are treated fairly.

VI. £t 8&5E @)

EBRKRFLIER (&

B.1 fEfE (%)
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BEREIER (&

B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1EfF (%)

Equal-opportunity, diversity, and anti-discrimination
(Continued)

To further protect the interests of all employees,
confidential reporting mechanisms has been established
for employees to report any incidents of discrimination
or harassment to the Department Heads and Directors in
written form and supporting evidence. With discrimination
reports received, a rigorous investigation and resolution
process will be undergone, ensuring a fair and justified
outcome for all involved parties. In case of any
substantiated violations or illegal behaviour related to
equal-opportunity policies, the Group will take disciplinary
action against the relevant employees. Any complaint
relating to a criminal offence is handled seriously. A
thorough investigation will be carried out, followed by
a report submitting to the relevant regulators or law
enforcement authorities when the Board considers it
necessary.

Benefits and welfare

The Group is committed to promoting a workplace culture
of valuing and prioritising the well-being of employees.
Therefore, it places a great emphasis on both physical
and psychological health of employees by providing a
series of benefits and welfare. In addition, the Group
believes that a pleased and diligent workforce is essential
for its long-term business success, thus it offers a robust
set of benefits and welfare that support the diverse needs
of its employees.

FERD  ETRREN (&)

RHE—SPREMBE I
AEBERUREFRES] > Z
BTUEERPARXFE R RS
FIZTEREFEEREMLEN
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EERETERNBAERERR
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ERBHETEREHRAEMNE
MUBETR AEBER HAER
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ERARETRERMAMERE B
BEEEERR/ELEROHEREE
BEERBRPEAMPIRIBS -
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

Benefits and welfare (Continued)

In FY2024, the Group provided its employees with basic
medical insurance and allowances, as well as meals,
snacks and year-end bonus, aiming to enhance their
job satisfaction and working motivation. For instance,
during the year under review, the Group arranged yoga
classes for its employees. While playing yoga benefits
the individual health and fitness of employees, it also
positively expressed the Group’s culture of valuing holistic
well-being. This ensures that employees have better
immunity against disease infection and hence increases
the working efficiency and productivity. With colleagues
playing yoga together, the relationships between
employees can become closer, creating a supportive
and collaborative atmosphere within the workplace.
Moreover, the Group maintains a close relationship and
open communication with staff through various channels,
including emails and instant messages, to receive
feedback and suggestions from staff.

VI. tE5F @

EBERSEIER (&

B.1 fEfE (%)
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuead)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1

B.2

Employment (Continued)
Benefits and welfare (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group was in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group highly prioritises the health and safety of its
employees. Hence, it strives to create and maintain a safe
and healthy working environment to all employees. As a
fundamental part of its corporate commitment, the Group
is dedicated to keeping all of its facilities at the highest
standards of safety while providing safe and stable gas
supply to its customers.

In FY2024, the Group established its internal safety and
health policies and procedures in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, including but
not limited to:

° Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of

China (FEAREMBAZE2EER);

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases (FEE A R+
MEBERG AL ;

. Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance (L1

fRE{FA) ; and

° Oil and Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China (B HRAR & ERENK
Bl) .
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued)

Aligning with the principles of “Safety First”, the Group

has developed the “Safety Production Management
System” ((Z &4 EEEHE )) which includes around 30
different sets of safety management regulations.

VI. £t 8&5E @)
ERRSTEHR (&

B.2 T(FSFHIREHEZE (B

XFT22F1NRA x&E
BHRIEESZHN0EFAZEEIE
ERNT R EEEEGE) -
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Adopting the principle of “Early detection, Early
communication, and Early prevention”, the Gas
Pipeline Safety Management System (AR E&E
Z2EIEBEMHI)) has been implemented to ensure
consistent behaviours of frontline employees,
mitigating all related potential safety hazards and

risks.

A comprehensive Safety Inspection System ({Z &
KEHIE)) has been implemented to identify and
address any abnormal conditions at gas stations
at the earliest stage by regularly inspecting the
equipment during daily operations.

The Safety Hazard Investigation and Management
System (Z 2B EHEAEFIE)) has been set up
to minimise potential safety risks at all operational
levels.

The implementation of Safety Management System
for the Use of Pressure Vessels ((BEA & 2SEMR
Z2EIEHE)) strictly monitors and manages
the operational procedures of the instruments,
emergency response plans, personnel duties
and training, as well as guidelines on routine

maintenance practices.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BREKRSIER E

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued) B2 ITIESFTHIBFEZSE (&

° To safeguard the safety of all individuals entering
gas stations, the Notice for Station Entrance (¥
U5 Z8450)) has been established to prevent the
occurrence of dangerous behaviours including
smoking, use of non-explosion-proof electronic
equipment and unauthorised use of facilities.

In addition, the Group has established the Safety
Committee to take the responsibility for monitoring the
implementation of safety management systems so as to
ensure all measures related to health and safety adhere to
the latest regulations and industry practices.

With the promotion of a safety culture, provision of
continuous training and implementation of rigorous safety
protocols, the Group is dedicated to improving workplace
health and safety. In FY2024, the Group recorded zero
work-related fatalities in the past three years (including
FY2024), as well as zero work-related injuries and zero
loss workdays. To maintain zero accident rate, the Group
continued to further monitor and manage the potential
risks and hazards associated with business operations.

In FY2024, the Group was in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting the employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact on
the Group.

s RREFMBEAMRLY
ANBZREAEERILT
MEus A 2 B IEIRIE ~ fiE
FAIERE FEREURARE
SFREREARMSERT
5o

o ZEBTRIZEERE
E EEEEBERE2EERANE
BER UBFRAEEBRRERZ
EHRBNERISRT & RMBER
MITEED -

ZREEZEX L REFEE
HIREREERNZ2HE A%
ERORKRETESANERR
B N BN E AEETE
BE=ZF (AFE_ZS _MEE) A
TERBNETAKAT [
FERBEEERISEEH EIHE
BARIFHET AT AHEFT
EME - AEBBEE—TER
MEEEXKEERMANEBEIR
R fEE o

RIZ-NHEF  xEFBETH
HEEXFE ARARMHERET
FRERMFEEEBRBEMLL
SRRBERRRA

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBREE B R AR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

113




114

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

IRIE - HEREGHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued)

Safeguarding employees from infectious diseases

With evolving pathogens and emerging diseases under
the impact of climate change, the Group has placed
a great emphasis on protecting its employees from
infectious diseases and maintaining their well-being in
a good condition. Comprehensive health and safety
protocols have been delivered and implemented. These
protocols are set up for guiding the workforce in their
daily activities, including clear guidelines on health
monitoring, hygiene practices, and using Personal
protective equipment (PPE) in case of any outbreak
of infections. Aligning with the international prevention
approach, the Group encourages employees to take
general protection measures, including maintaining

hygiene and wearing face masks when they get sick.

Moreover, the Group prepares sufficient stocks and
provision of necessary prevention materials including
masks, gloves, alcohol disinfectants, sanitising wipes,
and thermometers. To maintain good indoor air quality, air

purifier has been turned on in the workplace.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BREKRSIER E

B.3 Z/EEIIZ

B.3 Development and training

Recognising workforce as the greatest asset of the
Group, the Company believes well-trained and skilled
talents are critical to attain operational excellence,
innovation, and uphold a positive workplace culture.
Therefore, as part of its commitment to sustainability
and responsible business practices, the Group prioritises
to cultivate talents and develop professionalism of its
workforce. During the year under review, the Group
is committed to offering opportunities and allocating
resources to support the growth and career development
of its employees.

There are two categories of the training provided by the
Group, namely “on-the-job” training and “off-the-job”
training, and both of them aim to provide all employees
an equal opportunity to improve their professional skills.
A framework has been formulated to provide induction
training to new employees. For frontline staff, ongoing
technical training programs, including specialised training
in areas such as cutting-edge technologies, safety
protocols, and industry-specific regulations, has been
developed to allow them to stay with the latest and the
best industry practices and advancements. As the Group
is committed to practise environmental responsibility,
it has integrated sustainable practices, environmental
regulations and green initiatives into the training
programs.

In addition to internal training, the Group strongly
encourages its employees to participate in external
training programs and take professional qualification
examinations, and it supports its employees by providing
reimbursements to eligible staff.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuead)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.3

B.4

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Development and training (Continueq)

Furthermore, external organisations and experts are
invited to provide its employees with relevant training
sessions regularly. The Group prioritises to offering
executive-level training to its directors and senior
executives, ensuring high-quality leadership and good
corporate governance practices can be delivered.

In FY2024, the Group provided 205 hours of training
for 64.41% of its staff. The Group remains steadfast in
its dedication to facilitating continuous learning among
its employees in the future. For detailed information,
please refer to Tables S5 and S6 in APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.

Labour Standards

During the year under review, the Group integrated the
maintenance of rigorous labour standards into its ESG
strategies. Aligning with applicable laws and regulations
while contributing to sustainability and long-term business
success, the Group continues to value the safeguard
of human rights and the provision of fair treatment to
all employees. In FY2024, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (FRZE A R
HNE %
and other related laws and regulations in its operating

%), the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

regions to prohibit child and forced labour employment.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BEREIER (&

B.4 Labour Standards (Continued) B.4 T A (#2)

To combat illegal employment of child labour, underage
workers and forced labour, the HR Department of
the Group has formulated a series of internal policies
for standardising and monitoring recruitment and
employment processes, including:

° It is necessary for all job applicants to provide valid
identification documents for verification during
recruitment to confirm their age and condition of
stay.

° No recruitment of workers requires relinquishing
their identification documents nor lodging deposits
as a condition of employment.

° A review of the staff roster and on-site inspection
of personnel are periodically carried out by the HR
Department to ensure the validity of the employees’
information.

In case of any identified violation of relevant labour
laws, regulations or standards, the relevant employment
contract will be immediately terminated, and the
responsible employees of the HR Department will be
disciplined accordingly. Depending on the severity of
the issue, a report will be submitted to the supervisory
authorities when the senior management considers it
necessary.

In FY2024, the Group was in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations relating to the prevention of child
and forced labour that have a significant impact on the
Group.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
OPERATING PRACTICES

B.5 Supply Chain Management

The Company is dedicated to contributing to
sustainability, and its practices extend to its supply
chain management. Through active engagement with
suppliers, the management of risks, and the prioritisation
of green procurement, the Group maintains and manages
a sustainable and reliable value chain. In FY2024, the
Group primarily engaged with suppliers of natural gas
distributions (e.g., SINOPEC and PETROCHINA) and
suppliers of raw materials for gas pipeline installation.

Supplier Engagement

Acknowledging the significance of effective supply chain
management, the Group maintains a long-term and
stable relationship with all its major suppliers by regularly
engaging through digital means and on-site visits. In
FY2024, the Group maintained stable engagement with
100% of its suppliers, and the Group did not face any
under-qualified supplies or delays in supplies.

The Group has developed a set of internal policies and
procedures to ensure consistent process of supplier
selection. The Operation Department of the Group
takes the responsibility for maintaining the quality
of suppliers, by means of supply chain assessment
and supplier selection based on the criteria stated in
the Supplier Code Conduct, including the safety and
reliability of gas supply and the effective implementation
of any environmental and safety management systems.
Moreover, the Operation Department is responsible
for evaluating and assessing suppliers’ performance,
reliability, and compliance annually. For suppliers who do
not fulfil the assessment criteria, they will be eliminated
from the list, and the collaboration with them will be
terminated promptly.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) ZEIEN &)

B.5 Supply Chain Management (Continued) B.5 (HEHEIE ()

Supplier Engagement (Continued)

All suppliers and contractors are required to adhere
to the agreed contract terms during the business
cooperation, and it is necessary to submit a monthly “Gas
Quality Inspection Report” for review. This maintains the
quality of products in the supply chain. Additionally, the
Administrative Department is designated to regulate and
keep track of the supply chain practices, ensuring all
suppliers and contractors strictly abide by applicable laws
and regulations and operate in a sustainable manner.

Supply Chain Risk Management

In addition to complying with relevant laws and
regulations, supply chain management teams have
been set up to identify any non-conformity of applicable
laws as material risks that could significantly impact the
supply chain of the Group, eliminating the environmental
and social risks along the supply chain. By strictly
following and implementing the standards of supply
chain management, the Group ensures that its well-
selected suppliers are operating in accordance with the
requirements in the multitude of agreements as part of
the master agreements such as the Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE) Contract.

To facilitate the joint contribution of sustainability, the
Group encourage its suppliers to monitor and manage
their potential environmental and social risks to an
acceptable level in line with the national and industrial
standards.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.5 Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Green Procurement

As it maintains stable natural gas supply to provide
service to its end-use customers, the Group is committed
to adopting responsible procurement and collaborating
with its suppliers to provide cleaner energy. Hence,
green procurement has been integrated into the Group’s
decision-making process, and the Operation Department
is responsible for prioritising suppliers who align with
sustainable sourcing practices, such as pipelines for
natural gas distribution and environment-friendly office
supplies, including recycled paper. In the meantime, the
Group actively searches for products and services with
recognised eco-labels so that its procurement choices
are in alignment with industry-recognised environmental
standards. In FY2024, 100% of its major suppliers were
covered by the green procurement policy of the Group.

In FY2024, a total of 15 suppliers were in stable
cooperative relationships with the Group, and all of them
are located in the PRC. The above supplier engagement
and management policies apply to all suppliers of the
Group and are being implemented and monitored by the
Operation Department and Administration Department of
the Group.

VI. tE5E @

ZEf (&

i

B.5 HEHEIE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

AR BRI

REBBROIRREBENEAR
HEMHEKEBAFER Bt
REBIXEFRNESTHHEE
TEHEMEEESE UWREEZR
FHRER AEEBREEBIRE
MARRBRE - EEBBAEEL
RBOREER AIWXARE
RXEBNBROBARSR (81
BER) AR AEERBRBSH
BESKEIRENER MR
FHRBEETSERITNIER
BB S — T PUEAF > ANEH
100% M EEHEFEHMEE
RIBBUR o

RIZ O F > AEFEHEH5
REEAFREREENS RG>
B2EA R AHPE bt EmEE
AREBRRBRANAERME
HER  WHAEESEPRIT
BHBHITRES -



IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) EIEER (&

B.6 Product responsibility B.6 EmEF

The Group aims to provide customers with high-quality
and stable energy supply and satisfactory services,
thereby the implementation of its product responsibility
has been strengthened by a set of internal policies in
relation to quality, safety, customer rights and satisfaction
of the services.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group considers
advertising, labelling, intellectual property rights and
product/service recall as non-material issues to the
operation of the Group, and hence not being discussed
in this ESG Report in consideration of the principle of
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Quality and safety HEHZS
As natural gas supply and pipeline installation businesses HRRAARRMEREE T EER

are the primary operations of the Group, the Group
places a great emphasis on the assurance of the quality
and safety of the gas supply and its services.

Following the Operation Manual, the Group implements
its operational practices aligned with the applicable laws
and regulations, including but not limited to:

° Oil and Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China (B XAREHERE
%)

° Requirements for the Safe Transportation of LNG
Transportable Tanks on the Whole Ship (B L& & &
ERARIBEEBELZDEBENR);
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued)

Quality and safety (Continued)

Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARENBELZ2EEZE);

Regulations on the Safety Management of

Hazardous Chemicals (&[G R 2 B IEEH) ;

Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FEARHEMEZE RMEE) ;

Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PZE AREMBEIHEFZE ;

Code for Design of City Gas Engineering GB50028-
2006 (SRR R TS ;

Regulation on the Administration of Urban Gas (i,

SRR EIEEHA)) ; and
Natural Gas GB17820-2012 (RFA5EGB17820-
2012).

Subject to the annual review by the Board, the Risk

Management Framework, Central Contingency Policies

and Procedures, and Risk Monitoring Mechanism are

enforced to ensure safe and reliable delivery of the

Group’s services.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continuead)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continueq)
B.6 Product responsibility (Continued)
Quality and safety (Continued)

The Group provides gas supply and pipeline installation
services in accordance with a comprehensive quality
control system that adheres to statutory requirements
in relation to natural gas investment, provision of
consultation on gas technology and sales of gas cooking
appliances and accessories. On top of the safety
management systems detailed under the section “Aspect
B2: Workplace Health and Safety”, the Group has also
adopted a series of procedures to maintain product
safety, including:

e Internal Gas-user Safety Management System ({f
FZ2EIEEE)) has been established to provide
clear guidance across the whole process, from
engineering design, construction and installation,
completion confirmation, to ignition supply,
management and maintenance and demolition.

o Prior to the registration of the user’s premises, users
are required to acknowledge their understanding
of safe gas use, including the basic operation,
common gas accidents, response plans and
emergency rescue hotlines.

° Systematic inspection systems have been
established to identify and address any potential
safety hazard in users’ households, industrial or
commercial facilities, preventing accidents and
ensuring the safety of gas users.

° Publicity mechanisms have been established to
remind the public of the natural gas use safety,
particularly during holidays, peak gas usage periods,
winter gas accidents and rat infestations.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued)

Complaints Handling

The Group is dedicated to improving its customer
services and upgrading its approach to handle
complaints. As customers remain at the heart of the
Group’ business, the Group aims to address customer
concerns and continuously enhance its products and
services for the benefits of the local community and
the environment. Thus, it develops and adopts the
approach that carrying out prompt rectifying actions and
encouraging active communication.

Customer service management systems have been
established to ensure easy access of the complaint
channels, including customer service hotlines, for
the Group’s customers. Once the Group receive any
complaint, an acknowledgement will be sent to the
customer in a timely manner. Meanwhile, a thorough
investigation will be conducted for identifying the cause
of the complaint and evaluating its validity. Specific
responsible departments are required to monitor and
communicate the investigation progress and results to the
customers through formal replies.

In FY2024, the Group did not receive any substantial
complaints about the service quality. The Group
emphasises customer experience, and high customer
satisfaction was recorded according to the Group’s
customer surveys in the past.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued) B.6 EmEF (&)

Privacy matters

In FY2024, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations, including the Law on Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests of the People’s Republic of China
(REARHEMBEIHEE #w (R# %) and Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, for safeguarding the
interests of its stakeholders. A robust privacy protection
framework has been formulated for the Group’s operation
and a set of measures has been set up to protect
personal data and identifiable information of its clients
and tenants, including:

° With the account authorisation management,
sensitive information is only authorised to be
accessed by designated staff, thus eliminating the
risk of data leakage.

° Risk management and technical incident recovery
plans are implemented to protect personal data and
minimise losses in case of any accidents.

° As required, relevant parties have to sign
a confidentiality agreement to prohibit any
unauthorised disclosures or provision of data to any
third-party without consent.

In FY2024, the Group did not receive any substantial
complaints regarding data breaches, leakage or privacy
matters.

During the year under review, the Group was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to its products and services provided that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. #t2&E ®
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) EIEER (&

B.7 RES

B.7 Anti-corruption

126

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

The Group understands the importance of ethical
operation, thereby maintaining itself to the highest
standards while expecting the same from all of its
stakeholders. It remains steadfast in its stance against
corruption, adopting a multifaceted approach to
strengthen integrity and transparency. In FY2024, the
Group focused on the adherence to and complied with
the applicable laws and regulations of the jurisdictions
where it operates, including:

° Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Anti-
money Laundering (FFEE A B H M B & % 85%) ;

° Anti-Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of

China (AR EME R BHX);

° Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

° Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

To better combat corruption-related behaviours, strict
internal policies and the Code of Conduct has been
implemented as stated in the Employee Handbook,
which is adhered to international and local anti-corruption
laws. The key principles outlined in the Code of Conduct
include the prevention of:

° Leakage of confidential information;

o Insider trading;
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER

B.7 REF (&)

B.7 Anti-corruption (Continued)

° Conflict of Interest; and

° Improper handling of the Company assets.

Moreover, the punishment system for the violation of rules
is clearly listed in the Employee Handbook. Depending
on the severity of the incident, the level of punishment
for employees who have breached the rules ranges
from salary deduction to the termination of employment
contract, if necessary.

A grievance mechanism has been established for
employees to effectively report any suspected misconduct
to the Department Head or the Board with supporting
evidence in case they witness or learn of any violation of
the Group’s Code of Conduct. Once the Group receives
any report, an investigation team will be created to
conduct investigation and verifications. There are effective
whistleblowing procedures as all processes will be carried
out with confidentiality and the whistleblower will be
protected from unfair dismissal or victimisation. In case
of any substantiated criminality, the Group will seriously
handle the involved parties, and a report will be submitted
to the local authority when the management of the
Group considers it necessary. Meanwhile, a review of all
policies and guidelines in relation to anti-corruption and
anti-money laundering is conducted annually to further
enhance the effectiveness of the implementation.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.7 Anti-corruption (Continued)

To strengthen the employees’ understanding on the
consequences of being involved in bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, the Group arranged two
anti-corruption seminars for employees from different
levels of the Group in FY2024. Meanwhile, materials,
including pamphlets from the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) and seminar notes from the
Hong Kong Police, are regularly distributed to employees,
including Directors.

During the year under review, around 5 hours of anti-
corruption seminars were organised for 4 senior
management, 6 middle management and 30 general staff
to enhance the awareness of the Group’s employees on
anti-corruption.

In FY2024, the Group recorded zero concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees and was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering that have a significant impact
on the Group.

VI.
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ZEf (&
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. & &5E ®

COMMUNITY HE

B.8 HERE

B.8 Community Investment

In FY2024, the Group has been focusing on its business
operations, and it is still searching for the charitable
activities or organisation which align with its vision.
Notwithstanding that, the Group has spared no efforts
in bringing positive and long-term impacts to the
communities it serves, with its aim to facilitate sustainable
relationships and support the well-being of society.

Apart from investing in the exploration of clean energy
innovations, the Group also focuses on local communities
development with job opportunities creation, local
suppliers collaboration, and timely local taxes payment.
Moreover, the Group actively interact with the local
communities so as to understand the unique concerns
and challenges of the vulnerable groups, ensuring
the Group provides corresponding support against
their needs. During the year under review, the Group
continuously sought for opportunities to engage in social
activities and expand its engagement for community
contributions, as one of its commitments to society and
its corporate social responsibility.
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. ffiEf—Aa 3R
Table E1. The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2024 & FEIAEBR T _OHFEHREER
%’-38
Intensity ! Intensity ?
(Unit/ (Unit/
Key Performance Amount in employee) Amount in employee)
Emission Category Indicator (KPI) Unit FY2024 in FY2024 FY2023 in FY2023
k- 1| ZgZ=
k- o | HERE —8C= MERE
HERERI MRENER Bl MEgE (/8T MEYE (E/8I)
SOx Kg 0.257 0.004 0.234 0.004
iE=Rin) T
Air Emissions * NOx Kg 9.883 0.168 7.865 0.129
BRHEERC a4a1tym T
PM Kg 0.793 0.013 0.579 0.009
B i
Scope 14
Tonnes of COz¢ 46.81 0.79 37.60 0.62

(Direct Emissions)
HE— (ERHR0 W_EithEE
Scope 28
) . _Tonnes of COze 155.88 2.64 97.63 1.60
(Energy Indirect Emissions)

HG Emisci
CHAEMISSONS B (eEMESH)C Mo EHEE

BEREHR
Scope 3 ¢
) o Tonnes of COze 25.73 0.44 1.51 0.02
(Other Indirect Emissions)
HE= (HthERER° W_atREE
Total (Scope 1 &2 &3)  Tonnes of CO2e 228.43 3.87 136.74 2.24
BHR EE—ZRZ) BTELKES
Non-hazardous Wastewater m?3 443.00 7.51 183.20 3.00
Waste L
7 - N
P FEk IFK
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Vil. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE
(Continueqd)

VIl M E—4R50&R @)

Intensity for FY2024 was calculated by dividing the amount of air,
GHG and other emissions respectively by the Group’s number of
employees in FY2024, which was 59;

The amount and intensity in FY2023 were extracted from the
data in the ESG Report FY2023 of the Group;

The Group’s air emissions only included the air pollutants from
fuel consumption in motor vehicles and natural gas consumption
in operations;

The Group’s Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) included only the GHG
emissions arose from the consumption of liquid fuels in motor
vehicles and natural gas consumption in operations;

The Group’s Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions) included only
the GHG emissions arose from electricity consumption;

The Group’s Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) included only
the GHG emissions arose from paper waste disposed at landfills,
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by
government departments, and business air travel;

The total amount of wastewater discharged from the Group in
FY2024 was based on the assumption that 100% of the fresh
water consumed entered the municipal sewage system; and

The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange, The GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard and the 2006 IPCC
(Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change) Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

CECNMERELRER CAER
BREMBEBMYIHED PIBRULSER
TR FEEEEEEIAMS ;

TECC-HENEEBRTERRAEE
E_T_=HMERE -HEREAR
HRNEHEIRE ;

FEFNERINESFERBEMEH
EUREERMARARBEMELEN

ERISEY

FEEMNEE— (EEHR E8EA
BREBMEDEFEUKREEMBRAR
HIEFMELERRERBYIN

FEMMERER " GERBFHR E8
EEIVEFEMELENRERBIN ;

FEMMNEE= (HMEZEHER 8
EEETMEENMREY  BUTE
FIEEIR KA KFT VB HEE MU
R EBMEERFIEENRERESE
g

EB PRV EEKE R R B R EFTE
F 3 IK100%BE#E 75 7K R 1F 2 BE 7K
BERMEE 5 UK

TR ERENRERANSEE
PR FTE TR TN A B IR B ~ 11
EREARS MR IRIZRES
MIERERES ) CRERBEES ¢
TEZEAREENUR ZEDTNRE
IPCCHIZRERAS/SEIER
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII.

(Continued)

Table E2. Total Resource Consumption in FY2024

My g —2Ea 3R @)

RE2_EMEBRERBEE

Intensity ! Intensity ?
(Unit/ (Unit/
Key Performance Amount in employee) Amount in employee)
Use of Resources Indicator (KPI) Unit FY2024 in FY2024 FY2023 in FY2023
k- 1| ZgZ=
b1 HETE ZE-= HERE
BRER MRENER Bl MEYE (E1/8I) MEYE (E/8I)
Electricity kWh'000 262.97 4.29 1566.73 2.57
B FETRE
Diesel kWh'000 0.06 1.03 x 10° - -
Energy ° e TETRE
Y Gasoline kWh'000 164.54 2.79 154.09 2.53
P TETRE
Natural Gas kWh'000 8.46 0.14 - -
KRR FETRE
Total energy kWh'000 426.04 7.22 310.83 5.10
consumption
HAEREER TETRE
Water Water m? 443.00 7.51 183.20 3.00
K X Ak
Paper Paper Kg 89.32 1.51 139.59 2.29
R 5% T3
1. Intensity for FY2024 was calculated by dividing the amount of 1. ZEINHEERENERERESRRIU

resources that the Group consumed in FY2024 by the Group’s
number of employees in FY2024, which was 59;

2. The amount and intensity in FY2023 were extracted and 2.

converted from the data in the ESG Report FY2023 of the Group;
and

38 The energy conversion of resources consumed was based on the 58

energy coefficient set out in “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange”.
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VIIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. figx—E R @
(Continued)
Table S3. Number of Employees by Age Group, Gender, RS AEB -S OFIRER M
Employment Type, Position Type, Geographical Locations of A RERY BUMMESSNET
The Group in FY2024 e
Age group
Unit: Number of employees  Efi: ETAK k30
Aged Aged

Aged 30 between between Aged 51

or below 31 and 40 41 and 50 or above Total
Gender 145 30U T 31-40% 41-50%  SIREMLE mey
Male 2 10 10 5 34
Female Z 4 9 9 3 25
Total 1B 13 19 19 8 59

Position
Unit: Number of employees Efi: ETAK B
Senior Director and

General staff management management Total
Gender 145 —®ET BREEAR EZHEHEE By
Male B 18 6 10 34
Female Zi 22 2 1 25
Total mE 40 8 11 59

Employment type

TEFER

Full time Part time Total
2 FE wE
59 0 59
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VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. MfEr—4a 33k @)
(Continued)

Geographical location

& & 5
Number of
employees
Locations i BT A
Yichang BE 38
Hong Kong 5% 12
Shanghai b= 9
Total: e 59
1. The employment data in headcount was obtained from 1. BIEEREBEAEEHEHEES [
the Group’'s Human Resources Department based on the STUNEBESR S AEEMANE
employment contracts entered into between the Group and IREVEF LM RERBEEM B
its employees. The data covered employees engaged in a FREAEEEEZEERBGENES
direct employment relationship with the Group according to UERAERSSHERETEMN NI IF
relevant local laws and workers whose work and/or workplace BIASAEREGMNE T FiERE
was controlled by the Group within the reporting scope. The B T8URFTIR AN A AT BRI
methodology adopted for reporting on employment data set EHNTNAEERE - HERERR
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — H—HIE%3 | B RARBE RIS IZEIRIE
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the 5lye

Stock Exchange.
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. fifgx—E & @)
(Continued)
Table S4. Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group, Gender and RSAKEB S O FIRER M
Geographical Locations in FY2024 Bl (& B 3 By & Tom ok =1
Age group
Unit: Number of employees  Efii: BT AH Fie
Aged Aged
Aged 30 between between Aged 51
or below 31 to 40 41 to 50 or above Total
Gender 3] 0B U T 31-405% 41-5058  51HIEAMUL B
Male B 2 8 1 3 14
Employee turnover rate (%) BTREE%) 22.22% 80.00% 10.00% 60.00% 41.18%
Female geqid 4 6 1 0 11
Employee turnover rate (%) BTREKE%) 100.00% 66.67% 11.11% 0.00% 44.00%
Total B 6 14 2 3 25
Total employee turnover rate (%) #88 T 4% (%) 46.15% 73.68% 10.53% 37.50% 42.37%

Geographical locations th& &5

Employee Employee

turnover turnover rate

Locations iz BT R%K BITRAE

Yichang BE 19 50.00%

Hong Kong &5 6 50.00%

Shanghai Hap=! 0 0.00%

Total L 25 42.37%

1. The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s 1. NREERREAEENAHEEESEZE

Human Resources Department based on the employment FUNERBER RAEBHNANE

contracts entered into between the Group and its employees. REES - RAXBEFL T M

The above data only covers the reporting scope. Turnover FRHEBASBMGUZS_MNMMFENET

rate was calculated by dividing the number of employees who HBE  LMBEMKRECFERSHE

resigned in FY2024 by the number of employees in FY2024. AR EE o EaUR R BIRFTIR A A

The methodology adopted for reporting on turnover data set ETHER R AT EME T EHIR

out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — B -HERERKRS W3 g
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the REWIERERISES]) -

Stock Exchange.
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE

Table S5. Number and Percentage of Employees Trained in the

Group by Gender and Position Type in FY2024 1

VII. MfEr—4a 33k @)

#<S5. =T — M F A S B 12 1% B A B
UEREZINET ABNB DL

Total number of employees BT/ 59
Total number of employees trained S DN 38
Total percentage of employees trained WETZI B 64.41%
Position Type
Unit: Number of employees Efii: ETA# B (i
General Senior Director and
staff management management Total
Gender 4 5l —KET SHREEAE ZEEHTERE EEE
Male B4 13 6 2 21
% of employees trained BTIXIBESL 34.21% 15.79% 5.26% 55.26%
Female geg ks 15 2 0 17
% of employees trained ETZIERE 39.47% 5.26% 0.00% 44.74%
Total FEE 28 8 2
% of employees trained BIXIEAL 73.68% 21.05% 5.26%
1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human 1. STEIBEREAERNALE RS

Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training
that the Group’s employees attended in FY2024. The above data
only covers the reporting scope. The methodology adopted for

reporting on the number and percentage of employees trained

set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the

Stock Exchange
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VIil. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE
(Continued)

Table S6. Training Hours Provided by the Group by Gender and
Position Type in FY2024 1

VII. MfEr—4a 33Kk @)

®"S6._E_MBMFAEES RS

e B L 28 B 52 51| Y By

Position Type

Unit: Training Hours B IR B i
General Senior Director and

staff management management Total
Gender 4 51 —RET SHREEAE EFHEHEE e
Male B 30 30 70 130
Average training hours S8 SEElSE 1.67 5.00 7.00 3.82
Female 7 30 45 0 75
Average training hours FHZIRE 1.36 22.50 0.00 3.00
Total e 60 75 70 205
Average training hours S8 SEE ST 1.50 9.38 6.36 3.47
1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human 1. EBIEIISERAERMANERE

Resources Department. The above data only covers the reporting
scope. The methodology adopted for reporting training hours
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX VI ERERERGI
HKEx ESG Guide content index Bt 3XFTESG#R 1551 &l
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
=4 ESGI51E it BiE
A. Environmental
A. IRIE
A1: Emissions General Disclosure  Information on:
Al BEEEY
(@) the policies; and 77

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other
pollutants regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,

perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by
national regulations

—RIRE BRABRSORERBEFIN - MK K L HBIHE
S BEERBEEERYNEESH

@ BER; R

b) BFHBHTABBEAZENERERR
R

BBk o

i BERFEREESACY Mt REME
BZOERRRAIRENTRY)

BERBEFE ALK B ftha 8
ARCEY 2Rk NMmIEH-

EEEEMERAZTRMNPMRES-
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Vill. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuea) VIILERFIWERS| @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) KX FRESG¥R H1551 R 5| ()
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
B ESGI51Z it B fEE
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective 130

emissions data.

RAREMIERATY B BE KA R R -

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 130
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

RRENISIEA1.2  HiE EE1) RisREE E@E2) BERESE
WE CUEEE) k (NEBER BE MUSES
B BERZRKE)

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 84
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

FREMISIEA1.3 MMELBAEEEYEE CIEtHE) &k WE
B EBE WNSEE8 N -§ERMEAEH) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in 130
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FREMIEIEA14 PMELBREEEYESE CIEHE) R WE
B EBE WNSEE8 M -§ERMEAE) -

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and 92
steps taken to achieve them.

RARAMIEIRA1L WA UM EE R R AEIELEAR
P ERER B9 25 B% o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- 83
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

FRAEMIEIRA16 HILEEAEREZEEYVNG ZE il
FRE] 1L BY R EE B AR e 73 1 55 L B AR P HREX
BYPBR o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIL IR SIKEZES| @

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) Bt X FRESG¥R B 1551 R 5| ()

140

Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
EmE ESGI51Z it B fEE
A2: Use of General Disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, 85
Resources including energy, water and other raw

A2 ERER materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production,
in storage, transportation, in buildings,

electronic equipment, etc.

— iR E BREAER (BEER  KREMEMR)
HYELEE ©
. BRUAREE -H#E - BEH - BF - BEFR
e
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption 132

B SR AR RS 1RA2.1

KPI A2.2

B SRAERIEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3

B AR RIE1RA2.3

KPI A2.4

R4S IS IEA2.4

KPI A2.5

B A RIE1RA2.5

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

by type (e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total

(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
REMESNERER FEEER WE-R
gom) EFEE UTETENE) KBE (0
NeESEBEN -BERKE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. 132
per unit of production volume, per facility).
MFEKEREZE MUSESE8L SERA
) o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) 96
set and steps taken to achieve them.

BIMPTET LM AERE AN G B R R AERE

L5 B AR PTERENRY 25 B o

Description of whether there is any issue in 87
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

A SREUE A ACR Rl BRI R RE ) UK FR

ST ARG B R kA ESELEBEMEK

ERBY 2 BR

Total packaging material used for finished 85
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

S @PTAEEMRNEE (UMEETE) & W
BR) 8SEESAGE-
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuead)

VILIREWREBEERS| @

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Kt 3XFRESG#R 51551 &5l (#@)

Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
B ESGI51Z it B fEE
A3: The General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant 90

Environment and
Natural Resources
A3 IRIERXA

A4: Climate
Change

4:mIEEL

—BRE

KPI AS.1

B4 I TEAS.A

General Disclosure

—BRE

KPI A4.1

R4 IS IZEAL A

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
BEBITABRERRABERENEAXE
BYELER ©

Description of the significant impacts of 90
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
HREBEHHIRERRAERNEATE
RERNEEEMEZENITE

Policies on identification and mitigation of 98
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
HAREHECRAEEHBETAELERE
NEARREERAEENER

Description of the significant climate- 98
related issues which have impacted, and

those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.
HAEEROIEEHETAELERLENEKR
RIZFEREE > REHITH
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIL SR EWBRS| @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) Bt X FRESG¥R B 1551 R 5| ()
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
EmE ESGI51Z it B fEE
B. Social
B. 1t &
Employment and Labour Practices
BERSTER
B1: Employment  General Disclosure  Information on:
B1: B
(@) the policies; and 104

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

— AR 5 ERFMN xR E - BRERE A TR R

- TERE St - RERVRUKEMEFS

hgi=R =N

(a) BE; &

b) BITHETABEARZENERERER
RO

BB o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type 133
(for example, full- or parttime), age group and
geographical region.

RASRAAMIEIEBT.1 BMER - BEEE (2B FRE) - FaHE5)
Rt & & D E S8R -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 135
and geographical region.

RASAEMIEIEB1.2  RME - FHRAN KM &S DHEE MK
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VIII. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued)

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects ESG Indicators
fEm ESGI51E

B2: Health and General Disclosure
Safety

B2:G BEHEZE

—RIRE

KPI B2.1

RH IR AR 30 15 1R B2.1
KPI B2.2

R IR 15 1RB2.2
KPI B2.3

BRAEIE1RB2.3

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

VILIREWREBEERS| @

Kt 3XFRESG#R 51551 &5l (#@)

Description Page/Remark
Had B B
Information on:

(a) the policies; and 111

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

ERRMLZE2THFRERKREREE R REE

MEER

@ BE;X&

b)) BITHETABEAZENMERERK
RA

B o
Number and rate of work-related fatalities 113
occurred in each of the past three years

including the reporting year

BE=F (BRERFE SFEITHHIA

SRt o
Lost days due to work injury. 113
AITHERITIEE&-

Description of occupational health and 112

safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

P ER AN RO B 2 R R B 2 2 48 0 > LA 4B
FAMITRERFG £
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIL IR SIKEZES| @

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) Bt X FRESG¥R B 1551 R 5| ()

144

Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
EmE ESGI51Z it B fEE
B3: Development General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge 115

and Training

3 BRRIEH

—RIREE

KPI B3.1

A i 4B 5 12 B3.1

KPI B3.2

A i A 5 1EB3.2
B4: Labour

Standards
B4 : & T#E

General Disclosure

—RIRE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by
the employer

BRRAEERT LIRS # AN
BUER o AR FE S ©

5 EBlIERESE e
BRERAZ ©
The percentage of employees trained by

EHEZMENARN

136
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
EUMREEERN WeREERE - PREIE
B BlnHnxilfEEE Htte

The average training hours completed per 137
employee by gender and employee category.
4R REELERB D BLEETMAZI
BT o

Information on:

(@) the policies; and 116

T

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRALEETSaG5 T :

(@ HE; K&

b)) BFHETABFEAZENERERRK
RA

BE K} o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIR HHBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) KX FRESG¥R H1551 R 5| ()
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
B ESGI51Z it B
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review 117

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

RASAAMIEIRB4.1  HINiGETIBIRIB A A B 1R LU R & T R aR |
BT

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 117
practices when discovered

BRENIEIEB4.2 I HIRERIE IR OHERA B IS PR EY

BIFBR o
Operating Practices
SEER
B5: Supply Chain General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and 117
Management social risks of the supply chain.
B5:@ HEH#EE —RIKE EEMEEENRE TS RBEBCSR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 120
RARENISIEBS.1  RHMEE SN HEEHE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 118

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
B ENISIEBRS.2 AR ANREENEL mERITERM
BHIMNHEREE » MURBRHITREER
P
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 119
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
RAREMISIEB5.3 HitBERAH#HERSERANIRERMES
RREAVIER U AR AIT R % o
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 120
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
RARENISIEBS.4 HitEREHEEREESBRARER KRR
BEVIEG) > U RERAMITRER G X

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBREE B R AR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R 145




146

IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuead)

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects ESG Indicators
[Em ESGI51E

B6: Product General Disclosure
Responsibility

B6: EmEMFE

—RIRE

KPI B6.1

R 45 IS 1EB6.1

KPI B6.2

R4 IS 1EB6.2

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

VILIREWEBEERS| @

Kt 3XFRESG#R 51551 R5| (#@)

Description Page/Remark
Fij e B
Information on:

(@) the policies; and 121

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRFMEHERNRBHRREEZ S R

F-RERNESEURBR A EN .

(a) BE; &

b)) BTFTHETABEAZENHEEEKR
RO

ok o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped The Group did not
subject to recalls for safety and health experience any
reasons. recall incident in the

reporting year.

BEEFCEXERBHFRLLERREIER NOBEEN ~EE

AWK BE DL 658 A 48 FE AT [B] 4R
Effo

Number of products and service related 124

complaints received and how they are dealt

with.

BEMNERERBRBNEFEEURES S

P

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R




IRIE s HERERKRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

VIII. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIR HHBRS @

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects
fEm

B7: Anti-
corruption

B7: RES

ESG Indicators
ESGI51Z
KPI B6.3

B 45 IS 1EB6.3

KPI B6.4

BRI W 512B6.4

KPI B6.5

RS A8 A F512B6.5

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Kt 3XFRESG#R 51551 &5l (#@)

Description Page/Remark
it B
Description of practices relating to observing Intellectual property
and protecting intellectual property rights. rights-related issues

are not material nor
applicable to the
Group’s business.

i B A 5 R AR PR M 5 EE M R RV B o ENERMNESHMY
& o F A E AR
BREEMETEE
BRER-

Description of quality assurance process and 121 (Recall

recall procedures procedures are
consider not material
to the Group due to
its product nature)

HE ST BRE REmEINRER - 121 (BN HE R
% EEFRER
MSLREE-)
Description of consumer data protection 125

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HaiH & & B R RPE R A RRIER - MU A8 R
HITRERAE-

Information on:

(@) the policies; and 126

T

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering

BRI IEIREE B3R BREF RO R IR ¢

(a) BE; &

(b) MTHBTABEALENEMERR
1)

BB
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIL:REHBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) Bt X FRESG¥R &H1551 &3l (&
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
EmE ESGI51Z it B
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 128

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases
FARAMIEEB7.1 MRNERBAHZTANHESRL L ESEE
NESHFEAEGNE B KA E R
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 126
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
RASAAMIEIZB7.2 MM EIEM R RRER  UWRBBRMITR
BRFE
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training 128
provided to directors and staff.
FARRENIEEB7.3 WMMHNESERETRENKESE -
Community

#HE

B8: Community General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to 129
Investment understand the needs of the communities

B8 G HERE where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

— MR = BRAMHERHRTREEMTHEEEZM
BERRERIBEEREEAGENEER -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 129

environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).
RRAENIEIEBS.1 FISMEE MHE BEEE -H1H
K BE-XIE-8BE)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)  The resources spent
to the focus area. on local support was
not available in this
reporting year.
RRENISIEB8.2 AEIBRMBAER USRS EFRE) o RBREFERBHt
AREttEZFN
BRIARBH#F
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Bz RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 153 to 276, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

RSM

RIRREBREFNERARIURR
(RHEHSZMALZERAE)

mERTER

A B ATTE BB 5 M 15852768
BREKERERAT (A REWS
AT (BEE) 2 HEMBRE - HEHE
BEOENR-FMEALS=+EZEEE
BRRE BEZALFE T RABEBRE
MR EMRHE GERREDEREARS
RER URGAHBRENMT QFEEA
FHBBEE -

ARZEMITEEL BEEEZEGMBERE
RTRER - ERNAZHMITHREFEERT
BERZER-—SFMAEEZEEZE A%
T RAEEMT EBENSRE > UBZ
SRV BRERZEFTEREHER PR
BHMGE AZBEMTRBEESYHRE
EEREBRAGAZKREREZHRHH -
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$10,766,000
for the year ended 30 September 2024, and as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$104,067,000. The Group had capital commitments amounting to
HK$14,515,000 at that date as disclosed in note 42. In addition, the
Group was also in default in respect of the principal amount of non-
convertible bonds totalling HK$550,000 as of 30 September 2024,

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the successful
implementation of the proposed rights issue as disclosed in note 45;
and the continuous financial support of Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”)
as disclosed in note 2.

However, we were unable to ascertain whether the proposed rights
issue can be successfully completed, and all rights shares will be
fully subscribed. The implementation of the rights issue is subject
to the shareholders’ approval and the fulfiiment of other conditions.
Furthermore, the underwriter has only conditionally agreed to, on a
non-fully underwritten basis, partially underwrite up to 20% of the
maximum number of the rights shares to be issued and allotted
pursuant to the rights issue.

In addition, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves that Mr. Wu had the financial resources
to provide the required level of financial support to the Group. Mr.
Wu agreed to pledge his properties to provide financial support to
the Group. Based on the market valuations of the properties, we
considered that it was uncertain whether Mr. Wu would be able to
borrow funds using his properties as collateral at the level necessary
to support the Group’s liquidity requirements. Besides, we were
unable to ascertain whether Mr. Wu had any personal liabilities which
would affect his credit standing and ability to borrow against the
pledged properties.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

BEARTERZER

KIZHEN{TERE B TEIREHBERERNW
2o BN BEERBEZ-ZINOF
NA=+HLEFERSEIEFEE10,766,000
Bro MEEEH B&£EEZATEERE
BECRBNE E104,067,00058 75 o AU =
A2FTIE R BEERZHNELRKIES
14,515,000 7o b9 BEBREBEEZ
EZMFAB=THRER AR ES A
% & $£550,0005 7T ©

ZEEHRBERETRFEEATEEL 7
fEY BEEFELERNEREBBES
BREEERBEERARNENELEE AR

REMBRRDEEELCERERR HA
RMEBURS BE T R TH#E1T MY SE45F I B2 AU 2
HMRUFFEESM 2P iR R E
(TR&E) 2B

R BEFEIEEEZZHERESENIRF
TR URMRRNDEE2HEERIBE-
HIRRERF R AL AT e MR 5 H
ET U BEBEARGRAERIETH
BHEER D BHERBEHRE TEITRECE
ReMBREROBEPRZ20%KMD -

HESh » AL BB AT R SEEEN I B B E B &F 5t
B UEMREEZMBERIS B&
BREMBUYBIRAKT RELERAREB
BRRMES SEEREMBXE-ER
MEZHIGEHE ARBMITRAELEE
REEETURMEFR BT RENAEER
EURFT BEEZARBEZFTKRULIN
AREMTEZREREERTEEFHEA
BEMELERZERRRRUIRRYEE
BZED-
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuea)

Accordingly, we were unable to determine the appropriateness of
preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern in the
foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

BERTERZER »

Bt > A BEM TR AR ERFAKCEER
mMREEMBRRZBE L

i BEERIBRERREEZFESE R
AEHBELUR SE£EEEEZIREEMR
EHAREIEER ) U A SEE £ R E—
SaEsRERE LRIFABEEKRIEAS
BRI EMDESRBEERABER
ZERBNTETENRZSFREMBEREA
J2 Bt 0

EERBERZEENAEMBR
REARENERE

EXACEREEBGMNAE (BBE
fiAg)) RENEBMBREER (EBHM
B S ER)) REBRBIRAAMERE R
HEEMATHNGEEMBRE IHEER
mEEEMBRERNBR AN FEBNNKGE
WEHERMENNERERRAPIRHIAZE

ERS-

ERUGEEMBRERF - EFaEHNE &
EEFEEENRED TEBRBR TKE
HRFBEERRNER UKERFERE
AR ER RIFESERER E£EEFHE
WELEE I EAMBERNERS R

BERZEERNESTETEE
BRETBENEE-

BEERM
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

30 December 2024

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

2024 2023
ol 111 - T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET TR
Revenue Yz 7 221,212 166,077
Cost of sales tHE A (178,054) (138,816)
Gross profit EF 43,158 27,261
Other income HMk A 8 342 871
Other gains and losses Hitt i m & 518 9 281 328
Selling and distribution costs & K iH A A (13,808) (9,800)
General and administrative expenses —f& & {TEE H (31,426) (33,123)
Reversal of impairment loss on ME- R REZERE
property, plant and equipment, net 518 #E [0 )F %8 19 - 20,343
Reversal of impairment loss on m B ERER B
intangible assets 21 - 17,172
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEE R ERIEET
right-of-use assets 20 - 158
Allowance for trade and FEUNE 5 IR RIR 5
bills receivables B(b)(i) (287) (700)
Allowance for deposits and & R HMEW AR B E
other receivables 6(b)(ii) (92) (295)
Allowance for due from FEWR—MEHBARZ
non-controlling shareholders of a JEERRKRER
subsidiary and its related parties HEAM 5 Ia 8 E 6(b)(ii) (213) (51)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance for & U — 4 RE B
due from a related party () /BEEE 6(b)(ii) (22) 1
(Loss)/profit from operations WEEFE (F518) R F (2,067) 22,165
Finance costs MR A 11 (6,602) (4,921)
Share of loss from a joint venture DMEEECEFRE (34) (76)
(Loss)/profit before tax PRIR AT (B518) & F) (8,703) 17,168
Income tax expense 8B 12 (2,063) (3,482)
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr (B58) E5F 13 (10,766) 13,686
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z_WNEHAA=1tHLEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

2024 2023
—E-ME TEC=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET TR
Other comprehensive income Hth2mka= (RiR%E)
after tax
Item that may be reclassified BB EM T EE 8 m
to profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on B BRRIAERET
translation of financial statements EELEC ERER
to presentation currency 2,595 (4,233)
Other comprehensive income FRHEHMEEWE
for the year, net of tax (B10#) 2,595 (4,233)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEKEHEEE
for the year (8,171) 9,453
(Loss)/profit for the year UTALELER
attributable to: (B518) &# -
Owners of the Company KABEEB A (15,636) (12,229)
Non-controlling interests JEER R 4,870 25,915
(10,766) 13,686
Total comprehensive income LTALEGER
for the year attributable to: 2HINELE%E
Owners of the Company KATHEB AN (14,597) (13,254)
Non-controlling interests JEFER 6,426 22,707
(8,171) 9,453
2024 2023
—E-@mE B =
Loss per share SRE51E 18
Basic (HK cents per share) BEA& (BB (3.43) (2.68)
Diluted (HK cents per share) 58 (ERAWL (3.43) (2.68)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE_WMEAB=+H Asat30 September 2024

2024 2023
—EmE B =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAT TR
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Property, plant and equipment L IEN =Y SE 19 155,451 161,075
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 10,395 7,908
Intangible assets mEEE 21 88,214 90,771
Investment in a joint venture R—REeErEZKE 67 100
Deposits for acquisition of property, H&ﬁ%%% R K 5k
plant and equipment & 27,182 -
281,309 259,854
Current assets EEE
Inventories =78 23 240 565
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 2R B4 24 9,873 8,086
Prepayments, deposits and BRI -EEk
other receivables Hth FE W IR R 25 17,113 13,972
Due from non-controlling FEW—MEHB AR Z
shareholders of a subsidiary JEFERIE &
and its related parties HA 5 =8 26 6,893 3,183
Due from a related party P& U — 4 R Bt 75 =R 18 43(c) 1,145 1,234
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable — BJUg[EE & (MEERK]) 1,852 3,059
Bank and cash balances R1T R IRE 45 R 27 20,068 9,385
57,184 39,484
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables FES B 5 8RN 28 3,980 3,608
Accruals and other payables FEStE A R EME[ERRR 29 56,101 58,296
Contract liabilities aHNaE 30 23,627 16,081
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 4,745 4,615
Due to a non-controlling FEN—ERE S
shareholder of a subsidiary —HIEERKRER
and its related parties HEA 5 =8 26 336 =
Due to related parties &1 B Bt 5 =R 18 43(c) 9,145 4,579
Due to directors FEEENIE 32 3,674 8,772
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 33 15,621 19,757
Bank and other borrowings IRTTREMBEES 34 42,408 16,520
Current tax liabilities BRI G (& 1,614 -
161,251 132,228
Net current liabilities mENBEREE (104,067) (92,744)
Total assets less current liabilities #2EERRE&E 177,242 167,110
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A — 5B

ATE_WHEAB=1+H Asat 30 September 2024

2024 2023
—EmEF —EBI=HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERIEE
Lease liabilities HEaRs 31 4,868 2,981
Non-convertible bonds AR ES 33 21,637 3,000
Bank and other borrowings IRTTREMBEES 34 45,065 46,646
Deferred tax liabilities BEIEMIBEE 35 22,053 22,693
93,623 75,320
NET ASSETS BEERE 83,619 91,790
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERKHEE
Share capital f& 2 36 4,559 4,559
Reserves G 37(a) (16,634) (2,037)
(Deficiency)/equity attributable to KABHER AFEWG
owners of the Company (B54t) Hem (12,075) 2,522
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) JEER R
(TIEsZRERERR ) 95,694 89,268
Total equity WA EE 83,619 91,790

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 December 2024 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wu Guoming

S E A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNGE PN
Share Capital Share Other  Translation Accumulated Total
capital reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total NCI equity
Ra  BEXRE  RDEE  HtEE  RERE  EHEE B FRREE 0 EREE
(note 36)  (note 37(b)(i) (note 37(0)(ii) (note 37(bl(iv)  (note 37(b)(v))
(W5£36)  (aEano)) (asno)i) (HfsEanoli)  (HE37())
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TER TEn TEn TER TR TER
At 1 October 2022 RZE_“E+A-H 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (40) (354,790) 15,776 66,561 82,337
Total comprehensive income ERZEANGAE
for the year - - - - (1,025) (12,229) (13,254) 22,707 9,453
At 30 September 2023 and RZEZZEAR=1A
1 October 2023 k=5Z=%t+E-R 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (1,065) (367,019) 2,522 89,268 91,790
Total comprehensive income ERZANGAR
for the year - - - - 1,039 (15,636) (14,597) 6,426 (8,171)
At 30 September 2024 CZEMEAR=TH 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 26) (382,655 (12,075) 95,694 83,619
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z_WNEHAA=1tHLEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

2024 2023
“E-ME TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax PrIAl (B518) imFl (8,703) 17,168
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEMREBITE
equipment 18,705 11,644
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,283 2,175
Amortisation of intangible assets mI & E 4,063 3,377
Finance costs 5 AR A 6,602 4,921
Early redemption of non-convertible P BRI ES
bond handling charges FEE (153) (706)
Interest income FMEBEUWA (15) (18)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment — H#isE#1% - = K& 2 1H 10 1,368
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment 518, () 179 ©)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFHREEEZ WG (189) =
Gain on write-off of due to non-controlling ~ H#fi$8 R —REIMB AT 2
shareholders of a subsidiary and JEIE AR AR B0 e EL R B
its related parties B 2 Wi = (1,687)
Gain on termination of lease #IFEE WS (281) =
Share of loss from a joint venture DMEEEPECEIR 34 76
Reversal of impairment loss on property, M BE MR ERE
plant and equipment E51E# [0 - (20,343)
Reversal of impairment loss on ERHEEREREEMD
right-of-use assets = (158)
Reversal of impairment loss on E B ERER B
intangible assets - (17,172)
Allowance for trade and bills receivables FEWE Z IR R E iR 15 287 700
Allowance for deposits and & R EMEW AR B E
other receivables 92 295
Allowance for due from non-controlling FEWR—MEHB AR
shareholders of a subsidiary and JEVE R IR K ELRA B 5
its related parties RIS 213 51
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for FE W — % BE B 5 FUIE
due from a related party BiE (BEERD) 22 (1)

158 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BIRE IR EE AR AT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z_WNEHA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2024

2024 2023
—EmEF —EB=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Operating profit before working EEBSEBAI KSR
capital changes 24,149 1,681
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEW B 5 AR R 2418 70 (1,924) (304)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FEMERA B R EM
and other receivables JE U BR R 3 N (2,853) (6,898)
Decrease/(increase) in VAT recoverable AUk EIRER L (GBh0) 1,243 (1,785)
Decrease in inventories FaRLD 330 872
Increase in trade payables FET B 5 BRFR G N 306 2,592
Decrease in accruals and other payables &5t & B & E th FE (T BR 2R - (1,969) (658)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEN 7,493 5,996
Movements in due with non-controlling H—RNB AR 2 IFERRKRE
shareholders of a subsidiary and K HL BB 5 IR R IB 2 &)
its related parties (3,487) -
Movements in balance with related parties B 5 /5 TUIB 45 67 &4 &) 4,512 (5,220)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  &&FF18, (FrA) ]RE 27,800 (3,724)
Interest on lease liabilities paid ENHEEEENE (396) (150)
Income tax paid BER (1,486) (52)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REEE RS (FRA)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES Re P 25,918 (3,926)
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHFRSRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WEME R R&E
equipment (10,700) (15,716)
Increase in deposit for acquisition of WEME -BEREREZ
property, plant and equipment g (26,813) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE- Fﬂ:’&%)ﬁ’z%&fﬁz
plant and equipment P8 82 28
Interest received B UWF) E\ 15 18
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WHEFEREEE (470) (292)
NET CASH USED IN KREFHFARE P
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (37,886) (15,962)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

2024 2023
—EmEF —EB=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZBREHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Movement in balance with non-controlling B —REM B AT Z JEIEIE R
shareholders of a subsidiary and K EHBE S5 3 EREE)
its related parties, net - (28,341)
New bank and other borrowings raised BEEEMEBRTREMEE 39,481 57,145
Repayment of bank and other borrowings  EBEIRTAREMES (16,575) (15,177)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due FEESERIE CRZL) /10
to directors (5,177) 7,907
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEAaR (3,999) (1,287)
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds KERTMKRESZFTEMIE 14,800 30,100
Repayment of non-convertible bonds BETTBRRKRES (1,600) (23,120)
Interest paid EAHE (4,748) (3,398)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEEBFRSHREFEHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 22,182 23,829
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERFEESEYIEMFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,214 3,941
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes B BB R BB~ R & 469 446
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNREKRBFEEZFEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,385 4,998
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRREKRFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 20,068 9,385

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit 52, 2/F, Fu Lee Loy Mansion, 9-27 King Wan
Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting year of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting years
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B=E

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

“EMEABEZ=1THIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of Going Concern

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$10,766,000 and at of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$104,067,000. The Group had capital commitments
amounting to HK$14,515,000 at that date as disclosed in
note 42. In addition, the Group was also in default in respect
of the principal amount of non-convertible bonds totalling
HK$550,000 as of 30 September 2024.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Nevertheless, the directors of the Company had adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements of the Group based on the measures
including but not limited to the following:

(@) as set out in note 45, the board of directors of the
Company proposed to raise approximately HK$51.1
million before deducting professional fees and other
related expenses by issuing up to 182,344,000 new
shares to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of four
rights shares for every one share after the proposed share
consolidation as set out in note 45 become effective (the
“Rights Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.28 per
share (the “Rights Issue”) and on 15 November 2024, the
Company and an underwriter entered into an underwriting
agreement, pursuant to which the underwriter has
conditionally agreed to partially underwrite up to
36,468,800 Rights Shares, representing 20% of the
maximum number of 182,344,000 Rights Shares to be
issued and allotted pursuant to the Rights Issue, subject
to the terms and conditions set out in the underwriting
agreement; and

EREE @
BECERE

NEBESEFEI810,766,0008 75 0 L
EEBEEZH AEEZRBAEREBER
BN 104,067,000 7T o 3 40 BT &%
A2FF IR » REEN Z BN E R K
¥E2A14,515,0008 T L9y BEZZ
ZWHEAB=+TH AEBEIFEXART]
MR 1E 25 25 & A8 Z8550,00078 7T ©

ZEEMNRBERBRTEEERTETE
Mo AENAERFECERNRER X
BRETERAEENEERAERHN
FENEEEREERE

FAT > 1R R (BFEEARRR) THHER
FARBDEFKEFMNTESERER
HREAEENZFEGHYHRE

(@ WK E4SFRIE  REZRNG
EHENB AREEETER
BE— RN E R ERERRG

(TMERR B ) BB DIFREE(E
FR028BITHAEERKEET
B %182,344,00008 5 i 1p (Mt
B&1) » EERZ 451,100,000/ 7T

(R EXERAMEMERR
) WR __EBE_MNE+—B+HA
H>AABRBHEETILEH
EOBIL SHEAERGERES
B & %36,468,8008% AR A%
73 (B RE AR P 1T R B
B & %182,344,0008% AR BZ 19 B9
20% > BT 688 17 5 FT S IR =X
R AGHEPTIRR ; &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. REEE )

Basis of Going Concern (Continued)

(b)  Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a shareholder and a director
of the Company, as at 30 September 2024, has agreed
to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group
will be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. Mr. Wu agreed to pledge his
properties as collaterals, if necessary, to borrow funds to
provide financial support to the Group.

The directors of the Company have estimated the Group’s cash
requirements by preparing a group cashflow forecast for the 18
months ending 31 March 2026. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient working capital
for its present requirements, that is for 18 months ending 31
March 2026. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of
the view that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing these consolidated financial statements on the
basis of the successful implementation of the Rights Issue and
that Mr. Wu has agreed to provide continuous financial support
to the Group.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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REKERE (@)

by RIZZEZWMFALA=+H &2
ARRREEREBLEE (TR
) EREBAEERHEEEE
FOUEAEEEMNECAIER
REENPWABINBER - R%
SERENNEREREYEE
BIEWGE UEBAETALER
R HBZE

NEEFERBREBE_ZT TR
—A=+—HBE+NEENAEH
EREREA G AEENREE
KeoBRBEEERA ﬁ%@ﬁ@%ﬁ
EETRNBA (ABE_S &
ZA=+—HLE+NEAR) NEKR-EH
b AABESI R ENEHEKREND
EMAREECREREATERIRE
HUBENEE fﬁic&fﬂ?éﬁﬂ‘%
BRERGFRNEBELEEEEEE

N
i
]

HAEERPIRRRRELIFELS
AIBFHARUSEEREEZRE
EMREE T EEER > UFL A BEEE
NERE—F aEsHRER > LRIER
HEERFRADERDINENIES
RBEERABEE ZERBENTE
WERZEREGYBRRARMR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

163




164

iR E MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 October 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

3. M RIEIETERIFH
=gl

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

PRI RAEIETERMBRE
#4)

FEBRUREMBRRFER
REREEEMAGEMGZT
] RSB EBMFREE
B ZEBIANR_BE_=&F+
B—HBzBMABZ FEHRR
BIAERL -

EEEHER FEEFNESR
B85k

(EFTZ)

BRGStER HE-XZELE
581258 ZEERERE
(EFTZ) 8 B AYIE SE

EBGHER] BERRBIAE-
B125% HHTRA

(BT ) oA
EBGTEL SHEERNORE

BIRRE R

MRS

ELER

wEE25

(BT )

REFEBBMEI REETER
MBERSERHAERREFE
RUEFEZHHRRRRRER
SHERZEGREMBRER W
BUEBHERTE-



4=
T

Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies” for the first time in the current year. HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” is amended to
replace all instances of the term “Significant Accounting
Policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

PRANH ] R AR MER] BB
HEEA @

FERMIRAEIETERMBRS
=R (&)

BEEEGERAF1RREE
MEREZEREEREF20 (15
%) (Bt HEZREIZHE

FEBCRETFEERRENET AR
S ERFIRNREBYBRS
HREBREFE2RE (BTH) T8
STERIRE) - B A G STERI S
5t (5T 4) TRAFB|MERES MU
TEXESHRENIWRAMREA
TE2EE BRI —F W5t
RENEREBERMBRENEM
ER—HETER IUGERBR
CEREBRYBRRZIBEER
ERBZEMHRRAFLHZIR
T RRREAHRENBEK-

BEEIATRE NES RS
B REA BRI
B HtEERER G EES
BT BEA AT W IEFAR
MEAS R HtFERRRM
THERENESHEEA -
BEREREFEAGHBEE
BoAMENTEREEARH
BE R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

165




166

iR E MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

AR FRS] R ARMEST B B 55
wEER &

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) FERMTRKEIEEVERS

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to
judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RNHIIREBEITEEARTE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREER =
STANDARDS (Continuead)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) BlEMERKRERZHTREE

effective

The Group has not early applied any new and
amendments to standards and interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2023. The new and amendments to
standards and interpretation include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

SIEARMBRSEL

AERTEREEAN T =
F+A—HRBZVREEER
EERER ZEMIT REE
SRR R R F ] R
SRR REREAE TR SRR
EEBARAE-

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RT3 BERAxZE

Rz St ER

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current

Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease
Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised))
Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
(“HK Int 5 (Revised)”)

B
—REED1EA

G ERIE19E (BT 40
a /)IL@J‘ZQE/IIL@J

BB ERFE 1% (BT 4
—MWERNZIERB AR

BBV BRESERF165E (1E5]2)
—ERELOPINEESE

BBREHELT (KES]) MHBRRIIR
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(&80 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RPNHIIREBEITIEEARTE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REEE @
STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) BlEMERKRERZHTREE

effective (Continued)

SIERMBREER (&

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

T = - A
B Z st EIRER

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
— Supplier Finance Agreements

Amendments to HKAS 21
— Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure
in Financial Statements

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements”, introducing new requirements that will help
to achieve comparability of the financial performance of
similar entities and provide more relevant information and
transparency to users. Even though HKFRS 18 will not
impact the recognition or measurement of items in the
consolidated financial statements, HKFRS 18 introduces
significant changes to the presentation of financial
statements, with a focus on information about financial
performance present in the statement of profit or loss,
which will affect how the Group present and disclose
financial performance in the financial statements. The
key changes introduced in HKFRS 18 relate to (i) the
(i) required
disclosures for management-defined performance

structure of the statement of profit or loss,

measures (which are referred to alternative or non-GAAP
performance measures), and (iiij enhanced requirements
for aggregation and disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the presentation and
the disclosures of the consolidated financial statements.
For other amendments to HKFRSs, the directors of the
Company anticipate that there will not have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policy applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 September. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(b)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"),
Company’s presentation currency. The functional

which is the

currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(ij) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting year. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in term of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the entity initially
recognised such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_ZT—

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

S Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continueq)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% - 33"/5%
12.5% — 33"/5%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%

5% - 20%

10% - 20%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(e)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where

the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

()

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease

component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily car parking
spaces. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting year in
which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by Rich Ascent International
Limited, which does not have recent third-
party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(h)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised. When the contract includes
a significant financial component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

4, EXT

(h)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

StEERE R (&

aNEaRE

EERPRASEERIDER KD
AT RER RIERIEaNE
& o fie 2= 52 B 7% 7 & [ 72 SR AH )
W i A B R AUMB 2 SR AR 1 1
Mo MEREIDENER-ERFE
TR o TR B D AR R R UBR R © i

GREREARMEND &L

“nﬁv%’?%??tglwﬂ K&t 2 F)
l%\o

j—'/ﬂ\%')E'EEDTE}JE I:l/\l]ﬁ'ﬁ%’
£§IJ NEEFEAUGHNER?

cWFHEEGMME » BEAIERD
E’J GHEERGHNERTIGLUF
BEAEREY -

S

#4

BNEIEARERDK &
WEERBIEIRERANRARBZ
g

o

&

;p

[

TR T AZ DRI

EXREERSITRGHNRXZE
MER AEREEREMER
FREE M BN R RARES



4=
T

Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

)

(k)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and bills receivables and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade and bill receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses.

4. EXRTHBERER @

1)

(k)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

THEE

FREUNEREEBANBEZS
MEENDERS BB ERER
RIEEDB - ERABKEBANHEE
Ty 35 K R S 1B BIFT RE iE 2 B
BERAFEXNEEZEME
EBANBEE -FAIEEEIZE
MEEDRBHAAIHATEE
TRESE RIETRMEEZD
M E °

FEUL B 5 BRmR B RAE LA R HL At FE
Ui BR R

FEWER M S B A BRI
EAEBZ AR - LE2H
AT AT WA B Z 1 F E AR
Ry s #5748 B BT ol 2 B AR 1 o i 1S
rERES BRFWRAEBZE
MElER N m B2 RE
NEE-

BREIEAREHINEYRES
R EBEUAATEREI B
WEZEMRZRDGRERS
FRENREBSRETHER K&
ERERWESRMZENAE
MENRENE HILBRERA
BRMZEZRBHEREREEES
BEESE



4=
T

Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

U]

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds

Borrowings and bonds are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings and bonds are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(o)

(p)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes VAT or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sales of steel support axial force servo
systems and materials is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specified location (delivery),
and the agreed service performed. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as

set out by the government.

The Group provides leasing of plant and machinery and
materials, related installation services and technology
support to customer. Leasing income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(e). Installation services
and technology support services income are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of these services provided by the Group as it

performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

4. EXT

(a)

StEERE R (&

Woas B WA (A2

BELERB2REN L
BEEREREREMILERSZ
FERBE TR SR c REEAR TS ST A 2 Al
BRBASZNRERBRIE

E—N=y
x5

BREERNEFHERARZE
MNEEREZERRRERSILHFEALR
EEBMPMREZRARN @
ERETN BILEZBREBHE
R IR E E 7 W i BB ey ) B 5B
HERARZ W TSL/(BU“?E
ZERBERE-

rEERTFREREREER
MEEE IR - B R AR U
Ry e 3% o = W AR IR M 5
4e)z B BRNEEHBRE
RROEHESD o REMRTS R i 3%
AR %5 2 W A BB B FE R BB A B E AL
ZENERE REAERFRRKE
B HEAEBROFRREZZ
HFRB 2 Mo

A B WA B FE 5t R IR A B A =
ETESS o S BI ASt ERA T
BEHFECEEREZERMEEM
B EEZREQEERERN
R-pHREEREZEMEE

S EEZHEMA BIRE
BREZRE®E BRERA

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

187




188

iR E MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(a)

(r)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Leasing income receivable under operating leases is

recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over

the periods covered by the lease term, except where an

alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of

benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes

BRI

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(s)

®

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

®

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends either to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(u)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) to which
the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of

the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated pro rata
amongst the other assets of the CGU. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by changes
in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
due from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties and due from a related party. The
amount of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
bills receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

a financial instrument. In contrast,

result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

4. EXE

(v)

StEERE R (&

TREERE (&)
15 BB B R E 18

REEHBVRERUREHTA
ZEERBEETEEEME X
EEBPREOHESRIARSE
2B AR b B 4a B AR B HA & Rl
THELEZENRBETLER
FETZIAER ~EEgETE
FEEARLTRKZFENTEUHE
o B8EEENEHARENLER
WE N M A 1S 2 [FE L A8 B K Al B
MHERFIEREZAREERS
BAERBHEAREMETEZ
RIEFS RAREERRE &
BRDATED ~ AT IS ~ IHRA S B E
R EfhELIAR 4 U R AR E R
ZOEBEREZ B R TEALH
BRI S BINERIRIR ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

193




194

iR E MR MEE
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continuea)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (v)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

4. EXRTHBERER @

THMEERE (@)
EERBEREEIEN (&
BRI AAEEERARBENSE

RBUKRRTEEENEEES
WFEH :
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an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

() the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

= information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade and bills receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continuea)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are

For financial assets,

due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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BHE_Z_

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continuea)

(w)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risk specific to liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expenses.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have
a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon measures taken to
improve the Group’s financial position, cash flows
and profitability and the financial supports from
a director of the Company, at a level sufficient to
finance the working capital requirements of the
Group as explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continueq)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation of entity with less than 50%
equity interest holding

EEMEHXAAFBERALXE (Yichang Biaodian
Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.) (“Yichang Biaodian”)
is a subsidiary of the Group although the Group has
only 25% ownership interest in Yichang Biaodian.
Details of Yichang Biaodian are set out in note 22(a).

The directors of the Company assessed whether
the Group has control over Yichang Biaodian based
on whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian
unilaterally. In making the judgement, the directors
of the Company considered the Group’s absolute
size of holding in Yichang Biaodian and the relative
size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned
by the other shareholders. After assessment, the
directors of the Company concluded that the Group
has sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the
relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian and therefore
the Group has control over Yichang Biaodian.

Consolidation of entity of which the shares are
currently frozen

As set out in note 22(b), the Group’s 25% equity
interest in Yichang Biaodian, is currently frozen
by WAEKAETHEZEZ RS (Shanxi Province
Changzhi Municipal Supervision Commission) (the
“Freeze Action”). After considering the PRC legal
counsel’s opinion, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that despite the Freeze Action,
the Group’s ability to direct the relevant activities of
Yichang Biaodian remains unaffected, and therefore,
the Group retains control over Yichang Biaodian.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i)

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy as disclosed
in note 4(v), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of
an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Impairment on property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; and
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount based on fair
value less costs to disposed on the assets belongs,
the recoverable amount is determined based on
comparable market price of similar assets, asset
condition and disposed cost adjusted with time
value factor, etc. Where the recoverable amount is
less than the carrying amount of the assets of CGUs

belonged,
loss may arise.

No reversal of impairment losses (2023:
HK$20,343,000 and HK$158,000) were
recognised for the year ended 30 September
2024 in the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs belonged
respectively. The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at
30 September 2024 were HK$155,451,000 (2023:
HK$161,075,000) and HK$10,395,000 (2023:

HK$7,908,000) respectively.

impairment loss or further impairment
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (ii)

(b) Income taxes

5. FEHEIREKRMGE @

st FEAMRRZ T EKIR (&

(b) FriFH

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

During the year ended 30 September 2024, income
tax of HK$2,063,000 (2023: HK$3,482,000) was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Allowance for trade and bill receivables,
deposits and other receivables, due from a
related party and due from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade and bill receivables using a provision
matrix. The provision rates are based on ageing of
debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group’s historical default rates
and forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates as the outcome would be vary depending
on the selection of input applied. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade and bill
receivables, deposits and other receivables, due
from a related party and due from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties
are disclosed in note 6(b), note 15(b)(ii), note 24,
note 25, note 26, and note 43(c).

5. FEHEIREXRMGF @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

5. FEHEIREXRMGE @

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) fHEtFRBHBRAZZEERE (&)

(c) Allowance for trade and bill receivables,

(c) BUEGRIREE #E

deposits and other receivables, due from a B B IR FEL B B

related party and due from non-controlling TR R W — 8 A
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related B Z IR R R R B R
parties (Continued) HIEEE (B)

As at 30 September 2024, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables were HK$8,765,000 (2023:
HK$8,086,000), net of allowance of HK$8,363,000
(2023: HK$7,946,000), and bill receivables of
HK$1,108,000 (2023: Nil), net of allowance of
HK$11,000 (2023: Nil).

As at 30 September 2024, the carrying amount of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables was
HK$17,113,000, net of allowance of HK$410,000
(2023: HK$13,972,000, net of allowance of
HK$310,000).

As at 30 September 2024, the carrying amount of
due from a related party was HK$1,145,000, net of
allowance of HK$47,000 (2023: HK$1,234,000, net
of allowance of HK$25,000).

As at 30 September 2024, the carrying amount
of due from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary and its related parties was
HK$6,893,000, net of allowance of HK$266,000
(2023: HK$3,183,000, net of allowance of
HK$50,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

A TE_NEAB=Z+A
EKREZEINVIEEERES
8,765,000t (Z&E =
£ 18,086,000 7T) (H0B&
B 1%8,363,000% T (=&
T =4 7,946,000 7)) &
FEU Z 1,108,000 7T (=
ET=F 0 E) (OREE
11,00087T) (ZEZ=4%:

) e

RZE-_MFEHAB=1+8"
TR S R EMEU
IRFMEREE 417,113,000
Bt (0B #$#5410,0007%8 7T)
(ZE_=% :13,972,000
Bt GOBREHE310,000%

o)) °

AT _WEAB=+R
FEW — 2 BA B 75 T IE RV ERE
E71,145,000% 7T (GOBR 5
47,0008 T (CEZ=4F:
1,234,000 7t (A BRE
25,000 7T)) ©

RZE_MHEALB=+H"
fEUR — I B AT 2 JEFERR
A& B A HL BB 5 SRV BR T
& 46,893,000 71 (3B 5
5266,000877T) (ZE =
£ 13,183,000 75 (30 Bk #
#50,0005 73) ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate

risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group’s entities i.e. HK$. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 30 September 2024, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the HK$ with all other variables held higher
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been HK$4,059,000 higher (2023: profit of
HK$3,355,000 lower), arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange loss on non-convertible bonds and
other payables denominated in HK$, but partly offset
by deposits and other receivables and bank and cash
balances denominated in HK$. If RMB had strengthened
10% against HK$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$4,059,000 lower (2023: profit of HK$3,355,000
higher), arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gain on non-convertible bonds and other payables
denominated in HK$, but partly offset by deposits
and other receivables and bank and cash balances
denominated in HKS$.

6. MERAMREIE
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade and bills receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group

considers having low credit risk.

(i) Trade and bills receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade and bills receivables are
due within 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 to 6 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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BE"ZT—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

6. HFERRER =

(b)

EERK &

Trade and bills receivables (Continued) () ERESRZEER (&
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBRERNZHTERE
and bills receivables at an amount equal to lifetime BERECCHETERERES
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. ERAEREZEEEER H
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience ThfE B PR E TR E o
does not indicate significantly different loss HRAEEBEZEEBE
patterns for different customer segments, the WAMABEE DI ERE
loss allowance based on past due status is not ATEEBEER  ERAaf
further distinguished between the Group’s different REZBEEBEIENAE
customer bases. ErAxRrER s BE—D

&) ©
The following table provides information about the TREFFINZZZMFENA
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade —t+HAEEMREREZIK
and bills receivables as at 30 September 2024: PEREBEERBZEERERK
TEEREEBENER !
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHARS IR X IRE4RE SR # &
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FAT FAT
2024 -l 111 3

Current (not past due) BIHR (R#AHER) 0.00% 34 =
1 — 90 days past due #HA1 - 90H 1.90% 3,424 65
91 — 180 days past due #1HA91 — 180H 3.03% 3,759 114
181 - 365 days past due #1HA181 - 365H 4.22% 2,960 125
More than 365 days past due #HiEE38365H 100% 8,070 8,070
18,247 8,374
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

6. UHEAKERE @

(b) FEERR (&)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued) () ERESRZEER (&
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance
SELE) SEES IRE4ARE BiaRE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FHET FHETT
2023 g =
Current (not past due) BRER (R HR) 2.08% 5,835 121
1 - 90 days past due #HA1 - 90H 5.39% 878 48
91 — 180 days past due #HA91 — 180H 15.54% 238 37
181 — 365 days past due #HA181 - 365H 19.03% 1,656 315
More than 365 days past due #HA#B18365H 100.00% 7,425 7,425
16,032 7,946

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade and bills receivables during the year is as
follows:

6. HFERRER =

(b)

=ERR &)
() ERESRZEER (&

FARKEZRARERZ
EIEEERREEWT ¢

2024 2023
—E-ME —_E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHAT FHT

At beginning of the year REH 7,946 7,653
Allowance recognised FREREE

for the year 287 700

Exchange differences bE 2 A %H 141 (407)

At end of year REFR 8,374 7,946

The loss allowance slightly increased in 2024
because of slow settlement from long outstanding
customers which increased the balance more than
365 days.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 54%
(2023: 43%) of the total trade and bills receivables
at gross were due from the Group’s three (2023:
two) largest customers as at 30 September 2024,
of which 29% (2023: 33%) came from the largest
customer of the Group and all of the customers
are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

TR NFHBRERIY
m BERREFREHEIRE
N ERAR B RABS
365 HIAEERIE A0

R_ZZWNFEAB=+H>
AEBMEEEEETRRAR
FRRE54% (ZE_=
43%) FEWE Z RN R ZiE
MEBLERBAER= (Z
TZ_=ZF M) KBERZR
IH> HAhoo% (ZEZ=4F .
33%) KEAEBRAZTF
BFERRHBARFEAR
HME (TREL) ©



AR e MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Deposits and other receivables, bond
receivables, due from a related party and
due from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Bond receivables,
deposits and other receivables, due from a related
party and due from non-controlling shareholders of
a subsidiary and its related parties are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
bond receivables, deposits and other receivables,
due from a related party and due from non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its
related parties is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HFERAEEIE =

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE (&

(i) Deposits and other receivables, bond (i) BEZRAEMEKER EW
receivables, due from a related party and 1B W —Z S E
due from non-controlling shareholders of a KU R — B2 EZ
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued) FFHERR IR R e B R 5 7k IE

(&
The loss allowance account in respect of bond FRERES BEREM
receivables, deposits and other receivables, due FEUWRBR TR~ FEUR — i RA B /5
from a related party and due from non-controlling I R FE W — RS MY /8 A B
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties Z IEFE RS IS B R HL R B 5 =R
during the year is as follows: B BEREREBEOT
Due from
non-
controlling
shareholders
of a
subsidiary
Deposits Due from and its
Bond and other a related related
receivables receivables party parties
e —
MEBATZ

mEREM El—%  JFERRRK
e & 5% FEUERT  FBARE  HEBARE

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 October 2022 R_E__F+H—H 10,935 23 27 -
Allowance recognised for the year ~ERBRZ Bk - 295 = 51
Reversals [ = = 1) -
Exchange differences EREH = (8) (1) (1)
At 30 September 2023 and RIEZ=FhA=1H
1 October 2023 N_E-_=ZF+B—H 10,935 310 25 50
Allowance recognised for the year ERERZ B - 92 22 213
Write-off HisH (10,935) - - -
Exchange differences ERER - 8 - 3
At 30 September 2024 RIE-NFABA=1H - 410 47 266
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKERE®=

Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERK &)

(i) Deposits and other receivables, bond (i) #ZEREMEKRR B
receivables, due from a related party and 1B BN — 2B 5= E
due from non-controlling shareholders of a WUREK—BELEZ
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued) FEFEAR B 5R R H R B o 7k TE

#

The management of the Group assessed the risk of AEEBEEERAES
default based on both quantitative and qualitative BRETEREMHENFT
information on hand after initial recognition. Based HEBAORR BERHE 2T
on their assessment, there was an increase in the HoHERETEGRBE—
loss allowance in deposits and other receivables B REEZIBA R EIZ N
because of the increase in default risk that certain & R EMEWERRE B
balances were outstanding for more than one year. R

Liquidity risk (c) REIEZEE

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current KREBZHEATHERINAR

and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it FEREESHE R URBHET

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity TERZEBESHEBEENHEERERE
requirements in the short and longer term. HzREhEsHKe

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBEHEBERESAORMIER

cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: BEREFAEZEHIMUWT ¢

Total

Less than Between Between undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows
RERRE

DI 1-26 2-5% S5ENE MERE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER T#T THAT TR THET

At 30 September 2024 RZEZMEAB=+H

Trade payables [EERIERD 3,980 - - - 3,980

Accruals and other payables  FE 5T B B R EMIE IR 54,211 - - - 54,211

Lease liabiliies HE&E 5,078 4,035 1,009 - 10,122

Due to related parties SRR 5 2 0E 9,145 - - - 9,145

Due to directors [ERNEENIE 3,674 - - - 3,674

Non-convertible bonds FOBRES 17,972 22,255 - - 40,227

Due to a non-controlling EN—EHEARz -2 TR

shareholder of a subsidiary MR R E M A A
and its related parties 336 - - - 336
Bank and other borrowings  SRITREMEE 46,313 18,105 14,145 19,489 98,052
140,709 44,395 15,154 19,489 219,747
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

6. MHERAMEE @
(©) RBEASER &)

FEETHEEREGHRMLE
REREFAEZFBONAT

(Continued) (#)
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years cash flows
FURAS
DRE 126 2-5% 5ELE MERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR TR

At 30 September 2023 KZEZ=FhAB=+H

Trade payables EEZED 3,608 - - - 3,608
Accruals and other payables &5t & A R E MR 55,238 - - - 55,238
Lease liabilities HEGE 4,868 2,797 252 - 7,917
Due to related parties FEfI R A TR IE 4,579 = = = 4,579
Due to directors ENEZHE 8,772 - - - 8,772
Non-convertible bonds ABRES 20,763 3,180 - - 23,043
Bank and other borrowings  SRITREMEE 20,377 33,346 16,557 - 70,280
118,205 39,323 16,809 - 174,337

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest
rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s certain bank borrowings denominated in RMB.

Other than bank borrowings mentioned above, the
Group’s non-convertible bonds, certain bank borrowings
and other borrowings bear interest at fixed interest rate
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity

analysis has been prepared.

Categories of financial instruments at 30 September

6.

MERERERE @

(d)

(e)

) 2= & B

FEBZRERENXABRETE
EPRFEEBUAREBSHEZE
FRITBEEELEZPRAARIRT
BERNKKH -

bR EIRTTRESN  REBATA
BRES ETRTEERAEM
BEARBEEMNXF S  EHItE
BRAFEMERER-

EERREEBAEZANXRRR
WAEXR FIL T EGERERE
Do

RAB=+HZEMIASE

2024 2023
—EE TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets: ERBEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost BREIER AR SME E 42,641 25,285
Financial liabilities: ERAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#H AT Rz SR EE 196,077 158,120
Fair values f) 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REMBRIRAIRM 2 NER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated TREEKRERHEEZEEER
statement of financial position approximate their Eﬁ%@z//}:ﬁﬁﬁ

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

7. REVENUE 7. W=
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) Yz=d 9o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RENTEERIRBRHERE
by major products or service line for the year is as BEREHZWREDUWT -
follows:
2024 2023
—E_MF =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
Revenue from contracts with ERMBHRSENF155R
customers within the scope HEAKRBERGHNZ
of HKFRS 15 U =
Disaggregated by major products BIEERTRBES D
or service lines
— Sales of natural gas —HERAR 205,113 149,692
- Sales of materials —tHE MR 2,361 2,003
- Rendering of services — IR AR 10,243 7,793
217,717 159,488
Revenue from other sources H kR 2 W=
- Leasing income —HEWA 3,495 6,589
221,212 166,077
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REVENUE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods

7. W= @

(a)

WIS (4

FEERUTIZERRRTE

and services over time and at a point in time in the BER RN E—RENEREE R
following major product lines and geographical regions: KRARFBE SN S
Provision of
Pipeline installation technology
Sales of natural gas Sales of materials services support services Total
HEXAR HEMH ERZRRE R RS i
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZECmE C3C-fF ZICME CSC-f ZECME CRCCE ZBIME CECCF ZBRIME CRCCR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEn TArn TEx  TEr TEx  TEm  TEr  FEm  TEn
Primary geographical ~ EMEHSE
markets
- The PRC except Hong Kong —FE (FEEEE) 205,113 149,692 2,361 2,003 7,219 4332 2,964 3461 2AT,M7 159,488
- Hong Kong 5% - = - = - = - = - S
Revenue from external RBSMBER 2 G
customers 205,113 149,692 2,361 2,003 17,219 4332 2,964 3461 2AT,MT 159,488
Timing of revenue W RS
recognition
Products transferred at RE-BEEER 2 ER
a point in time - = 2,361 2,003 7,219 4332 - = 9,640 6,335
Products and services EREEG ERRER
transferred over time 205,113 149,692 - - - - 2,964 3,461 208,077 153,153
Total & 205,113 149,692 2,361 2,003 1,219 4332 2,964 3,461 17,117 159,488
Transaction price allocated to the remaining (b) NEEHEFGNGRTEAOERT

performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has also applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
provision of technology support services such that the
Group need not disclose the information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations. The Group recognises
the revenue at the amount to which it has a right to
invoice, which corresponds directly to the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed to date.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HfthgA
2024 2023
—E_MF TET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Bank interest income IRITH B WA 15 18
Government grants B 485 B 95 57
Early redemption of non-convertible RAER R R ES
bonds handling charges FE 153 706
Others Hih 79 90
342 871
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hithlim= K&
2024 2023
—E-@mE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAT
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BERKRE

plant and equipment (B518) W= (179) 9
Write-off of property, plant and equipment HisS¥13 « = R & H (10) (1,368)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HETERAEEEZ WA 189 -

Gain on write-off of due to RN — B AR 2

non-controlling shareholders of JEVER AR A E R 5
a subsidiary and its related parties TIEZ W - 1,687
Gain on termination of lease BRI EWE 281 =
281 328
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. D ERER

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

AEBEZMER RS DT

Natural gas - including investment in natural gas IAREYE — GREREXAZE
operations projects, sales of natural gas, B -HEXARA
natural gas cooking appliance XARMNE K
and accessories and pipeline HUREELE
installation
Sales and - including sales and services HEKRHEE — SEMEEME-
leasing business rendered from leasing of 5 B P5 Fe 1% 28 LA &
materials, plant and machinery it BiIRH
and technology support HE MRS

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

Independent financial advisory does not disclose as this
segment does not meet any of the quantitative thresholds
for determining as a reportable segment. The comparative
segments have been re-presented.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include
unallocated corporate expenses, certain other income, certain
other gains and losses, reversal of allowance/(allowance) for
certain deposits and other receivables, certain finance costs
and income tax. Segment assets do not include bank and cash
balances and unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do not
include non-convertible bonds, some other borrowings and
unallocated liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
“MEAB=1+THIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

HE_Z

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Information about operating segment profit or loss,

10. D EEFE @

(a) FRKESHED -BERER

assets and liabilities: ZER
Sales and
Natural gas leasing
operations business Total
HER
RARER HEER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TART TET
Year ended 30 September 2024 BE_FT-_NmEF
hB _+ HLEEE
Revenue from external customers RENDERZ WS 212,652 8,560 221,212
Segment profit/(loss) NEER (B8 8,326 (5,009) 3,317
Interest revenue B W= 13 2 15
Interest expense FEMA% (3,862) (1,094) (4,956)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (17,023) (8,205) (25,228)
Other material non-cash items: HMBEAFREIER !
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—EaEtErBE (34) = (34)
Allowance for trade and EWESRTREEEE
bills receivables (29) (258) (287)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance for 18 R EMELERR
deposits and other receivables () /BEEm (117) 46 (71)
Allowance for due from a related party FEWR— & RAH A IBEE - (22) (22)
Allowance for due from non-controlling & —F&iFi B /A B 2 FEEE A%
shareholders of a subsidiary R R AR AT B
and its related parties (213) - (213)
Additions to segment non-current REDBERBEE
assets 48,210 660 48,870
As at 30 September 2024 RZEZMENA=1+H
Segment assets NHEE 275,788 38,376 314,164
Segment liabilities wan 3=Vt (167,125) (35,153) (202,278)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. P EPEE )

(a) Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) BRAKENHER - BERERE
assets and liabilities: (Continued) ZER (@)
Sales and
Natural gas leasing
operations business Total
HER \
RAREE HEEX 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
AT TAET TAT
(Re-presented)
(KR 51)
Year ended 30 September 2023 BE-T-=
hB=+HLEE
Revenue from external customers KBEINBEF Z W@ 155,052 11,025 166,077
Segment profit/(loss) NEEF/ (EE) 37,925 (4,146) 33,779
Interest revenue B W 10 7 17
Interest expense FEMZ (2,654) (599) (3,253)
Depreciation and amortisation irEE R Y (10,429) (5,172) (15,601)
Net foreign exchange gain B 2 W 5 5 BB 71 = 1
Other material non-cash items: HMBEAFREER !
Share of loss of a joint venture FEE—BaEhEr BB (79) = (79)
Reversal of impairment loss on ME B R KR ERESEER
property, plant and equipment 22,471 (2,128 20,343
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEEREREEM
right-of-use assets 158 - 158
Reversal of impairment loss on B EERESBERD
intangible assets 17,172 - 17,172
Allowance for trade and WS SRTREEEE
bills receivables (40) (660) (700)
Allowance for deposits and BREeERAMBIRTEE
other receivables (247) (53) (300)
Reversal of allowance for due e — 2Rl A B R EER
from a related party - 1 1
Allowance for due from non-controling FEW— KT BA S 2 IEIZE
shareholders of a subsidiary i 51 K LB A AR
and its related parties (51) - (51)
Write-off of property, plant MEWE BERRE
and equipment (1,353) - (1,353)
Additions to segment REDWIFERDEE
non-current assets 7,307 37,813 45,120
As at 30 September 2023 RZEZ=FHAA=+H
Segment assets DUEE 234,200 52,336 286,536
Segment liabilities NEERE (121,041) (42,559) (163,600)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_NENAHA=+HILFEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. FEER @
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) SEPUEEIIETREER ¢
loss:
2024 2023
—E-HE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
€c=¢7l)
Revenue I &
Consolidated revenue mEWmE 221,212 166,077
Profit or loss 843
Total profit or loss of AREDIIBRIELR
reportable segments 3,317 33,779
Unallocated amounts: ROECEEE :
General and administrative —MRRITHX
expenses (10,695) (15,687)
(Allowance)/reversal of & R EMEWERRR
allowance for deposits and (Bsf8) /#E RO
other receivables (21) o
Finance costs B P& R AN (1,646) (1,668)
Other income HM A 153 754
Other gains and losses H sz K B5 18 189 (15)
Consolidated (loss)/profit MR AR S (B51R) iaF
before tax (8,703) 17,168
Reconciliations of segment DEEEHGEHIR !
assets and liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable ARSI REE
segments 314,164 286,536
Unallocated E i 24,329 12,802
Consolidated total assets ERBEE 338,493 299,338
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable AREDIBEE
segments 202,278 163,600
Unallocated KB 52,596 43,948
Consolidated total liabilities oy =L 254,874 207,548
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or
loss: (Continued)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by
location of customers or by location of assets are within
the PRC, including Hong Kong.

Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is

10. P EPEE )

(b)

(c)

DEUEEEREER (B

" 5
BREREMNIREEMRTE
DZzAEBERERmRIFABE
ERURTE aEES-
REFEFRZHH !

KETEER WG ((EXEH
WEE10%a L L) 29T .

as follows:

2024 2023
—EE —E_=

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Customer A ZRA 64,147 32,618
Customer C (note) EEC (Msh) 22,425 N/A 58 B
Customer B (note) EEB (Mis) N/A RiEH 17,041

Each of the major customers represents a single external
customer whose transaction is generated from natural
gas operations segment (2023: natural gas operations
segment).

Note: Revenue from Customer B and Customer C was
accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 30 September 2024 and 20283,
respectively.
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BXIEFRBARSELEBRA
REBOMBCE=F: RAR
EHOE) NE-IIPER -

M. REEFBREFCHRE DA
EARERBEE_T_NER_
E_=HFNA=1+HLEEEWK

#=wAF10% ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

225




226

iR E MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_ZT—

11. FINANCE COSTS

WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

1. AR A

2024 2023
—E_MF TET=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Interest on bank and other borrowings $EfTREMES R 4,609 3,178
Interest on non-convertible bonds AR ES 278 1,593 1,655
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGZHE 400 188
6,602 4,921
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRIGIRBEX
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following: EREBEEPEBZPAERUWT
2024 2023
—EmE —ET=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Current tax — the PRC BRHATR I8 — R =
Provision for the year FREE 3,079 33
Deferred tax (note 35) EIEFRIE (BY5E35) (1,016) 3,449
2,063 3,482

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI”), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions.

/e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FFFHREAX @

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2023: 25%). Pursuant to relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, the effective EIT rate for a
subsidiary which qualified as small and micro enterprises is
2.5% for assessable profits below RMB1 million and 5% for
assessable profits between RMB1 million and RMB3 million for
the year ended 30 September 2024 and 2023.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 30

RIFEFPREEEMER (ThEMEFR)
AR EEMBRASHEEEG EPIBH
BABMNMEAE2% (T _=
25%) o IRIFEHEABR AR R AR Eﬁz
ETETNERZE=ZFAB=+
HIEEE  fF&/ b 50N —REH
BABMERREF BN ARE1008
7o BRI EMEMEAR2.5% WIE
BREMNNNRARKI00ETEARE
0B w2 AIBREXMEMRES
5%

HRAEBREBEE_ZE_EOENA
T+ HLEEETERERREN (2=

September 2024 (2023: Nil). Z=F I E) O WBAEELEENER
B o
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the Friefi Az BRI A (B518) & A5k
product of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate MAETCEMEREBZHIRWOT .
is as follows:
2024 2023
“EMmE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
(Loss)/profit before tax briAET (B518) & A (8,703) 17,168
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate of 25% R ZEPTIS IR E25%
(2023: 25%) (ZZTZ=F:125%) Z
IR (2,176) 4,292
Tax effect of expenses that AAHBSZHZ RS2
are not deductible 889 1,469
Tax effect of income not taxable RRBAZIRFTLE (76) (854)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary EEEEE%HIEEG?‘E&%H%E
differences not recognised EHZMBETE 3,264 (1,473)
Utilisation of tax losses not BRI R R 2 IR IE RS 1R
previously recognised (719) (1,744)
Tax effect of tax concessions KREREZRETE (158) 83
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEEERZHE AR
subsidiaries operating in ZABMEZ
other jurisdictions 1,028 1,709
Others H1th 11 =
Income tax expense TSz 2,063 3,482
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging the

13. £ A (BBR) &7

AEBZER (BE) &@d B ENE

followings: MTEIBERIER
2024 2023
= 111 = —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H
(included in selling and (Fr ASHE KD A4
distribution costs) 4,063 3,377
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B Fir B
— Audit service —BIZARTE 1,000 1,050
— Non-audit services —IEB RS 265 599
1,265 1,649
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERE 165,778 127,703
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BERREITE
and equipment
— for operating lease arrangement — RSB ZHE 8,205 4,449
- self-occupied —BA 10,500 7,195
18,705 11,644
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHEEESENE 3,283 2175
Write-off of property, plant WM BB KRB
and equipment 10 1,368
Net exchange loss tEREEIEFER 390 1,445
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEGHIHMAX
2024 2023
—ETmE —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TAT
Employee benefits expense BEEMES (BREEEHM !
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e AT R AL 11,773 11,950
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREA F B
contributions 516 493
12,289 12,443
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued) 14.
Five highest paid individuals
One director (2023: one) is included in the five highest paid

individuals in the Group during the year. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2023: four) individuals during the year are as

EBEERINEXZ @
TLBREHMAL
NAEEENAERTRRSHIAL
A2 (CE-=&F . —R)BEE

RGNS (CE=F %) A2

follows: BT
2024 2023
—EIOEF -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and e R AREYER
benefits in kind 2,119 3,249
Retirement benefit scheme BIREF T EI R
contribution 38 63
2,157 3,312

Number of individuals

N
2024 2023
—E_lF —_=_=
The emoluments fell within RN AT &R -
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 %F1,000,0007 75 4 B
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,00078 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T E
2,000,000 75 - 1
4 4

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five (20283: five) highest paid individuals or the
directors set out in note 15(a) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RAFERN > ZEBTES A HEMIR
MFAL (CEZ=ZF 1% RS
AL M FEIS@QFFHEST R ZEM—
BT ERRSIREFEMAIRANAZ
SER SR NERRERR Z/MmE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_NENAHA=+HILFEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

15. ERZ B R Hlm=

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of each director is set out below: EEEZMEHINWT :
30 September 2024
—Z_mEAR=1H
Retirement
Salaries benefit Total
and other scheme directors’
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments
HER RINER Yk
ik Hith 43 H BEEEN fazm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Name of director EES P TAR TER THET TART
Executive directors HiTESR
Mr. Wu Guoming BEBLE - 120 6 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan (note (a)) BRUMGE (k) - 10 - 10
Mr. Wang Wenzhou FXEEE (THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) (note (b)) (M5¥(0)) - 278 11 289
Mr. Wu Chunyao (note (c)) BERLE (3H0) - 685 19 704
Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur (note (d)) ~ BEZ &4 (izE(d)) - 46 - 46
Non-executive director EHTESR
Mr. Chen Long (note (e)) Bae sk (FEe) 70 - - 70
Independent non-executive BiIEHTESR

directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RHXEE 120 - - 120
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho (note () WEFBT () 111 - - 111
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky ZUNEEL 120 - - 120
Total 1@t 421 1,139 36 1,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EE 2@ RH=E &
DIRECTORS (continuea)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EXFMNE &)
30 September 2023
ZEZ=FhB=1H
Retirement
Salaries benefit Total
and other scheme directors’
Fees benefits  contributions emoluments
ek RINER S
e 2w B i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EENY TET TAET AT TET
Executive directors WIES
Mr. Wu Guoming REBLE - 120 6 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan BAREE - 120 6 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou IXEEE (TBEE)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 480 18 498
Non-executive directors EHTES
Mr. Chen Long (note (e)) Bgesd (Hisx(e)) 114 = = 114
Independent non-executive BuUERTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin REXEE 120 = = 120
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester (note (g)) MEELZ T (k) 100 - - 100
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky BASEL 120 - = 120
Total 5t 454 720 30 1,204
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EE 2@ M EM=E @
DIRECTORS (continuea)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ZEEHME &)
Notes: P EE -

(a) Mr. Duan Fanfan resigned on 30 October 2023.

(b) Mr. Wang Wenzhou retired on 29 April 2024.

(c) Mr. Wu Chunyao was appointed on 30 October 2023.

(d) Mr. Chan Ting Leuk Arthur was appointed on 13 May

2024.

(e) Mr. Chen Long was appointed on 21 October 2022 and

retired on 29 April 2024.

() Dr. Cheng Chak Ho was appointed on 30 October 2023.

(9)  Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Esther resigned on 2 August 2023.

(h)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(i) The non-executive director’'s and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

() There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor
any of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year ended 30 September 2024 (2023: Nil).
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuea)

(b)

(0

15. EE @M RH=E &

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEBEE -SEFZEKRBAESE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies AZEANER BUEREHE
corporate and connected entities X ZER
The information about loans, quasi-loans and () AABRHAEAATNNEAT
other dealings entered into by the Company or UERABEEREENZIE
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour of HEEAST AT LNE
a controlled body corporate of Mr. Wu, a director of T ELUERREMZZH
the Company, is as follows: Bl
As at 30 September 2024 RZE2E-_MmEAB=+H
Outstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Amount Provision
amount beginning  at the end during due but ~ for doubtful
Name of the borrower payable  of theyear  of the year the year notpaid  debts made Term Interest rate Security
IR REN REXRN EREA 54
AR B8 AEEER  AEEER  AEER® #fiEH RIS B GiES it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TEn TET TEn TET
Quasi-loans or credit transactions
BUERIEERR
LRERRETIRERAT 733 1,620 2,863 2,863 2,863 (2,130 180 days Nil#® Nil##
1808
As at 30 September 2023 RZEBE-_=FhAhB=+H
QOutstanding Maximum
amount  Qutstanding  outstanding
Total atthe amount amount Amount Provision
amount beginning atthe end during due but for doubtful
Name of the borrower payable of the year of the year the year notpaid  debts made Term  Interest rate Security
PR RENH RERM EREX 58
BRALE hE  KEESE AEESE  XEERE Sk REERE BR ik gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEn TER TEn TR TEn TEn
Quasi-loans or credi transactions
BUEDTEERS
LEBRRERIRERAT = 1,706 1,620 1,706 1,620 (1,620) 180 days Ni& Ni%

1800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EFZ2 @M KRAM=E @

DIRECTORS (continuea)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEE -ZEFZEKREAESE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies AZEANER HUEREHE
corporate and connected entities (Continued) MR BHER (&)

(i) ~ The information about loans, quasi-loans and other iy ETRBHEAQRBWKHEBRE
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary UERABEERLEENREE
undertaking of the Company in favour of connected ERAT@m AT IINER
entity of Mr. Wu, a director of the Company, is as BUEBREEMZEZNER
follows: wr
As at 30 September 2024 RZE2E-_MmEAB=+H

Outstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during  for doubtful
Name of the borrower connection payable of the year of the year theyear  debtsmade  Term Interest rate Security
FEfER REAN RERH ERRK
BRALE MEkE B AEESE  AHESE  FEERE FREE MR fi= it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TEn Fin Tin Fin

Quasi-loans or credit transactions

BUSHHEERR
W Xiachen Son of MrWu 1,192 1,259 1,192 1,259 (47)  Repayable Nil Nil
on demand
28R SEANST BEXEE E &
As at 30 September 2023 N —_E_=ZFENAB=1+H
QOutstanding Maximum
amount Qutstanding outstanding
Total atthe amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during for doubtful
Name of the borrower connection payable of the year of the year the year debts made  Term Interest rate Security
BfiRR REYHN REXH ERSA
BRALHE BERE BE  KEESE  FBESE  FBERE RESE  HR (S it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER Tén Thn Thn Thn
Quasi-loans or credt transactions
BUENAEERS
Wu Xiachen Son of Mr\Wu 1,259 1,046 1,259 1,259 (25 Repayable on Nil Nil
demand
RER REENRT BEXEE B B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EFEZ2 @A RFl= @

16.

DIRECTORS (continuea)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by
the local government organisations. Upon retirement, the local
government labour and security authorities are responsible
for the payment of the retirement benefits to the retired
employees.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

(c) EENXZ RHASHFTHER
ZEKREE

BENERNFENEREEFE
ZERBERINTRERATE
EREFZHENALIRETERE
AEEEEEA G ZAREE
BEZCEARG ZHREN
7@

16. BAEAN ST

AEE G ERERCRRE IR HER
RHAEREBNEGERESIIS A

REPEAERERROER TEERK
FRth 75 B 85 T K 2 R 1% R %2 HF AT
WEEZ2ATEBRHMBHKE (THhE
BIREHE) - FEBREE MBS
RENTHERBALLERPEIRKE
B fFH AR - BRINEE » #th 5 BUF 55 TR
ZREFAEEETRNERKEESXTR
RiEH) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B=E

16.

17.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

“EMEABEZ=1THIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

During the years ended 30 September 2023 and 2024, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC Retirement
Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There
were also no forfeited contributions available at 30 September
2023 and 2024 under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

During the year ended 30 September 2024, retirement benefit
scheme contributions paid amounted to approximately
HK$516,000 (2023: HK$493,000).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 September 2024 (2023: Nil).

16.

17.

BRABHMEE =

NEBBERFIELBEEEG (B
BEGIE485%) AIREBES B RE KRG
(BB EFIESTE) Al LEEEERN
EEEFatIEAEEtE (MaEs
FEL) cRBEHEABRBILERAE
B2 EREEFGERARSE c RIFRBE R
2 EEREEBHEREERRBBAN
5%MEErEMHEFT ESBBRWAN L
[E %30,0007 7T ©

BHE_Z-_="FKR-ZZE-ONFHLA
=+ HIEFE REBEPEIR ARG E xR
TRt AEE T E 2R W HER A H
AEBRMUBBERBHEMRKFE - RIZ
TEFERIFEZINFAB=1H RE
FRER R ET B KRB S 518 REE TR
mERWERAHEHAERRBLUBRESR
REEZHRRKF

BE_Z_MFEAB=+tHLFEE B
R RAER) 51 B :0 49 5516,00058 7T
ZE =4 1 493,000 7T) ©

2
EEARERBE_S_MEAS

—t+HLEEFERNEARE CEZ=
FrHE)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

18. LOSS PER SHARE 18.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:

BIREE

SREFRBBERDBELTEE
s

2024 2023
—ENE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Loss for the purpose of calculating M EERELANEEER
basic and diluted loss per share MmE2ZE1E (15,636) (12,229)
Number of shares BB ’000 '000
T T2
Weighted average number of ordinary FistEERE AR EEE
shares for the purpose of calculating M= 2 @R MEFHH
basic and diluted loss per share 455,860 455,860

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted loss per
share are the same as the Company had no potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the years ended 30 September 2023
and 2024.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

HRARARBEZZ =K%
TMEAB=THILEEELRESRTHE
S BEZER WETESRERKE
HEBEERESSNEERNETY
HAEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. ME - -BEKRKE

Computer Pipeline Plant
system and Furniture ~ Leasehold Motor and and Construction
Buildings  equipment and fixtures improvements vehicles  equipment  machinery in progress Total
BRAMR EER BER
i £ B GRRRE  AEEE RE #f ®E  EEIR Lt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEx TEx TEx Thx Thn Thx ThEn TEx
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Fste) (zH0) (M)
Cost e
At 1 October 2022 RZEZZ#+5-H 9,125 708 1,568 1,160 1,538 285,952 16,082 1,587 317,720
Additions mxﬁ - - 108 - 565 647 32,026 5,695 39,04
Transfers 8% - - - - - 1,569 - (1,569) -
Transfer as inventory BHfEE - - - - (369) - - - (369)
Written-off i3 - (22) - - - (1,744) - - (1,766)
Exchange differences ERER (461) - (74) (59 (35) (14,469) (1,701) (195) (16,994)
At 30 September 2023 and E“ﬁ_*ﬁﬂﬁ =+H

1 October 2023 ZEIZF+A-H 8,664 686 1,602 1,101 1,699 1,955 46,407 5518 337,632
Additions ,ﬁﬁ - - 125 - 924 1,017 364 8,270 10,700
Transfers &% - - - - - 784 - (1,734) -
Disposals HE - - - - - (267) - - (267)
Written-off i - - (186) - - - - - (186)
Exchange differences ERER 149 - 2% 19 18 4713 804 185 5,912
At 30 September 2024 RIZZREAA=+H 8,813 686 1,565 1,120 2,641 279,152 47,575 12,239 353,791
Accumulated depreciation E3tHiERi(E

and impairment
At 1 October 2022 RZEZ“#+A-H 1,705 599 1,357 1,103 1,061 184,636 5,682 - 196,143
Charge for the year ﬁim B 315 4 82 55 219 6,420 4,449 - 11,644
Disposal ark3 - - - - (350) - - - (350)
Written-off iss - 1) - - - (391) - - (398)
Reversal of impairment FRAGEEE

for the year (HzEb)K(c))

(note (b) and (c)) - - - - (22,471) 2,128 - (20,343)
Exchange differences ERER (95) - (65) (57) 8 (9,503) (411) - (10,139)
At 30 September 2023 and E“ﬁ_*ﬁﬂﬁ =+H

1 October 2023 ZEIZF+A-H 1,925 636 1,374 1,101 982 158,691 11,848 - 176,557
Charge for the year EP\] (53 307 3% 98 - 329 9,781 8,205 - 18,705
Disposals HE - S S S S (6) S = 6)
Written-off i34 - - (176) - - - - - (176)
Exchange differences ERER 37 - 20 19 4 2,863 317 - 3,260
At 30 September 2024 RZEZMEAA=+H 2,269 671 1,316 1,120 1,315 171,279 20,370 - 198,340
Carrying amount REf
At 30 September 2024 RZEZMEAA=+H 6,544 15 249 - 1,326 107,873 27,205 12,239 155,451
At 30 September 2023 RZZZZFAR=TH 6,739 50 228 - 7 113,264 34,559 5,518 161,075

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R




iR E MR

otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under medium term
leases.

The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the CGU of
Yichang Biaodian. The recoverable amount of the CGU had been
determined on the basis of its value in use using discounted
cash flow method for the year ended 30 September 2023. The
key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method were
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and revenue during the forecast period. The Group
estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates were based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which
the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin
and revenue were based on past practices and expectations on
market development.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors.
Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period were
extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate. This growth
rate was based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
did not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Biaodian’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group’s was 12.64%.

The performance of Yichang Biaodian CGU had been improved
because:

(i) With the planning under the guiding ideology of the
“14th Five-Year Plan” in 2021, the central government
vigorously promotes the utilisation of clean resources,
and pipeline natural gas has become the best choice for
new enterprises to use as heating energy. Accordingly,
the municipal government of Yichang encourages all
natural gas suppliers in Yichang to work together in order
to stabilise the natural gas supply among Yichang city
and areas nearby so as to attract industrial users to use
natural gas as their major energy source in manufacturing
process; and

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

10. ME - -BERKRRE @)

FERZBFHETENUFHRBOE
EO

FEBZEEARRBRBNRESIRR
ZREEFBU-BE_T =N
B=+tHLtFE - REELEUZH
WEEREEFEAMRRREERELZRE
HEEEE MRREENEBEZEE
BRREFFAAEANERER B REK
RBBFEMER KRR M A EMR
BRMEEREEERREELEM
ZHERREZ RIS T EBRIRA
EEREHBRR - ERIRBEREE
EEBUXBEERTEE Z RATH
ERRERGFHE - AEENE R
ERNBEENRTIZERAHRHAE

FEBRBRESFHEZRTMBEE
RERSMETRR - HEMMBIBSF
HzRERBNEHA2%ZBEER
RIEF - ZILRETHIR B AR T
REAME BT BBEERHEE
PREMMITEZ PHRMAERE ®
BEEFEZHMARERR I RIRE
WA/ s BEEERERE
FE> ARG RBEESAHEZE
ARBELREEEHTHER ZTARM
E-ARMREAEERRAREREZ
MATLE R 7512.64% ©

HRTIREA EEFRREELS
URERFE !

0] BEN_S_—F+WAIR
BIEERBTNRE ARK
FRADEEBZRERZANB
MEERIARM S EEMRR
BEERMREEEZ-FIL - 58
BREBEENRE X ARG
EEARSHAEETRAE
WeEEHERXAR > UK3|
TERRBRARIEAHEE
BRETPNEERER; &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

(Continued)

(i) the government provided subsidies to manufacturers
engaging in chemical industry to move into the industrial
area which one of the gas supply locations that Yichang
Biaodian operated, and encourage manufacturers to use
natural gas as their major energy source in 2023 and
certain customers were secured and were in full operation
since early of the current reporting period.

Accordingly, the Group had revised its cash flow forecasts
for this CGU. The recoverable amount of this CGU was
HK$203,362,000 as at 30 September 2023. Therefore, reversal
of impairment losses on non-current assets were credited to
profit or loss for the year and are analysed as follows:

190. ME - -BERKRRE @)

i)y MIEBZ=F BFAREIL
BTENNEHREMME U

M B T B A5 B 7
EARMBZ W TENE -
1 5%y 2435 75 2 B K AR 2
HEIBER BERSHIL
ko EFEFEEREAEDS
mE -

At REBEBITILIREEL B
REREeBA - RIE2E-_=Z9FNA8
=tE EREELBUNTKESR
%873203,362,0007% 7T © A It » JETR
EENRBEHBEERGSAFRNBRIL
AT

2023

ZEI=HF

HK$’000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment YME-BEKRRE 22,471
Intangible assets (note 21) mEEE (W:k21) 17,172
Right-of-use assets (note 20) EREEE (i5E20) 158
Credited to profit or loss s AEE 39,801

The Group’s plant and machinery belong to the CGUs of (i)
leasing of materials, construction plant and machinery and (ii)
leasing of steel support axial force servo system. Since leasing
of materials, construction plant and machinery CGU did not
generate any income and recorded loss for the year ended 30
September 2024, the management assessed any impairment
on the assets under material, construction plant and machinery
CGU with assistant of independent valuer. The recoverable
amount of the assets belongs to this CGU is approximate to the
carrying amount, no impairment recognised. The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined on the basis of
fair value less costs of disposal which based on comparable
market price of similar assets adjusted with factor on asset
condition and time value factor, etc. Since certain data, such as
market price, time value factors cannot be easily observed, the
measurement is within level 3.
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s to the Consolidated Financial Statements
=5 _EETLE +HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

As at 30 September 2023, due to a show-down on the
construction sector with fewer large infrastructure projects,
the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for the CGU of
leasing of steel support axial force servo system and recognised
an impairment loss of HK$2,128,000. The recoverable amount
of leasing of steel support axial force servo system CGU last
year was determined on the basis of value in use using income
approach. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method, applied last year, were those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the forecast period. The Group estimated discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The
growth rates were based on past experience and market trend
of demand on service. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are
based on market and comparable and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts of steel support axial
force servo system CGU derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by the directors. This growth rate was based
on the past experience and market trend of demand on service.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation was based on steel
support axial force servo system CGU’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. The
pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s was 12.1%.

At 30 September 2024, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged to an independent third party
for obtaining an advance of RMB100,000 (equivalent to
HK$111,000) amounted to RMB1,431,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,591,000) (2023: RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$109,000)
amounted to RMB1,562,000 (equivalent to HK$1,707,000)).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

10. ME - -BERKRRE @)

Mi5E -

(#%)

(#)

BHE_Z_=FAA=+H HRK
MEREREE R BEERE
AEBBEIIHEHNZEHNEARR
HREEFEMNRESRETEN I
SRR EE5182,128,000/8 70 A F
BB NARARREEL B
AW el ERARE EEEREER
BT -MBBAEREENEZFERAZ
FTERREBAABMANAEIREIE
EXREEENERING AR &
EXARMEEEEEERREEES
B U2 5 7E R M 2 IR 15 54 1Bk
MATEE RS REIRE B R R IFB
AKBETEHRBERNEE 78
BEMZRWmERTIHB RO ERA
BRmIGERTERGE

FEBRRBREEHEZRTYBEE
R B OARARREELE
UMREREBTER - ZIERETHIRE
BELRATSERBHERNERE
Lo FEREEFEZHMBRRES
&i@,%/}ﬂk//}lﬂj{é o BEREEIK
mRENE GRAMGS TR X E
BAORRARREELBUZBER
RhEEBBHTHERZTAHRME
BARMRAEEFEAREREZNA
EEEA12.1%

ATE_NEAB=TH BB
AR #100,0007T ($E$5:111,ooo
B MBRF—2BILE=ANY
X BEARENREEAARE
1,431,0007t (8 & 731,591,000 7T)
(ZEZ=F . AHBEEAFRARKE
100,0007% (#8E $109,00038 75) M
BRI —2BUEZTNDE - BE
KR B EREE A AR 1,562,0007T
(HHE 1,707,000 7T) ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. E -BERZE @
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE : (8)
(e) At 30 September 2024, property plant and equipment with ) MRIE_WNFEAB=+H EK@EE

carrying amount of HK$37,746,000 were pledged to banks and
financial institutions for obtaining bank and other borrowings of
RMB27,677,000 (equivalent to HK$30,771,000) (2023: property
plant and equipment with carrying amount of HK$40,303,000
were pledged to banks and financial institutions for obtaining
bank and other borrowings of RMB39,871,000 (equivalent to
HK$43,579,000)) (note 34).

#37,746,000/8 TR ¥ B K&
HBELBTIRT RS RS LUER
RITREMEE AR27,677,0007T
(#8E 130,771,000 7T) (ZBE=-=
£ BRE{EA40,303,000# TH )
X BERREBECEFTRITEER
BENERRTRAMEEARE
39,871,0007t (18 & 52 43,579,000/
70)) (MFsE34) ©

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. FRHEEE
Leased Leased
Leasehold Leased motor construction

land properties vehicles materials Total

HELMH HEME HESE HEREMH ast

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 October 2022 R_E__&#+5—H 731 805 1,959 - 3,495

Additions RE 292 541 - 5,787 6,620

Depreciation e (17) (777) (658) (723) (2,175)
Reversal of impairment FERR AT

for the year (note 19(b)) (FE5E19(0)) 158 = = = 158

Exchange differences [ERELE (45) (5) - (140) (190)
At 30 September 2023 and R_ZE_=#F

1 October 2023 AB=+BK

ZE=F+HA—H 1,119 564 1,301 4,924 7,908

Additions HE - 11,562 - - 11,562

Depreciation e (25) (2,967) (291) - (3,283)

Disposal HE - - (1,010) - (1,010)

Write-off b - - - (4,940) (4,940)

Exchange differences ERELE 17 125 - 16 158
At 30 September 2024 RZEZME

AB=+H 1,111 9,284 - - 10,395

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20. ERRESE @

2024 2023
= 111 = —E=45
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Depreciation expenses on FREEENERS
right-of-use assets 3,283 2,175
Reversal of impairment loss on & A HEE & R B 518 #2 (o]
right-of-use assets - (158)
Interest expenses on lease liabilites HE&GEF BBEX
(included in finance costs) GIUNZE BTN 400 188
Early termination of lease REARILHAE 281 =
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HE&EFREEZE > W 189 =
Expenses relating to short-term B E R MY
lease (included in general and FtA—MR R TE Sz H)
administrative expenses) 367 223

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(c).

For the year ended 30 September 2024, the Group leases
properties and car parking spaces for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to five years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable

HEZREMHBEZFBEHN T
39(c) °

BE_T_NFAR=THLEEE &
ERHEEMERFEUAREE-HE
BN —ERFEZEEHRRITIL-HE
FRILREREEER TEESESR
[BMER TR I AR 14 o 12 8 TE A #A Re 5T A A~ )
WOz RE  AEERAGNZ

period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and EERLEESH R RGBT I/ -
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
In addition, the Group owns natural gas stations and office o REBBEAE MR FPEZ RARY

complex located in the PRC. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land component of these
owned properties is presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

Rt g xEBDZEYFEED (B
ERMEE LM 2 ERERA A B
BzEYERED BFE—REARKe
EEFHNIRERNEORR  ZFH
BEYEZEEIHE D HERES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 R

243




iR E MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. ML B E
Natural gas
supply
exclusive rights
AR
BRMERE
HK$’000
TR
Cost D%
At 1 October 2022 R_&2__F#+A—H 226,787
Exchange differences PE R ERE (11,466)
At 30 September 2023 and 1 October 2023 RIEZ=FNA=+HK
—Z”_=F+A—H 215,321
Exchange differences bE 2 A= ER 3,704
At 30 September 2024 S TEZWMFEAB=+H 219,025
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  E:H# N KR E
At 1 October 2022 RZE2E__#+H—H 145,811
Charge for the year FREZ 3,377
Reversal of impairment for the year (note 19(b))  ERBE R[] (i5E19(b)) (17,172)
Exchange differences ERELE (7,466)
At 30 September 2023 and 1 October 2023 RIZEZ=FNA=+HK
2 =_HF+HF—H 124,550
Charge for the year FAREXZ 4,063
Exchange differences fE 7 =58 2,198
At 30 September 2024 RIB_MENAA=1H 130,811
Carrying amount IREE
At 30 September 2024 N_E-_MNFEAB=1+H 88,214
At 30 September 2023 RZ_E2_=FhA=+H 90,771
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

21.

22,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. BB E @
The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the IARBREBRREENAERRZ
acquisition of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February T-RE_AZ+HEERNWEES
2016 and is amortised over the remaining years of the I TR BEE-EE—FF ZF MMM
contractual period of 30 years till the years ranging from 2041 FIF0FE A HZ FIF FE T o
to 2044.
The Group performed impairment assessment on natural AEBHRARBREEEKLTE BN
gas supply exclusive rights and other assets which belong to EMHMIRcESFBEUCHMEEE
the CGU of Yichang Biaodian. The performance of Yichang ﬁ)ﬂiﬁ?ﬂﬁ‘?ﬁE’ﬁﬂZ?@EEEFﬁEﬁZ
Biaodian had been improved and it continued to generate profit S NBEENEE_S”=FhLA=7
for the year ended 30 September 2023. Reversal of impairment HIEFEEE R RERLDENRER
was recognised for the year ended 30 September 2023. Details TEC-FARA=THILFEER H
of impairment assessment are set out in note 19(b). B A BEH M EE19(b)
As at 30 September 2024, the natural gas supply RZE_WNFEAB=+HXARE
exclusive rights were pledged to bank for obtaining loan RMEERIEFFIRT UERMARE
of RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to HK$45,584,000) (2023: 41,000,0007% (t8 & 5145,584,00078 7T)
RMB17,000,000 (equivalent to HK$18,581,000)) (note 34). (ZEZ=%F: AR ¥17,000,0007T
(#8'&75%18,581,000%7T)) B (st
34) o
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMBARIZIRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2024 are as RIZE_OAFAB=THZHWEB AT
follows: BT
Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
FTELEERRAMALS BAIRRE/ TE@ERS
WBARSRE RUBEXR/EEEREY AfMER B#EFA FTEEHR
2024 2023
“mE —ZE”=%
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kongy/Limited liability HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
company
BB/ BRELAT 28T RERK
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kongy/Limited liability HK$1,000 100% 100% Inactive
company
&R/ BEREATAT 1,00087T TEEH
Pickworth Limited Samoa/Company limited by US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
shares
BEL/ RINBERAT %73 RERK

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. RMIB AR ZIRE @)

246

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
B&TR
TEQEERREAMMIL BRRRE/ FEAER
WEAERE RIBR AEEREY HEMER REB TEER
2024 2023
ZZCME “ZT=fF
Rich Ascent International Limited ~ Hong Kong/Limited liability HKS$1 100% 100% Provision of administrative
company services to the Group
SERRERAH 5B/ ERERLT 1B A& BRI TERS
Global Billion Access Investments  BVI/Company limited by shares Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
BIKERRERERAT HEEZHE/RNERAT 127 REZK
Hong Kong Global Billion Access ~ Hong Kong/Limited liability HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited company
BERNKHCZREBRAR &8/ ERERLT 1B REZK
WR#HZE S (RI) BRAT PRG/Wholly foreign-owned HK$14,000,000 100% 100% Inactive
(“Shenzhen Global’) entity
FHRHZEZ(RINERRE HE/PEEERE 14,000,000% 10 WEER
(TRINFBR))
Yichang Biaodian (note (a)&(b)) PRC/Limited liability company RMB58,800,000 25% 25% Natural gas operations
with investment from
Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan
FETA (FEH@) k(b)) HE/BRERE A #58,800,0007T RRRER
BREAFAH
King Sailing International Limited ~ BVI/Company limited by shares US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BHERERAR EREUHE/RHBERAT 127 RELR
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles/Company limited by Us$100 100% 100% Investment holding
shares
EEA/ROHBRRE 100% 7T REZK
Hong Kong Central Environmental  Hong Kong/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology Limited company
EEREREREERAR B/ BRERAT 10,0007 7¢ RELR

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. RMIB AR ZIRE @)

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
TEQEERREAMMBILN BRERE/ FEEERS
WEARRE RUIBR EEEREY AMEX REBRL TELH
2024 2023
—E-ME “T”=F
REVENE (LB) BRAR PRG/Wholly foreign-owned RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Sales and leasing business of
(“Shanghai Senchou”) entity plant and machinery and
materials and provision of
technology support services
RENERR(LBERAT HE/PEEERE AE#10,000,0007T BERERRMENHERA
(TLBR%E) BEBURRERITZFER
%
East Perfection Development BVI/Company limited by shares Us$10 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
REZRBRAT EBELHE/RHERAT 10%7T REER
Global Business (Hong Kong) Hong Kong/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited company
EREE (5% BRAT BB/ ERERLT 10,0007 7¢ TEER
Billion Champion Business Limited ~ BVI/Company limited by shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
KZBZERA ERELHE /RHERAT 10%7T BERR
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Hong Kongy/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited company
k% (5% BRAR B/ EREALE 10,0007 7z WRER
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
company
HEERMERERAT BB/ ERERALT 10,0007 7¢ REZK
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Dormant
company
iz (%) HBERAR 5B/ EREALT 10,000/ 7¢ BEER
Rich Point Credit Limited Hong Kongy/Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100% Not yet commenced business
company
EBREEERAH &8/ EREALE 10,0005 7T HABEBER
Bright Able Century Limited BVI/Company limited by shares Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
LREULERAT HEREIHE/RNERAT 1E7T REZK
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kongy/Limited liability HKS$1 100% 100% Investment holding
company
EREBRAH 5B/ EREALT 1B BERR

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even though the
Group has only 25% (2023: 25%) ownership interest in Yichang
Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian
upon the capital contribution from two shareholders on 4
January 2019. MIEARERKXASERLE (“Hubei Biaodian”),
HEMMPEBELERERAR, BEEEZSEREERAA and
Mr. Li Wanging (“Mr. Li") (collectively the “Non-controlling
Shareholders”) owned 21%, 24%, 20% and 10% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian, respectively, after the capital contribution
and up to the date of this report.

The directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still has control
over Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang
Biaodian unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors
considered the Group’s power to affect the board of directors
(the “BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian,
responsible for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian,
consisted of eleven directors, of which six were appointed by
the Group while the other five directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Biaodian were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further shareholders’
agreement entered into among the Group and the Non-
controlling Shareholders, in any events where the Group and
the Non-controlling Shareholders have diverse views in the BOD
meetings, the Group, being the single largest shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the directors
concluded that the Group under the terms of the shareholders’
agreement had the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian after the capital contribution.

22. B AR ZIRE @

BysE -

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R
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HEEAMBZEMEHTEEIERRE
B ESE & 45 8 o 72 1F 1) 8 55 >
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

On 26 December 2023, the Company announced that it has
come to the attention of the board of directors of the Company
that the Group’s 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian,
amounting to RMB14.70 million (the “Frozen Equity”), is currently
frozen by LIFEAKAMBEZA S (Shanxi Province Changzhi
Municipal Supervision Commission) (the “Freeze Action”). The
Group has engaged a PRC legal counsel (the “PRC Legal
Counsel”) to provide relevant legal advice to the Group in relation
to the Freeze Action and the Frozen Equity.

As advised by the PRC Legal Counsel, the ordinary course of
business of Yichang Biaodian will not be restricted or adversely
affected by the Freeze Action. During the period of the Freeze
Action, however, the Group is unable to undertake any filing
related to changes in ownership of the Frozen Equity or the
registration of any pledge of the Frozen Equity. The Group is
advised by the PRC Legal Counsel that the risk of impacting the
Group’s entitlement to dividends of Yichang Biaodian is relatively
low, given that Yichang Biaodian has not received any notice
or notification or other legal documents explicitly freezing the
dividends, bonuses and other proceeds to which the Group is
entitled.

As of the date of these financial statements, no further action has
been taken by Shanxi Province Changzhi Municipal Supervision
Commission regarding the Frozen Equity. After considering the
PRC legal counsel’'s opinion, the directors are of the opinion
that despite the Freeze Action, the Group’s ability to direct the
relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian remains unaffected, and
therefore, the Group retains control over Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

22 KB RABZIRE =

s @ (B

(b) ATE_=ZFE+ "B Z+RH EA
AEM AR EETGOERLER
RESME25% M RE AR 1,470
B (MRARRE) BERLAEK
ATHMRERSERSE (TRETE) ©
AEBMOEFPEAZER (THEZE
BEM) ARG TERERGERER
AEBREEREAERR

BREEREMSN BEERENH
EEZITERRETHMZERAR
FRFE AT FRGEITTENHAR > &
EEEAETEIERRERERA
HEEEMER  EAHRRE
Bt 32 ER B 50 F 48 - P EE 2R
BEMAER &N ESHHEIT KUK
IR REAERAREZENRE
ALF) e B W et BYE 38 5 B A0 B
HtvrxXt EE8-EEAHEZA
HEMHERENEBRBHRE

BEAMBREXAR LAERE
B2 %58 G H R TR R I SR EUE
— S TH - KERPEEEBEENE
R B BEXRIRETH
FEBETE S HERENE
WARIEE Wit 7EBRBH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22.

Notes: (Continued)

(©

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial

information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

RBARZRE @
GERRr )
© TEETABHAEEMZBEAZ

SFERBDEZMBRATNER - M
BRI E AN ABBIEHEA 2258

Yichang Biaodian

=R=Lrd::]
2024 2023
T NE —_T_=fF
Principal place of business and TEZEEMM KRR IIER PRCH[H
country of establishment
% of ownership interests/voting FERERFECEAE
rights held by NCI Wm/ REHEDLE 75%/45% 75%/45%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 251,590 216,779
Current assets RENEE 41,912 20,487
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (69,018) (61,743)
Current liabilities MENEE (96,288) (55,967)
Net assets BEEFE 128,196 119,556
Accumulated NCI Rt TR ER 95,694 89,268
Revenue W 212,652 155,052
Profit for the year FREF 6,092 34,552
Total comprehensive income EEWRAEEE 8,568 30,055
Total comprehensive income PETFIFERERZ
allocated to NCI 2HEU 4B EE 6,426 22,707
Net cash generated from RS RBTRRE R
operating activities 29,884 13,517
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMARESEHR (36,188) (6,914)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHMAIRE 3 21,640 (2,898)
Net increase in cash and RERIREEEYILNFRE
cash equivalents 15,336 3,705
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2024 2023
—EHE EC=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Finished goods - 216
Raw materials 240 349
240 565
24, TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. BIRE ZIRAKERE
2024 2023
—ETNE BT =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Trade receivables (note) FEUE 2 BRE (M 55) 17,128 16,032
Bills receivables 1,119 -
18,247 16,032
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)()) 8 : IBIEKIE (FF5E6()()) (8,374) (7,946)
9,873 8,086
Note: Included in trade receivables was amount of HK$733,000 (2023: e : BKEZERIBERKEAE —%
Nil) due from a related company controlled by a director of the B FRTEHIRB A B FIE733,000%8
Company. TT(CTEI=F )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

Note: (Continued)

Generally, there is no credit period for customers of sales of
natural gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage
of the natural gas. For a few specific customers they can use
the gas on credit and the Group allows an average credit period
of 60 days. The Group recognises revenue for natural gas
pipeline installation service when the installation is completed,
and the Group allows an average credit period of 30 days upon
completion. For sales and leasing business, the Group allows
an average credit period of 180 days upon service rendered or
goods sold.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits
attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with reference
to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and sales
management team considers trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as continuous
repayments have been received.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables at the end of
the reporting year based on the goods or services delivered is as
follows:

24. FWWB SR KRERE =

BisE @ (&

—RME HERRENZTREBL
TERHEER RAB/ZTR BRI
BRARATAIN R sl DB AILUE
EFRERARRARZBERERMS
FEERTHORZ FHEER &
ERRZETHBRIRAREE
ZRRF 2 Wam REflE 2EE
BETHIOHZFHEER -mMIHER
HEXBZMS  NEHRBIALES
mE AEERTHIS0ORZFHA’E

SR

EEMERFERA AEBYM B K
HEEEBRKGNGMEEERZE
BEER TEEERZEEH &R
ZEERESEBENRTEME
HETER sEBMBRIBEEE
EER % BN BEREWEUER > ®
BERBHEATR R (E 2 B E 5 R
HERFEEER-

REBEEEERBERZNERIR
BEINZRBEZRAREERE
DT -

2024 2023

—EWNE ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
0 to 90 days 0ZE90H 657 5,188
91 to 180 days 91E180H 511 850
181 to 365 days 181E365H 6,780 1,036
Over 365 days #Bi@365H 1,925 1,012
9,873 8,086

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables

are denominated in RMB.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26.

25. FETERA - RE R HEMEIK

RECEIVABLES BR X

2024 2023
—E-HFE —_E=

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Deposits Be 4,322 3,182
Prepayments FET IR 12,451 10,575
Others Hh 340 215
17,113 13,972

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING

26.

SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND

ITS RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due from/(to) non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties are as

REBMPAN RN B E R HMEWERR
ZIREEFEUARBE

Y, () —EREBARZ
JEIE B2 Ae R B HL R Bk 75 7R IR

W, () —ER B RS 2 IFER R
REHEHBEH D RURFBOT

follows:
Name Relationship 2024 2023
ta iRER ZETWE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHETT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries note (a) 3,345 1,107
HWIETERENE AT MizE(a)
Mr. Xiong Songgan and his controlled entities note (b) 3,548 2,076
EREREREETIER IS EH(s)
Mr. Li Wanging and his controlled entities note (c) (336) -
FEBEREREEFRIER I 5E(c)
6,557 3,183

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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26. DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING

27.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (2023: 21%) non-controlling
shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

(b)  Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) is the controlling shareholder of
Hubei Biaodian.

(c) Li Wanging (“Mr. Li") is the 10% (2023: 10%) non-controlling
shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

As at 30 September 2024, the amounts due from Hubei
Biaodian and its subsidiaries and Mr. Xiong and his controlled
entities represented advances for support their daily operation
and are non-trade nature. The balances are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash balances is
denominated in the following currencies:

26. W~ (1F) —HEMB AT Z

27.

I 12 B B BR e HL B Bk 75 wR I

(&

PEE

(a) HILIrHAEAEESRE21% (22
TEEI21%) BREZIEERKE -

(o) BRFE (THRTZE)) AMICAR L 2 2/
IRER

() Z=BELRE (TRE4%E) AEBEER
BH10% (CE-=%F :110%) B2 JE
PERR PR ER o

A TETNFAR=+H BUCGHIN
M HWWE RS U RAR T E R HEZE
BERZNEAXFHAREEZREN
RBIFEZEE - BRERDERER
RERBANRBEREEER-

IR1ITRIRE R

FEBZRITAREEHZIREEU
THEESE !

2024 2023
—EE —E_=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBEIT

HK$ BT 230 3,471

RMB AR 19,838 5,914

20,068 9,385

As at 30 September 2024, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB and held in the PRC
was HK$19,836,000 (2023: HK$5,913,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

RIB-WEAB=+H > UAREEt
BUEGFERPEZAERBRTRRES
4872 7319,836,0008 T (T - =
5,913,000787T) - AR RIAAINER
BFPEINNEEREAURGEE - SE
RATEEERTE ©
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28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. FE{F & 5 R

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural
gas as the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the
natural gas. For liquefied natural gas, the credit period granted
by supplier to the Group was 30 days. For other business, the
credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranged from 60
to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt
of goods, is as follows:

—RME > RARHEEBLERRES
H RASRTEBRARBERARAE
TR MRIERARME » HEFHR
FTHREBRZEEHRRI08 - EMET
me > HEFRTFAEEZEEHNTF
60ZF180H °

BERRERHRAZINZEBMEZRK
ERE AT ¢

2024 2023

—E-@E =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 3,711 3,272
91 to 180 days 91&180H 10 8
181 to 365 days 181%2365H 54 34
Over 365 days Bi#365H 205 294
3,980 3,608

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally
settled on 30 to 180 days terms.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

ERNEZERRARTERBEENSG0
F180H B E (T ©

FEERNEZRMZEEED AT
HIGHEEHE ¢

2024 2023

okl 111 =3 —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
HK$ BT 15 15
RMB AR 3,965 3,593
3,980 3,608

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. fEstE AR EMAETIRR

2024 2023
= 111 = TET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
Payable for construction in progress £ 2 T2 FE{T R FX 16,717 21,162
Receipt in advance (note) FalEIE (MTsE) 1,890 3,058
Payable for property, plant ME - -BER
and equipment REERR 15,935 15,669
Other payables and accruals HEMA R K
FEstE R 15,220 13,742
Safety cost provision e N 6,339 4,665
56,101 58,296
Note: B 53

Included in receipt in advance were deposits of HK$1,890,000
(2023: HK$1,858,000) and nil (2023: HK$1,200,000) received from
independent third parties for disposals of building and leased motor
vehicle (note 20) respectively. The disposal of leased motor vehicle was
completed during the year.

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

FEWHRIBEGEREEEFRBEEAE (M
20) @I 5 = F WE 2 1,890,000/ 7T
(ZE =4 :1,858,00087T) AT (Z=&
=% :1,200,00087) - HERESRHEE

RERTTR

30. e EE

2024 2023
—ETNE —E=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Billings in advance of BHEETBMERR

performance obligation
— Sales of goods —HES R 5 5
- Sales of natural gas —HEXAR 16,995 14,165
— Provision of construction services ~— —i2 RS 295 -
- Pipeline installation services —BETERY 6,219 1,911
— Pipeline design services —BERFTRE 113 -
23,627 16,081

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F#R
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 30.

Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural
gas, pipeline installation services and design services are
balances due to customers under goods sales contracts,
natural gas sales contracts and pipeline installation services
contracts. They arise because customers pay deposits for the
contracts which exceed the revenue recognised to date.

Increase in contract liabilities balances during the reporting
period was mainly because of the increase in installation
service from new customers who engaged for the Group’s
natural gas supply services; and existing customers planned to
guarantee the supply as they expected higher usage of natural
gas in the forthcoming peak season.

BHEE®w

BRRFARBABZGNER
Eaﬁ%é%’]\%%ﬁ%%é%’]&%ﬁﬁ
ERBENENERRIB GG BN
BRI ZEHNREEB] ui%E’E%’S\ %
W > IR BRI o

BHERERNBSHAEN T2R
HARERFERXAREERBON
ERRERBIEMN; RIRBEEF A
BRI RMESTRARERER F18
> R st B ES HAERSE o

Movements in contract liabilities: BHREEZ2EH .
2024 2023
ko 11 3 ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Balance at beginning of year FH4EER 16,081 10,798
Decrease in contract liabilities as RFERED T AFH)
a result of recognising revenue HHEBENKR
during the year that was included %5&2 sSHMa’ED
in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (13,028) (10,254)
Increase in contract liabilities as HHERRTKEE
a result of billing in advance of ZHERETAETERR
sales of natural gas and ERENEEIEN
pipeline installation services 20,521 15,564
Exchange differences bR =R 53 (27)
Balance at end of year FERGER 23,627 16,081

There are no billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(2023: Nil).

AT ERENBE —FRES /I
AZBHBEMER CEZ=F:18) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

31.

32.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEAE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIEHEE ] REHEMNHZRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—ENE CEC=E “EmE —ECCF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FTAET THERT FTHET
Within one year —ER 5,078 4,868 4,745 4,615
More than one year, —ENU L EABBRE
but not exceeding two years 4,035 2,797 3,871 2,731
More than two years, MEULBREBRE
but not exceeding five years 1,009 252 997 250
10,122 7,917 9,613 7,596
Less: Future finance charges B RRHEE A (509) (321) N/A REFR N/A REH
Present value of lease obligations FEESEZHE 9,613 7,596 9,613 7,596
Less: Amount due for settlement & : B 1218 B /9 Zl 8
within 12 months (shown BEZFEMRRE
under current liabilities) BEETIT) (4,745) (4,615)
Amount due for settlement ER12ERBEREE
after 12 months ZFA 4,868 2,981

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.57% to 4.88% (2023: from 3.57%
to 14.76%).

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities are mainly
denominated in HK$.

Included in lease liabilities of HK$965,000 was guaranteed by
a director of a subsidiary of the Group at 30 September 2023.
The guarantee was released upon disposal of leased motor
vehicle during the year.

DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

32.

BRREEEGEZMETHIEEEE
RN FI.57%E4.88% (T =
3.57%FE14.76%) ©

BB B IREEEBUET
st

RZE_=FhAB=+THZHE&A®HE
965,000 T B IEAEE — B AR
BEEVER-ZERNREALERESR
B o

B EEMRIEA

BNEEHESBERR REREANE
REFEE
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

33.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. FAIRRESH

2024 2023
—E-HFE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-convertible bonds e R E S 37,258 22,757
Analysed as: DWMF

Current liabilities mEMaE 15,621 19,757
Non-current liabilities EREMERE 21,637 3,000
37,258 22,757

The terms of non-convertible bonds (“NCBs”) are as follows:

AR RES (TRAT R &S5 )) B

MU
Interest rates
per annum Maturity Note 2024 2023
FRx ) M ZEIME TETZE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THAT FEL
NCB batch 1 12% 30 September 2024 (2023: 30 September 2023) (i) 1,900 1,900
F-HATRRES “ECMEAB=1H
(ZBZ=F.Z2°=FAB=1R)
NCB batch 2 6% to 12% 10 January 2020 to 30 September 2024 (i) &(ii) 2,250 2,450
(2023: 10 January 2020 to 26 July 2024)
ERATARES  6%E12% _Z_ZE-B+HE_ZR_MENA=1H (i) B i
(CEZ=f5.ZZ2Z25-F+H
EIEIMETEI4AA)
NCB batch 3 10% 30 September 2024 (2023: 30 September 2023) (i) 250 250
E-MATRRES ZZMFEARZHH
(ZBI=F.Z2Z=FHhA=1H)
NCB batch 4 6% to 12% 26 July 2025 to 18 January 2026 13,024 16,800
(2023: 18 January 2024 to 26 July 2025)
EMOHATRRES  6%E12% “ECRFERTHAREIRIAE-ATAH
(ZBI=F.Z2ZNF—A+N\H
EZZZRELRIHAH)
NCB batch 5 6% to 10% 24 July 2026 to 29 August 2026 17,860 -
(2023: 24 July 2024 to 29 August 2026)
FRMFITAKES  6%E10% ZEIAFTRITRHEEIZIAENBZTAR
(CBI=F . Z2ZMFtRZ+MEA
EZIZZRENAZTAR)
Accrued interest 1,974 1,357
st 8
37,258 22,757

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

. == -
33. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. Fuj#aflgefEEH @
Note: B E -
(i) Upon maturity date, these bondholders agreed to further extend (i) REPBE ZEEFFEABRER
the maturity date for one year to 30 September 2025. MR E— P ER—FE_ZT AT
AB=+H-

(i)  As at 30 September 2024, included in the balance was 6% bond (i) MRIZZWFAB=1+H &EHFEE
of HK$150,000 which was overdue since 10 January 2020 and E_ZEZ-ZEF—HB+tHEBAHEN
12% bond of HK$400,000 which was overdue since 10 March 150,000 t6%ExFsRE - N
2024. Subsequent to 30 September 2024, these amounts have F=ZH+HEBE#EHN400,0008 7T
been settled. 12%EH R _SE_NENLA=+H

B ZENEEL B

The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued ERTZ2AUBRKRES 2 REERE
approximate their fair values. NFERE -

Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the BEEMEZRIT2ATBRKBESE R
Group to fair value interest rate risk. EEEBRAFENERRE-

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is AEBAMKRES ZREAEUET
denominated in HK$. FHE-
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 34. IRITREMMEE
2024 2023
—E_MF TET=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Secured bank borrowings (note (i) BIRFIRITEE BI5EG) 56,702 18,581
Secured other borrowings (note (ii)) BIRWEMES BT5E) 30,771 43,579
Unsecured bank borrowings mIRRIRITEE - 1,006
87,473 63,166

The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows:

IRITREMBEERR U THABER :

2024 2023
—EmE B =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FAEIT
Within one year — &R 42,408 16,520
More than one year, but not —FEM EBRBBEMF
exceeding two years 16,330 33,679
More than two years, but not ME EBRBBAE
more than five years 11,391 12,967
More than five years BlaRaE 17,344 =
87,473 63,166
Less: Amount due for settlement B ER12EA R
within 12 months (shown BB E 2 RIE
under current liabilities) (RAREEEE NI (42,408) (16,520)
Amount due for settlement AR12E B %
after 12 months BB EZRIE 45,065 46,646
The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out ZERBLERESERBEMEZE
in the respective loan agreements. ZERBEHE
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BHE_ZT—

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

34.

(i) Bank borrowings as at 30 September 2023 and 2024 are
secured by the pledge of natural gas supply exclusive rights
of Yichang Biaodian (note 21), and a property owned by Mr.
Xiong, a key management personnel of Yichang Biaodian and his
spouse. The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by Mr.
Xiong and the non-controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

(ii) Other borrowings as at 30 September 2024 are secured by the
pledge of property, plant and equipment of Yichang Biaodian and
Shanghai Senchou (note 19(e)) and guaranteed by the certain
non-controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other

borrowings are denominated in RMB.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings ranged from 3.95% to 10.50% (2023: 5.00% to
10.50%).

Bank

and other borrowings of HK$58,566,000 (2023:

HK$62,160,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Bank borrowings of HK$28,907,000 (2023: HK$1,680,000) are
arranged at floating rates based on the benchmark interest rate

issued by the People’s Bank of China for both years. Interest

rate will be adjusted if the benchmark interest rate changes,

thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

IRITREMEES @
GEE

() RIB_=FF_FE_NMFEHLA=1+
B iRITEEUEEMRBNRRARM
FEEREFNER (WE21) REER
HMIEERABRIERERBES
Z—IBYEERR - RITEEINHEE
SEREEMBZIFERKRRERE
fRo

(i) RIT_MEAB=+H HMESR
NEEtrik EiEHRE (MiEE19(e)) B9
ME- -BERRZBFERRBEER
HAE T IHERRERFER

AEEZRTRAMEEREED R
ARMH o

AEBERTREMEEZERA X

N F3.95%F10.50% (ZE_=
5.00%%F10.50%) ©

IE1T R EMEE58,566,000E T (ZE
— =4 62,160,000/ T) ZE EF =
ZH o EAEEEBEAFENXRRE -

R ME S ER17E 528,907,000 7T

(=T =4 :1,680,000%7T) LUZH
MEZE UPRBEARRITE M B
MEFHB - MEENXRGHE  FIXLFE
AR AL AEBEEBRRE RS
IR
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 35.

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current year and prior year:

EERER R

UTHRAEAFERBEFERIZE
BEERBGRREERAES

Revaluation

of assets

BEEM

HK$’000

TFAT

At 1 October 2022 R-B-—F+H—H 20,244

Exchange differences PERE%R (1,000)

Charged to profit or loss (note 12) 0fx1Em (PsE12) 3,449
At 30 September 2023 and 1 October 2023 RN_E_=FNB=1+BK

_7__fﬁ+)§ H 22,693

Exchange differences BERE 376

Credited to profit or loss (note 12) .#7\? 5 (F9sE12) (1,016)

At 30 September 2024 RZE2E-_mMEAB=+H 22,053

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$234,670,000 (2023: HK$228,463,000) available
to offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses
of HK$232,440,000 (2023: HK$224,142,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$2,230,000 (2023:
HK$4,321,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will
expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

RBREFER ZEBRBHAZRIEES
$874234,670,0008 7T (B =4 :
228,468,000 7t) > ol I IH R 2K
F o RFEIRIBRE5$8232,440,00078 7T
(ZEBE =4 224,142,000 7T) 7]
R4S 8 o 57 T~ 22,280,000 7T (=
T T =4 14,321,000 7T) H R R IE
EEER EEN—ZERFEREm-

R RETRRI R A E R R > L B A
BIREBEREMEREEREDE
JERIRE E R o
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
raise new

of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares,

debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. g7
2024 2023
—EME —BI=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RIPEE L] K& B T 5B
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T B FAT T 5 FAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 &R E{E0.0178 7T
(2023: HK$0.01) each (CBE-=&F:
0.01%7m) 2
ZER 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE :
At beginning of year and RENRER
end of year 455,860 4,559 455,860 4,559
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBEAEEBE EBERHEELAER

ZRBEERN UEBBICEFHER
RFEmMBRRERRAMEER

AEBRRERLEAIREERTRR K&
ERBEEREZECREREEZ
REBREE EEERRBULMUAE -
WERURBERRRE AEBEARE
KRB N#FTHR DERN -BE
MEH BEREEHNHEEELUR
IR -
FEBEARBREREZTIEBRA/R
EAERFECEZENRFEFERE
NWEALERUXFEEBIRARE
RAKREREE-
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continuea) 36. g4 (@)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30
September 2024.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, non-convertible
bonds, lease liabilities, due to related parties, directors and
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related

parties less cash and bank balances. Total equity comprised all

components of equity including non-controlling interests. The

gearing ratio at the end of the reporting year was as follows:

ZK%IEESEHA 2848 3 AR R AR K
METHEFHRARE BERFNRAEE
Ziiﬁﬁ FERNTHABEIMNTFRREZ
RE BERREARBTHKR -BE
TEIEFAR=THIEFEE BR
BUEREAZ PR oL o

rEREREERRIEREIEEAR
EEARILEXDBAEREEFRE
MRmBEAE AR FREESRR
TREMESE - FTERKRES HEER
B EREB A RE - EEULK—EW
BABZ IFERR R K H B 5 R
WIRE RIRTTAEBR - I ABRE R B JF
ERBEAEANNPAAERE B MR I
BREFERNEEARBLERDT

2024 2023
—E@mE —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TFAT

Lease liabilities (note 31) HEa®E FsE31) 9,613 7,596

Due to related parties (note 43(c)) FE{TBE B 5 =h 18 (BT 5%43(c)) 9,145 4,579

Due to directors (note 32) BT EERIE (f5E32) 3,674 8,772

Non-convertible bonds (note 33) Ael g Es (H9sE33) 37,258 22,757

Bank and other borrowings (note 34) $R{TREMEE (H334) 87,473 63,166
Due to a non-controlling shareholder  FEf—REIMIB AT 2

of a subsidiary and its related JEIERR R R A

parties (note 26) RA B 75 78 (MPsk26) 336 =

Total borrowings B E4B%E 147,499 106,870
Less: Bank and cash balances W RITRIRBAERR

(note 27) (MI5%27) (20,068) (9,385)

Net debt B35 127,431 97,485

Total equity e 4R RE 83,619 91,790

Gearing ratio BEABEL=E 152% 106%
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

37.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year ended 30
September 2024 resulted primarily from increase in bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities for the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing
the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

36. ig74s &)

37.

BE_T_NFAR=THLEE &
EEBELEREMDBEITEHRFEANRT
REMEBUREEEEEM-

SNEBTEINZ ME—EARBERD > BERER
EERBMIM LT HEBABERED
26%RMN 2 RRFFIRE

FERFEHMIFAMIEZERTIEA

BEFREZ REBRM B HERANE
B FEFR BB T25%REE

fr EHESN RABDRENBATHFR
ZONBHEIMNEREZR

i

(a) #o&H
rEBZHEHESBREZHN G
cEGTMEMEEREREEGES
HREHRNES o

(b) fHEHERB®N

() EBEXEE

BARBEIERABIBETR
AEEHE_ZBEZTZEF=RFZ
ERSEHMEENRENE
REPIDEEEFERUE
HEZAFEZERE.
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HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

37. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying net
assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC., DIGITAL
COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company together
with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The
special reserve is available for distribution under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal
arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

37. 1B =

(b)

HEEEREN (@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

1

HRIREE ISR A AT WS
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
INC. ~ DIGITAL COMMERCE
LIMITED R 85 & B H B A
RABIRMNER ZEAT
EREEREFEZERTU
B2 REERNT7,640,000%
oo HEE b TEWEmEITZ
AABIROBEERERZZE
Bo-RBERESHERETA
B5 FhlEETHD IR
}Eﬁo

BRIBEE

RpEEIERAB RN 2%
TEBBRHEEZEER

Hithf#fE

HtEERERBRZERE
ERERBELHER Sin
24%f I HERBEMESL
ZRRIEFE-

BREEE

SMERMERERERRNRE
BINEFE Z MBI
FTBINEERE ZHEET IR
ir & MRS ER AR MY EE4(0) (i) PR
I BERERER
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AR M BIR AR KR EHEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

L)

(a) FRABEMBRRER

2024 2023
—EmE =SS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1Z E KR & H 16 30
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZRE - =
16 30
Current assets RENEE
Prepayment, deposits and FENER - BEK
other receivables H e W R =R 1,398 1,456
Bond receivables EWE S - =
Due from subsidiaries AN EPNETE O] 41,038 36,077
Bank and cash balances IR1T RIR B4R 112 101
42,548 37,634
Current liabilities REIBE
Accruals and other payables FESTE B R EMEMERR 9,144 9,234
Due to subsidiaries FES I B A B RIE 24 24
Due to directors Nt 3,674 8,772
Non-convertible bonds Aol R E S 15,621 19,757
28,463 37,787
Net current assets/(liabilities) REIEE,  (BE) FE 14,085 (153)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

& @)

38. ZRBMBIRARKIHEE

(a) HXEMBRRE (&)

(Continued)
2024 2023
—E-mE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Total assets less current MEERTEEE
liabilities 14,101 (123)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Non-convertible bonds AARRES 21,637 3,000
21,637 3,000
Net liabilities BEFEE (7,536) (3,123)
Capital and reserves BEXRREE
Share capital 2N 4,559 4,559
Reserves B (12,095) (7,682)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY BARES 4 (7,536) (3,123)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 December
2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wu Guoming
e

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

R_E_NE+_B=1tHES
EEMHAETHTIESEARE

E.

Wu Chunyao
HER
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AT MBIR AR R HEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ) NE))
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ATARZHEBEES
Capital Special Share Other  Translation Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total
Effits  BREE  RDEE  HtHE 0 REHE  ZnEE @it
(note 37(0)(i)  (note 37(0)(i)) (note 37(b)if) (note 37(b)(v)) (note 37(o)(v))
(WsE37i0)))  (WiaEsTib)i)  (RsESTOO))  (KFsETIbM)  (HMFEEST(ol)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TERL AL TEL AL TEL TR TEL
At 1 October 2022 RZE_"&#+B-H 7,640 1,971 346,262 6,734 3,355 (367,197) (1,245)
Loss for the year FRES - - - - - (7,339) (7,339)
Other comprehensive income for the year ERE M2 ENE - - - - 902 - 902
At 30 September 2023 and RZE_ZEAB=1HER
1 October 2023 “ET=E+A-H 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 4257 (374,536) (7,682)
Loss for the year FRES - - - - - (4,175) (4,175)
Other comprehensive income for the year EAE M2 ElE - - - - (238) = (238)
At 30 September 2024 RIEZMEARZHE 7,640 1971 346,252 6,734 4,019 (378,711) (12,095)
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

39.

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities,

including both cash

and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

(a) MEEBFREEREZHIE

TREFMRAAEEMEFTE
EXaBEres aiFREkIF
HEEFH -MEZTMELAER
ERAEBRFEERERERAD
HAMETFMELEZRERE

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing FRKBEREZEB
activities.
1 October Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
2023  Cash flows expenses movements differences 2024
Z%Z= ZZIME
+A-H RERe HMEXH FREEH ERZE AB=tH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Bank and other borrowings (note 34)  $B{TREMEE (H3E34) 63,166 18,297 4,609 - 1,401 87,473
Non-convertible bonds (note 33) TEtamEs (H:33) 22,757 13,061 1,503 (153) - 37,258
Due to directors (note 32) EEERA (f1332) 8,772 (5,177) - - 79 3,674
Lease liabilities (note 31) MESE (H31) 7,596 (4,395) 400 5,875 137 9,613
102,291 21,786 6,602 5,722 1,617 138,018
1 October Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
2022 Cash flows expenses  movements differences 2023
“ECE It
+A—-H Reng MEZE FREEH ERE® NA=tH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TET TER TAR TET
Bank and other borrowings (note 34)  $B{TREMEE (f3E34) 23,553 38,790 3,178 = (2,355) 63,166
Due to a non-controlling shareholder &S —FIM B A B 2 IR
of a subsidiary and its related REREBER TS
parties (note 26) (GE2) 27,344 (28,341) 5 (1,635) (551) (3,189)
Non-convertible bonds (note 33) TABEES (H3E33) 16,752 6,760 1,555 (2,307) 3 22,757
Due to directors (note 32) ETEE A (H332) 1,142 7,907 = = (277) 8,772
Lease liabilities (note 31) & (Mzt31) 2,817 (1,437) 188 6,177 (149) 7,596
71,608 23,679 4,921 2,235 (3,335) 99,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FRERERMERMET @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Non-cash transactions (b) FEREXRH
During the year ended 30 September 2023, additions BHE_ZE_=—FNB=+HL
to property, plant and equipment during the year of FE - LAEVE BEASZKHE
HK$16,113,000 were credit to other payables and 16,113,000 7057 A E M E(TER
utilisation of deposit for acquisition of property, plant and REREARSWEYE BEX
equipment. HfE o
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) THEWRERH4EEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases SFARERESREXR BT
comprise the following: UTFHIE:
2024 2023
k-l 2 —B_=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FET
Within operating cash flows KEREREN 763 373
Within financing cash flows MEREREN 3,999 1,287
4,762 1,660
These amounts relate to the following: ZETREHATIIER
2024 2023
—E_MFE EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TFHET
Lease rental paid BNHEEHES 4,762 1,660
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40.

41.

BRI

LITIGATION

On 25 March 2024, Shenzhen Global has been in dispute
with a former director of the Company regarding (i) unsettled
reward for his service rendered to the Group in 2015 which
to be settled in term of building located in the PRC and
accrued interest; and (ii) related legal cost for disputes
regarding the ownership of the building located in the PRC.
Legal proceedings were initiated by the former director
(the “Shenzhen Plaintiff’). On 28 August 2024, the Court
in Shenzhen concluded that the evidence to support the
claims requested by the Shenzhen Plaintiff was invalid. On 5
September 2024, the former director lodged an appeal against
the decision made by the Court. The management of the Group
is assessing any possible outcome that bringing to Shenzhen
Global from the appeal.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2024, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20.
As at 30 September 2024, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these car parking spaces is HK$111,000 (2023:
HK$111,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E

40.

41.

to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

&l
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N

A ZEZME=BZ+HH > FYIFIR
HARRNBIRIEESEHIRFZH > W &()Z
BEERN T —HFRAFEERERS
B RS EN S R ]S > Mzl &%
MARFPENIETFESE ; R(i)EBZ
TjBAEPHE’J@?E’J%&?E&E’J%@%

o EBIEALHZAIMEES (DFIIE
m)ktlj RIZZEZMFENBZ+AN

B RIEREE  FINBESIRMEIES
HRERBNBEBREER - RIZTNFA
BEH ZEIAEERERFTENER
RHEFHF-AEBREIERE FFEERML
ol BE S HRYIFF B ES AR B E B R o

RETHE R

NEBTEHMEBEMTLEHEE R
—%—Efﬁnﬁ:JrEl’%EHH%HEﬁié:

HEBRKE0EEZEAHEERS
fﬁ&ﬂ@%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ SREBEEHGHEE - NE
“HFEAB=1H BZEEBEATE
ZHREBERERES111,00087T (Z
T =4 : 111,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_WNFEAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42, B KIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting REBRBREFERNERRKENT !

year are as follows:

2024 2023
—ENE —F-=
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Capital expenditure in respect of the  EIURIEYIZE R K& E
acquisition of property, plant and QSN Yg Ee e
equipment, development of systems  BRAMNERES
and networks
— contracted but not accounted for —BETHNERALR 14,515 4,167
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BB AR S
(a) Details of guarantees provided by related parties for bank (a) BABAMEAEEREZIRITE

borrowings granted to the Group are as set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was follows:

ERHZERFBHNGEMF
HRMIEE34

FEEEBASZHM

FREFATEEEEHMKE
ZEEIE

2024 2023

—E-MFE ET=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#ET TFET

Short term benefits 2R 2,070 1,651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_WNFEAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

43. AR S @

(¢) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (c) FEUW () RS I8
Name of related party Relationship Terms 2024 2023
Mk Ats/ 4% ik £ —ECME —ECCF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TAT TEL
Wu Xiachen Son of a director of Unsecured, interest-free and 1,145 1,234
the Company repayable on demand
RE ARA-LESHNET BIER RERBEXEER
Tang Xia Daughter-in-law of a director Unsecured, interest-free and (1,112) (1,093)
of the Company repayable on demand
mE ARA-REENEE BEF RERREXEER
LBEEAERTREERAT  Controlled by a director Unsecured, interest-free and (8,033) (3,486)

of the Company
HARB—LESEH

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Apart from as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated IRZERS
financial statements, the Group did not have any other
significant contingent liabilities at 30 September 2024 (20283:

Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEREE B IR A A

— 5 —

—

WMEAB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2024

45.

On 15 November 2024, the board of directors (the “Board”)
proposed to implement share consolidation on the basis that

every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares at par value of

HK$0.01 (“Existing Share”) each to be consolidated into one

consolidated share (“Consolidated Shares”) at par value of

HK$0.

1 (“Share Consolidation”).

On 15 November 2024, subject to the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the Board further proposed to raise

approximately HK$51.1 million before deducting professional

fees and other related expenses by issuing up to 182,344,000

new shares to qualifying shareholders on the basis of four

rights

shares for every one Consolidated Share (the “Rights

Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.28 per Rights Share

(the “Rights Issue”). On the same date, the Company and an

underwriter entered into an underwriting agreement, pursuant

to which the underwriter has conditionally agreed to, on a non-

fully underwritten basis, partially underwrite up to 36,468,800

Rights Shares, representing 20% of the maximum number of
182,344,000 Rights Shares to be issued and allotted pursuant

to the
in the

Rights Issue, subject to the terms and conditions set out
underwriting agreement.

The completion of the Share Consolidation and the Rights

Issue are subject to the shareholders’ approval scheduled on

4 February 2025 and the fulfiment of other conditions. The

details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 15
November 2024 and 27 December 2024.

HEHREE

N ZE_NFE+—B+EHEB EEg
TEFg) BREHEROEH (TRH
)  BEEBERATRAPETRE
KREEO.O1EBITZEBITRAZEITR
BEZBER (TRERD)) BEaHs—K
SREBECABTZaHES (SR
71) °

RZZEZWNE+—A+RB &M
EHER B EETHE—TEREB
HRAXNZEFE—REHRMDEES
VORG HEAS RG (R BV B 22 DRI B S AR
A% B2 170.288 70217 & % 182,344,000
AR AR BR 1D » EE495,1108 B 7T (ki
REXEAREMERMBES) cBmH:
NABERTHEET LB RS IRIL
BHEEERGRRRETHBOHEE
=849y 61§ | 36,468,800 B& PR 17
EREEREFETAEENRS
182,344,000 (A% A& 19 B920% > 178
% 685 17 35 P 806 TR R AR 4R PR AR PR ©

BRDEHEBERENR_SE_FEFE_H
VO H SRR B AT R B E MG
FA Rl FHEBEHNAABDHEAZ
ZTOMFE+—B+RABRZZEINAF
+ZAZ+tERE-.
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